
STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

omSIOJV OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES

Lori A. W«iver 29 HAZEN DRIVE, CONCORD, NH 03301
Commissionrr 603-271-4501 1-800-852-334S Ext. 4501

Fax: 603-271-4827 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov
lain N. Watt

Inierim Director

May 3. 2024

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Public Health
Services, to enter into a Sole Source amendment to an existing contract with New Hampshire
Children's Trust, Inc. (VC#218449), Concord, NH to support Family Resource Centers' Quality
Designation and other services, by exercising a contract renewal option by increasing the price
limitation by $3,723,800 from $13,204,647 to $16,928,447 and extending the completion date
from June 30, 2024 to June 30,2025. effective upon Governor and Council approval. 8% Federal
Funds. 92% General Funds.

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on June 30,2021, item #41,
amended on October 13, 2021, item #20, on April 6, 2022. item #8, on January 18, 2023, item
19, on June 28, 2023, item #24, and most recently amended on September 6, 2023, item #14.

Funds are available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Years 2024 and 2025. with
the authority to adjust budget line items within the price limitation and encumbrances between
state fiscal years through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

See attached fiscal details.

EXPLANATION

This request is Sole Source because MOP 150 requires all amendments to agreements
previously approved as sole source to be Identified as sole source. Additionally, this request Is
identified as sole source because there are no known viable altematives to the services provided
by the Contractor. The Contractor provides statewide supports and applies evidence-based
standards and services to New Hampshire Family Resource Centers (FRCs) with the goal of
strengthening local FRC activities and the Kinship Navigation Program.

The purpose of this request is for the Contractor to continue to provide infrastructure and
support for the FRCs, including Kinship Navigation support, community-based trainings.
Community Health Worker services, and other training and programmatic resources. The
Contractor will engage in system building and infrastructure development that utilizes evidence-
informed standards for family strengthening. Additionally, this contract ensures primary
prevention is supported through the FRCs, which provide community-based services to families
at no cost, statewide.

This amendment will also allow the Contractor to continue to subcontract with 12-16 Family
Resource Centers located statewide under the parameters of HB2.
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Approximately 6.400 New Hampshire families will continue to t)e served annually through
the Family Resource Centers.

The Department will monitor sen/ices by:

•  Reviewing the process and outcome measures Identified in the quarterly reports
submitted by the Contractor.

•  Monthly meetings with Contractor to ensure continued.compliance with contractual
requirements.

•  Reviewing expenditures and conducting data quality assurance activities on a
monthly basis.

As referenced in Exhibit A., of the original agreement, the parties have the option to extend
the agreement for up to four (4) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services,
available funding, agreement of the parties and Governor and Council approval. The Department
is exercising its option to renew services for one (1) of the three (3) years available.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, the Department will lack
resources to provide Family Resource Center services which contribute to the development of
healthy families and"communities in New Hampshire.

Area served: Statewide. ^

Source of Federal Funds: Assistance Listing Number #93.556, FAIN# 2301NHPKIN, ,
Assistance Listing Number #93.391, FAIN# Nt^750T000031, . Assistance Listing Number
#16.540, FAIN# 2019-JX-FX-0052, Assistance Listing Number #93.575, FAIN 2201NHCCDD.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, additional General Funds
will not t>6 requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

. L Lori A. Weaver
Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services'Mission is la join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



Fiscal Detail Sheet Amendment

AMENDMENT #6

NHCHILDRENS TRUST

OS-95-046-450010-72160000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, OEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS; ECONOMIC STABILITY

DIVISION, BUREAU OF FAMILY ASSISTANCE, KINSHIP GRANT

100% General Funds ' . .

New Hampshire Children's Tnjst, Inc. Vendor#218449

State Fiscal

Year
Class/Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

2022 102-500731 Contracts for Prop Svc 45001601 $325,000 $0 $325,000

2023 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 45001601 $1,325,000 $0 $1,325,000

2024 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 45001601 $1,325,000 $1,000,000 $2,325,000

2025 102-500732 Contracts for Prog Svc 45001601 $0 $2,325,000 $2,325,000

Sub Total $2,975,000 $3,325,000 $6,300,000

05-9S-04S^50010-72160000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEFT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS: ECONOMIC STABILITY

DIVISION, BUREAU OF FAMILY ASSISTANCE, KINSHIP GRANT

100% Federal Funds

New Hampshire Children's Trust. Inc. Vendor#218449

State Fiscal

Year
Class/Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

2022 074-500589 Grants for Pub Assist and Reli 45001602 $199,800 $0 $199,800

2023 074-500589 Grants for Pub Assist and Reli 45001602 $199,800 $0 $199,800

2024 074-500589 Grants for Pub Assist and Reli 45001602 $1,199,800 -$1,000,000 $199,800

2025 074-500590 Grants for Pub Assist and Reli 45001603 $0 $199,000 $199,000

Sub Total $1,599,400 -$801,000 $798,400

05-095-090-902010-50400000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN

SVS, HHS: PUBLIC HEALTH DIVISION, OPIOID SURVEILLANCE

100% Federal Funds

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

2022 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90050405 $831,618 $0 $631,618

2023 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc ' •90050405 $1,035,469 $0 $1,035,469

2024 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90050405 $0 $0 $0

Sub Total $1,867,087 $0 $1,867,087

05-95-92-920510-33820000- HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV,

BUREAU OF DRUG & ALCOHOL SVCS, GOVERNOR COMMISSION FUNDS .

100% Other Funds

State Fiscal

Year
Class/Account. Class Title Job Number Current Amount

'  Increase

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

2022 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92058502 $100,000 $0 $100,000

2023 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92058502 $100,000 $0 $100,000

2024 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92058502 $100,000 >  $0 $100,000

Sub Total $300,000 $0 $300,000

05-95-090-902010-70470000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND

HUMAN SVS, HHS: PUBLIC HEALTH DIV, BUREAU OF FAMILY HEALTH & NUTRITION, COMMUNITY COLLABORATION

100% Federal Funds

State'Fiscal

-Year
Class/Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

2022 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90070470 $35,000.00 $0.00 $35,000.00

2023 102-500731 Contracts for Prog. Svc 90070470 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

2024 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90070470 $374,760.00 $0.00 $374,760.00

Sub Total $409,760.00 $0.00 $409,760.00

05-95-090-902010-70470000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND

HUMAN SVS, HHS: PUBLIC HEALTH DIV, BUREAU OF FAMILY HEALTH & NUTRITION, COMMUNITY COLLABORATION

New Hampshire Children's Trust, Inc.

SS-2022-OEHS-01-NEWHA-01-A02
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Fiscal Detail Sheet Amendment

100% General Funds

State Fiscal

Year
Class/Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

2024 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90070471 $380,000.00 $0.00 $380,000.00

2025 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90070471 $0.00 $100,000.00 $100,000.00

Sub Total $380,000.00 $100,000.00 $480,000.00

06-096-090-901010-S7710000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES,DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS, HHS: PUBLIC HEALTH

DIVISION. BUREAU OF HEALTHCARE ACCESS, EQUITY & POLICY, PH COVID-19 HEALTH DISPARITIES

100% Federal Funds

State Fiscal

Year
Class/Account .Class Title Job Number Current Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

2022 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90577180 $910,000 $0 $910,000

2023 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc .90577180 $1,840,000 $0 $1,840,000

2024 102-500731 , Contracts for Prog Svc 90577180 $100,000 SO $100,000

2025 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90577180 $0 $127,200 $127,200

2025 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90577150 SO $296,800 $296,800

Sub Total $2,850,000 $424,000 $3,274,000

06-095-042-421110-24300000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS, HHS: HUMAN SERVICES,

CHILD DEVELOPMENT, ARPA CHILD CARE STABILIZATION

100% Federal Funds

State Fiscal

Year
Class/Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

2022 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42117774 $37,499 $0 $37,499

2023 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42117774 $112,501 $0 $112,501

2024 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42117774 $0 $0 $0

Sub Total $150,000 $0 $150,000

05-095-042-421110-24290000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OP HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS, HHS: HUMAN SERVICES.

CHILD DEVELOPMENT. ARPA CHILD CARE CCDF.

100% Federal Funds

State Fiscal

Year
Class/Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

2024 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42117773 - $900,000 $0 $900,000

Sub Total $900,000 $0 $900,000

05-95-42-421110-29780000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS, HHS: HUMAN SERVICES,

CHILD DEVELOPMENT, CHILD CARE DVLP-QUALITY ASSUR

100% Federal Funds

State Fiscal

Year
Class/Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

2024 074-500589 Grants for Pub Assist and Reli 42117814 $1,625,000 $0 $1,625,000

2025 074-500589 Grants for Pub Assist and Reli 42117814 $0 $750,000 $750,000

Sub Total $1,625,000 $750,000 $2,375,000

05-95-42-421410-79060000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OP HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF, HHS: HUMAN

SERVICES, JUVENILE JUSTICE SERVICES, OJJDP

100% Federal Funds

State Fiscal

Year
Class/Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

2022 072-509073 Contracts for Prog Svc 42140614 $0 $0 $0

2023 072-509073 Contracts for Prog Svc 42140614 $74,200 $0 $74,200

2024 072-509073 Contracts for Prog Svc 42140614 $74,200 -$74,200 $0

Sub Total $146,400 -$74,200 $74,200

I  Overall Totall $13.204,647| $3,723,800| $16.928,447

New Hampshire Children's Trust, Inc.

SS-2022-OEHS-01-NEWHA-01-A02
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DocuSign Envelope ID; B7C07772-200A-4B2F-83CS-D89A3CC0724C

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #6 /
/

This Amendment to the New Hampshire Family Resource Center Facilitation Organization and Quality
Specialist contract is by and between the State of New Hampshire. Department of Health and Human
Services ("State" or "Department") and New Hampshire Children's Trust, Inc. ("the Contractor").,

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on June 30, 2021 (Item #41). as amended on October 13, 2021 (Item #20), on April 6, 2022 (Item #8), on
January 18, 2023 (Item #19), on June 28. 2023 (Item #24). and on September 6, 2023 (Item #14) the
Contractor agreed to perform certain sen/ices based upon the terms and conditions specified in the
Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, the Contract may be amended upon written
agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

NOWTHEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and coriditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

June 30. 2025 ^

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$16,928,447

3. Modify Exhibit B. Amendment #4, Scope of Services by replacing in its entirety with Exhibit B
Amendment #6, Scope of Services, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

•  4. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms, Section 1 to read:

1. This Agreement is funded by:

1.1. 11% New Hampshire Overdose Data to Action Program (NH 0D2A), as awarded
In January 2021, by the Centers For Disease Control And Prevention, Assistance
Listing Number 93.136, FAIN NU17CE924984.

1.2. 5% Kinship Navigator Programs, as awarded in September 2023, by the
Administration for Children and Families. Assistance Listing Number 93.556, FAIN
2301NHPKIN.

1.3. 2% Community Collal3orations to Strengthen and'Preserve Families, as awarded in
September 2018, by the Administration for Children and Families, Assistance
Listing Number 93.670, FAIN 90CA1858.

1.4. 19% Health Disparities Grant, as awarded in May 2021, by the Center for Disease
Control and Prevention, Assistance Listing Number 93.391, FAIN NH750T000031.

,  1.5. 1% ARPA Child Care Stabilization, as awarded in April 2021, by the Child Care
Development Block Grant. Assistance Listing Number 93.575, FAIN 2101NHCSC6..

1.6. 5% ARPA Child Care CCDF, as awarded in April 2021, by the Child Care
Development Block Grant. Assistance Listing Number 93.575, FAIN 2101NHCDC6.

1.7. 1% JJ Funds, as awarded in October 2018, by the Office of Juvenile Justice and
Delinquency Prevention, Assistance Listing Number 16.540,'FAIN 2019-JX-FX-
0052.

1.8. 14% Chi|d Care Development Quality Assure, as awarded In November 2021, by
the by the Child Care Development Block Grant, Assistance Listing Number 93.575,
FAIN 2201NHCCDD.

New Hampshire Children's Trust, Inc. A-S-1.3 Contractor Initiaisi ^
5/1/2024

SS-2022-DEHS-01-NEWHA-01-A06 Page 1 of4 Date
v7;12.23



DocuStgn Envelope ID: B7C07772-200A-4B2F-83C8-D89A3CC0724C

1.9. 2 % General Funds, Governor's Commission.

1.10. 40% General Funds.

is. Modify Exhibit 0 Payment Terms, Section 3 to read:

3. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred in the
fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in .accordance with the approved line item, as
specified in Exhibits 0-1, Budget Sheet, through E Exhibit C-31, Budget Sheet, Amendment #6,
SFY 2025:

6. Delete Exhibit C-17, Budget Sheet, Amendment #3, SFY 2024..

7. Add Exhibit C-27, Budget Sheet, Amendment #6,- SFY 2025, which is attached hereto and
incorporated by reference herein.

8. Add Exhibit C-28, Budget Sheet, Amendment #6, SFY 2025, which is attached hereto and
incorporated by reference herein.

9. Add Exhibit 0-29, Budget Sheet, Amendment #6, SFY 2025, which is attached hereto and
incorporated by reference herein.

10. Add Exhibit C-30, Budget Sheet, Amendment #6, SFY 2025, which is attached hereto and
incorporated by reference herein.

11. Add Exhibit C-31, Budget Sheet, Amendment #6, SFY 2025, which is attached hereto and
incorporated by reference herein.

New Hampshire Children's Trust, Inc. A-S-1.3 . Contractor Initial
5/1/2024

SS-2022-DEHS-01-NEWHA-01-A06 Page 2 of 4 Date
v7.12.23



DocuSign Envelope ID; B7C07772-200A-4B2F-83C8-D89A3CC0724C

All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
in full force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective upon Governor and Council approval. •

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

5/1/2024

Date

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

^DocuS^n«d by;

Title: .Interim Director - dphs

5/1/2024

Date

New Hampshire Children's Trust, Inc.
—OocuSlgntd by:

Title: Executive Director

New Hampshire Children's Trust, Inc.

SS-2022-DEHS-01-NEWHA-01-A06
eff. 7.12.23

A-S-1.3

Page 3 of 4



DocuSign Envelope ID: B7C07772-200A-4B2F^3C8.D89A3CC0724C

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

DocuSigned by:

obuto.,5/6/2024 (=?uH.vtVU.
'  ̂ 7<87>ta4«Q4H<0... ■

Date ^ Name^o^y" cuanno ^
Title; Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

New Hampshire Children's Trust, Inc. A-S-1.3

SS-2022-DEHS-01-NEWHA-01-A06 Page 4 of 4
eff. 7.12.23 •



DocuSign Envelope ID; B7C07772-200A^B2F-83C8-D89A3CC0724C

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
New Hampshire Family Resource Center Facilltatlon Organization and Quality Specialist

EXHIBITS

Amendment #6

Scope of Services

1. Statement of Work

1.1. The Contractor must provide services, in this agreement to the statewide
network of Family Resource Centers (PRCs) in New Hampshire as the
Facilitation Organization (FO). ,

1.2. The Contractor must ensure services are available Statewide via phone,
teleconferencing, and in-person meetings.

1.3. For the purposes of this agreement, all references to business hours must
mean Monday through. Friday from 8:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m., excluding state,
federal, and Contractor holidays;

.  1.4. The Contractor must participate in meetings with the Department on a quarterly
basis, or as otherwise requested by the Department.

1.5. Facilitation Organization: FRC Quality Designation

1.5.1. The Contractor must support each FRC with their self-assessment
to determine the level of readiness for each FRC to-receive the

Family Resource Center of Quality (FRC-Q) designation in
accordance with National Family Support Network (NFSN)
Standards of Quality for Family Strengthening and Support
(Standards).

,  1.5.2. ■ The Contractor must perform an individual assessment of any FRC
applying for FRC-Q designation to identify and document
deficiencies in meeting Standards and to assist each FRC
throughout the application process.

1.5.3. The Contractor must work with the Wellness and Primary
Prevention Council (WPPC) and Family Support NH (FSNH) to
provide support to FRCs in implementing and meeting the
Standards for the purpose of acquiring an FRC-Q designation. The
Contractor must ensure support, which includes, but is not limited
to:

1.5.3.1. Providing FRCs with information about the Standards
(https://wvrw.nationalfamilysupportnetwork.org/
standards-of-quality).

1.5.3.2. I Providing technical support to FRCs with the
implementation of Standards.

cs
SS-2022-DEHS-01-NEWHA-01-A06 Contractor Initials,

5/1/2024
New Hampshire Children's Trust. Inc. Page 1 of 22 Date



DocuSign Envelope ID; B7C07772-200A-4B2F-63C8-D89A3CC0724C

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
New Hampshire Family Resource Center Facilitation Organization and Quality Specialist

EXHIBIT B

Amendment #6

1.5.3.3. Providing technical support to PRCs with the
implementation of procedures to document practice of
Standards.

1.5.3.4. Providing training and technical assistance to PRCs with
the development of a written plan to meet Standards.

1.5.3.5. Traveling to any PRC requesting an in-person
consultation.

1.5^3.6. Assisting PRCs with completing the FRC-Q application.

1.5.3.7. Reviewing FRC-Q applications for accuracy.

1.5.3.8. Participating in the NFSN through a membership with
FSNH;and

1.5.3.9. Providing FRCs with information and trainings on
acquiring the FRC-Q designation.

1.5.4. The Contractor must collaborate with other FRC technical

assistance assets to assess the capacity of each FRC relative to
the core and optional standards defined by the WPPC.

1.5.5. The Contractor must work with'the Department and FRCs to
determine culturally appropriate process and outcome data>
collection and analysis.

1.5.6. The Contractor must assist FRCs with increasing operational
efficiencies.

1.5.7: The Contractor must provide technical assistance for oversight as
well as implementation of a quality improvement process.

1.5.8. The Contractor must utilize a Community of Practice sharing model
that allows FRC administrators and leadership to establish and
strengthen cooperation, collaboration, and informal mentoring
among FRCs.

1.5.9. The Contractor must educate policymakers, communities, and
.  community groups on FRC best practices.

1.5.10. The Contractor must ensure priority is given to FRCs providing
home services to:

1.5.10.1. Families for whom the Division for Children, Youth and
Families (DCYF) has issued a letter of concern;

1.5.10.2. Families with cases reported by DCYF as unfounded but
with reasonable concern; and '

SS-2022-DEHS-01-NEWHA-01-A06 Contractor Initials

Nev^ Hampshire Children'.s Trust, Inc. Page 2 of 22 Date
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DocuSign Envelope ID; B7C07772-200A-4B2F-83C8-D89A3CC0724C

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
New Hampshire Family Resource Center Facilitation Organization and Quality Specialist

EXHIBIT B

Amendment #6

1.5.10.3. Recipients of Temporary Assistance to Needy Families
(TANF) program services.

1.5.11. The Contractor must utilize the Family Support Data System
(FSDS), or other Quickbase applications, in collaboration with the
Department, for the purposes of supporting quality improvement
efforts, capable of collecting data on, but not limited to, the
following:

1.5.11.1. Identifying FRO locations statewide.

1.5.11.2. Identifying FRC-Q locations statewide.

1.5.11.3. Identifying FRC-Q designation expiration dates.

1.5.11.4. Documenting trainings provided to FRCs through: .

1.5.11.4.1. Title of each training;

1.5.11.4.2. Number of training attendees; and

1.5.11.4.3. Learning objectives for each training.

1.5.11.5. Identifying which FRCs have completed the FRC-Q self-
assessment. •

1.5.11.6. Identifying which FRCs have completed the FRC-Q
designation application.

1.5.11.7. Identifying FRCs with plans in place to become an FRC-
Q.

1.5.11.8. Identifying individuals who have received Standards
certification.

1.5.11.9. Documenting FRC and FRC-Q service outcomes.

1.5.11.10. Documenting FRC program and population priorities.

1.5.11.11. Identifying shared measurements among FRCs for
/family outcomes.

1.5.12. The Contractor must ensure collection of data in the FSDS and

support data quality, including, but not limited to, the following
demographics:

1.5.12.1. Name

1.5.12.2. Date of Birth

1.5.12.3. Race.

1.5.12.4. Ethnicity.

SS-2022-DEHS-01-NEWHA-01-A06 Contractor Initials
6S
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DocuSign Envelope ID; B7C07772-200A-4B2F-83C8-D89A3CC0724C

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
New Hampshire Family Resource Center Facilitation Organization and Quality Specialist

EXHIBIT 8

Amendment #6

1.5.12.5. Language.

1.5.12.6. Household income.

1.5.12.7. Marital status. - '

1.5.12.8. Age of parents or caregivers.

1.5.12.9. Sexual orientation and/or gender identity.

1.5.12.10. Town.

1.5.12.11. County.

1.5.12.12. Incarcerated parent.

1.5.12.13. Receipt of public benefits, which includes, but is not
limited to:

1.5.12.13.1. Supplemental Nutrition Assistance
Program (SNAP).

1.5.12.13.2. New Hampshire Child Care Scholarship.

1.5.12.13.3. Medicaid.

1.5.12.13.4. Social Security Disability Insurance
(SSDI).

1.5.12.13.5. Supplemental Security Income (SSI).

1.5.12.13.6. TANF.

1.5.12.13.7. Special Supplemental Nutrition Program
for Women, Infants, and Children (WIC).

1.5.13. The Contractor must provide upon request to the Department
summary reports, information, and individual participant outcomes
reporting.

1.5.14. The Contractor must coordinate data collection efforts for PRC

administered programs, which include, but are not limited to:

1.5.14.1. Comprehensive Family Support Services (CFSS).

1.5.14.2. NH Maternal, Infant, and Early Childhood Home Visiting
(MIECHV).

1.5.14.3. Healthy Families America (HFA) Home Visiting.

1.5.14.4. Community Collaborations

1.5.14.5. Early Childhood Regional System.

1.5.14.6. Kinship Navigation
SS-2022-OEHS-01-NEWHA-01-A06 Contractor Initials

6s

New Hampshire Children's Trust. Inc. Page 4 of 22 Date



DocuSign Envelope ID: B7C07772-200A-4B2F^3C8-D89A3CC0724C

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
New Hampshire Family Resource Center Facilitation Organization and Quality Specialist

EXHIBIT B

•  Amendment #6

1.5.15. The Contractor must provide Technical Assistance (TA) around
data integrity and develop reports related to the data collection.

1.5.16. The Contractor must provide training to all new FRC staff who enter
data into the Quickbase platform.

1.5.17. The Contractor must ensure data Integrity for the CFSS program
and Community Collaborations project and provide the necessary
reports monthly.

1.5.18. The Contractor must work with the Department to plan and align
other data collection efforts for any other new prograhis
administered through FRCs.

1.5.19. The Contractor must provide quality improvement training and
resources to FRCs and FRC-Qs, which includes, but is not limited
to; -

1.5.19.1. Collecting and disseminating FRC-Q best practices and
evidence-based program models.

1.5.19.2. Convening FRCs and FRC-Qs in a Community of
Practice sharing model.

1.5.19.3. Promoting collaboration through shared learning,
opportunities and training with FRCs and FRC-Qs
across state agencies in an effort to improve service
outcomes.

1.5.19.4. Increasing FRC administrative and operational
efficiencies.

1.5.19.5. Providing technical assistance to ensure that each FRC-
Q has a clear non-profit business model.

1.5.20. The Contractor may identify and assist FRCs and FRC-Qs in their.
.  applications for additional funding opportunities for FRC and FRC-
Q operations, programs, or quality improvement activities.

1.5.21. The Contractor must facilitate the FRC-Q designation review
process, which includes, but is not limited to:

1.5.21.1.. Assembling FRC-Q designation review teams devised of
members of the WPPC.

1.5.21.2. Providing reviewing teams with necessary site review
tools.

' 6s
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1.5.21.3. Coordinating PRC site reviews.

1.5.21.4. Recording, publishing, and reviewing team minutes.

1:5.21.5. Developing a form to gather review team meeting
feedback.

1.5.21.6. Communicating results to PRC applicants.

1.5.22. The Contractor must attend all WPPC meetings.

1.5.23. The Contractor must attend all PSNH monthly meetings and
provide progress reports on the number of PRCs achieving PRC-Q
designation.

1.5.24. The Contractor must attend any NPSN meetings as identified by
the Department.

1.5.25. The Contractor must utilize project management best practices .
throughout the contract term.

1.5.26. The Contractor must demonstrate implementation of a Community
of Practice sharing model among PRCs and PRC-Qs.

1.5.27. The Contractor must document specific trainings, guidance, and
supports for PRCs and PRC-Qs providing home visiting services.

1.5.28. The Contractor must maintain the PSDS data collection system in
accordance with this Scope of Services.

1.5.29. The Contractor must demonstrate an increase in the number of

PRCs receiving the PRC-Q designation.

1.5.30. The Contractor must support PRC-Q with the re-designation
process every three (3) years.

1.5.31. The Contractor must provide support to PRC-Q to develop a work
plan to increase best practice standards using the National
standards .of quality for family strengthening and support, data
outcomes, client satisfactory surveys and other evaluation tools.

1.5.32. The Contractor, in collaboration with the Department, must design a
PSNH satisfaction survey to ensure the Pacilitation Organization
meets the needs of the PRCs.

1.5.1. The Contractor must market PRCs to raise public
awareness, and to raise awareness among statewide and
potential partners.

SS-2022-DEHS-01-NEWHA-01-A06 Contractor Initials'
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1.5.2. The Contractor must ensure that public awareness activities
align and are coordinated with other statewide family
support and strengthening networks.

1.5.3. The Contractor must ensure consistent marketing and
branding of PRCs and FRC-Qs by targeting specific
audiences, including, but not limited to;
1.5.3.1. Community leaders and stakeholders.

1.5.3.2. Caregivers with young children.
1.5.3.3. Childcare centers and providers.
1.5.3.4. Family support agencies.

1.6. Bureau of Child Development and HeadStart Collaboration: Marketing and
Public Awareness

1.6.1. The Contractor must conduct a statewide marketing and awareness
campaign to promote to stakeholders, and the public and partners
the following programs and systems including, but not limited to:

1.6.1.1. Child Care Development Fund scholarship (see Child
Care Scholarship - Child Care Aware of NH (nh-
connections.org).

1.6.1.2. Regional Early Childhood System.

1.6.1.3. NH Connection website: www.nh-connections.org.

1.6.1.4. Head Start and Early Head Start.

1.6.2. The Contractor must manage the NH Connections consumer •
education website (see nh-connections.org). Managemerit
responsibilities include, but are not limited to:

1.6.2.1. Maintain the NH Connections website to ensure:

1.6.2.1.1. Links are navigable and working correctly.

1.6.2.1.2. Information on website is current.
4

1.6.2.1.3. Outdated information is updated or
removed on a daily basis, weekly basis,
as soon as the Contractor is made aware

of more current information by the
Department or by partners and as
requested by the Department.

'  1.6.2.1.4. Website, www.nh-connections.org, is
compliant with federal requirements for
the consumer education website, as

SS-2022-DEHS-01-NEWHA-01-A06 Contractor Initials
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detailed in the Office for Child Care

Guidelines.

1.6.3. The Contractor must increase public awareness of the quality
designation among childcare centers and/or providers through
content and/or collateral development and targeted messaging
and/or outreach.

1.6.4. The Contractor must provide marketing and public awareness to
ensure stakeholders, families, child care providers, social service
providers; local and state government officials and employees, and
employers are aware of, have access to, and utilize the child care
services, initiatives, training, technical assistance, and programs
provided by the Department, their contractors, and partners..
Marketing includes, but is not limited to;

1.6.4.1. A comprehensive marketing and branding guide for use
by staff and contractors delivering child care programs

^  aligned with Department guidelines.
1.6.4.2. Working with contractors to ensure a cohesive marketing

^  . plan that aligns with Department requirements.
1.6.4.3. Designing and developing content for monthly and

quarterly updates for various initiatives, as requested by
the. Department..

1.6.4.4. Creating a standardized template for PowerPoint
presentations, brochures, and additional resources, as
requested by the Department, that builds a recognizable
and consistent brand image.

1.6.4.5. Supporting the annual Celebration for Early Childhood
Professionals and the Celebration for Out-of-School

Time Professionals.

1.6.5. The Contractor must promote use and understanding of New
Hampshire Connections Information System (NHCIS) through
development of training tools and tip sheets.

1.6.6. The Contractor must promote the use and understanding of the
newly developed Family Information Network accessible through
the NH Connections website and hosted in the NHCIS.

1.6.7. The Contractor must develop and implement a plan, in
collaboration with the Department, to promote the following
programs and initiatives to providers, families, employers,

SS-2022-DEHS-01-NEWHA-01-A06 Contractor Initials
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contractors, service providers, and other stakeholders through
promotional pieces, social media, instructional tools, and videos, as
appropriate:

1.6.7.1. Granite Steps for Quality.

1.6.7.2. New Hampshire Child Care Scholarship Program.

1.6.7.3. Head Start and Early Head Start.

1.6.7.4. New Hampshire Early Childhood and Out-of-School
Time Credentialing System.

1.6.7.5. Other initiatives and projects identified by the
Department.

1.7. Facilitation Organization: Early Childhood Regional System

1.7.1. The Contractor must subcontract with the seven (7) Early
Childhood Regional Systems to support the National Standards of
Quality indicator of community strengthening.

1.7.2. The Contractor must support the Early Childhood Regional System
to develop strong and healthy communities by working
collaboratively with various stakeholders, such as PRC's, by
establishing formal partnerships in order to address community
issues and priorities and enhance early childhood care and
education (ECCE). Formal partnerships include, but are not limited
to:

1.7.2.1. Parent Leadership.

1.7.2.2. Family Resource Centers and home visiting programs.

1.7.2.3. Community Health" Centers and Health Providers.

1.7.2.4. Family Centered Early Supports and Services.

1.7.2.5. Regional Public Health Networks.

1.7.2.6. Nutrition Services agencies.

1.7.2.7. Head Start, Early Head Start, family or center-based
childcare.

1.7.2.8. Local educational agencies serving children birth to
eight, including before-school and after-school
programs, and public arid private schools.

6s
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1.7.2.9. Behavioral health system serving children and their
families.

1.7.2.10. Supports for children with disabilities and developmental
delays.

1.7.2.11. Economic assistance and employment support system.

1.7.2.12. Child welfare.

1.7.2.13. Other external community partners and/or public-private
partnerships as unique to each region (e.g.,
philanthropy, local government officials, Chamber of
Commerce, law enforcement officials, community
recreation, faith-based groups, housing services, and
local businesses).

1.7.3. the Contractor must establish and maintain an infrastructure to
support the seven (7) Early Childhood Regional System networks.

1.7.4. The Contractor must support capacity building and key indicators
for.Early Childhood Regional System to establish and maintain a
process to:

1.7.4.1. Ensure each of'the seven (7) early childhood regions has
a lead agency identified to coordinate localized partner
collaboration, initiatives, needs assessments and
reporting: ^

1.7.4.2. Maximize awareness of community resources available
in the slate, regionally, and nationally in order to reduce
gaps and duplication, increase localized planning and
coordination, in order to connect families with needed

services;

1.7.4.3. Enhance the quality of and increase access to ECCE
and community based family supports and expand the
use of evidence based or evidence informed practices;.

1.7.4.4. Prioritize partnerships and members from PRCs, Home
Visiting programs. School,.. Regional Public Health
Networks, and Family Advisory Council membership to
enhance ECCE coordination;

1.7.4.5. Improve and strengthen state-regional communication
including sharing of community priorities and needs as
well as'NH Department of Education (NHED) and.fiHHS
priorities and initiatives; and

SS-2022-DEHS-01-NEVVHA-01-A06 Contractor Initials v
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1.7.4.6. Identify shared measures of success, as agreed upon by
the Department, which include, but are not limited to:

1.7.4.6.1. Data collection and strategy mapping,

1.7.4.6.2. Performance measures.

1.7.4.6.3. Needs and gaps assessments
conducted or utilized by regions.

1.7.4.6.4. Training opportunities, attendance,_and
community partners.

1.7.4.6.5. Strategies and tools to measure success.

1.7.4.6.6. Technical assistance provided.

1.7.4.6.7. Quarterly reporting.

1.7.5. The Contractor must provide technical assistance for the Early
Childhood Regional System/Regional Leads, which includes, but is
not limited to:

1.7.5.1. Ensuring bi-directional communication between the
Departments and the Regional Leads through quarterly
meetings.

,1.7.5.2. Convening, coordinating, and supporting monthly
meetings of Early Childhood Regional System.

1.7.5.3. Developing and monitoring performance measures and
capacity building activities.

1.7.5.4. Providing training and coaching on collective impact
practices and models, which includes, but is not limited
to. Boundary Spanning Leadership.

1.8. Family Resource Center Infrastructure

1.8.1. The Contractor must subcontract with Family Resource Centers to
fund FRC infrastructure. FRC's receiving funding may utilize funds
to:

1.8.1.1. Prepare for FRC-Q designation.

1.8.1.2. Prepare for FRC-Q re-designation .

1.8.1.3. Enhance coordination with other early childhood systems.

1.8.1.4. Support evidence-based programs. _os

cs
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^ , 5/1/2024
New Hampshire Children's Trust, Inc. Page 11 of 22 Date



DocuSign Envelope ID: B7C07772-200A-4B2F-83C8-D89A3CC0724C

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
New Hampshire Family Resource Center Facilitation Organization and Quality Specialist

EXHIBIT B

Amendment #6

1.8.1.5. Support home visiting programs overseen by the Department
(CFSS, HFA).

1.8.1.6. Support recruitment and retention of family support home
visiting staff.

1.8.1.7. Support Kinship Navigation positions.

1.8.1.8. Support Community Health Weaker positions.

. 1.8.1.9. Support community coordination and primary prevention .
initiatives such as;

1.8.1.9.1. Community Collaborations.

1.8.1.9.2. Newborn Navigator programs.

1.8.1.9.3. ACERT.

1.8.2. The Contractor must ensure the distribution of funds is based on a

formula with FRC-Q designation.

1.8.3. The Contractor must provide funding to each FRC for administrative
needs to support the work of the FRC, which includes, but is not
limited to:

1.8.3.1. Executive Director and Chief Financial Officer Salaries.

1.8.3.2. Building repairs and maintenance.

1.9. Family Resource Centers: Kinship Navigation

1.9.1. The Contractor must fund and support positions within FRC's for the
purposes of supporting kinship caregivers who are caring for kin. The
Contractor must ensure:

1.9.1.1. Navigators are utilized within FRC-Qs and FRC's
working towards FRC-Q designation to provide support
to kinship caregivers who are caring for kin as a result of '
a placement; and ^

1.9.1.2. Navigators connect with kinship caregivers, in-person or
by other electronic means, such as FaceTime and Zoom,
for purposes that include, but are not limited to:

1.9.1.2.1. Assessing kinship caregiver needs.

1.9.1.2.2. Providing outreach, engagement, and
community support services and
referrals.

6s
SS-2022-DEHS-01rNEWHA-01-A06 Contractor Initials

New Hampshire Children's Trust, Inc. Page12of22 Date



DocuSign Envelope ID: B7C07772-200A-4B2F^3C8-D89A3CC0724C

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
New Hampshire Family Resource Center Facilitation Organization and Quality Specialist

EXHIBIT B

Amendment#6

1.9.1.2.3. Utilizing or creating peer support groups
for kinship care'givers.

1.9.2. The Contractor must provide training to Navigators to provide
consistency across Navigators through education and training,
consistent with:

1.9.2.1. DCYF:and

1.9.2.2. NHEASY.

1.9.3. The Contractor must maintain the training process and continue to
develop the Kinship Navigation position based on evaluation of the
program and staff performance.

1.9.4. The Contractor must provide evidence of a sufficient number of
Navigators through subcontract to ensure Statewide coverage.

1.9.5. The Contractor must maintain Navigator positions and kinship
Navigator support within each of the 11 DHHS District office
catchment areas in each year of this Agreement.

1.10. Family Resource Centers: Community Health Workers

1.10.1. The Contractor must subcontract with the statewide network of FRCs

to fund positions to establish a workforce of Community Health
Workers (CHWs) to provide direct services to priority populations
impacted by health disparities.

1.10.2. The Contractor must maintain a roster of the CHW workforce within

subcontract FRCs and provide that information to the Department's
Community Health Worker lead on a bimonthly basis.

1.10.3. The Contractor must maintain Community Health Worker positions
statewide within Family Resource Centers of Quality or those working
on Designation and within each of the 11 DHHS District office
catchment areas in each year of this Agreement.

1.10.4. The Contractor must allow and encourage CHWs to participate on the
NH CHW Coalition and the Department led CHW monthly Community
of Practice.

, 1.10.5. The Contractor must ensure that FRCs receiving funding for CHW's:

1.10.5.1. Complete Department-approved trainings such^as:

1.10.5.1.1. CHW training 8-9 week training course

1.10.5.1.2. NH EASY assisting clients to_apply
training
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'  1.10.5.1.3. NH EASY Bureau of Family Assistance
Overview.

1.10.5.2.. Are connected to their Regional Public Health
Network

1.10.6. PRC's may utilize CHW's as part of newborn navigation engagement
efforts in coordination with the CFSS program.

1.10.7. CHW's located at PRC's will Identify and help to mitigate barriers in
health care access such as transportation, language, childcare,
etcetera; and develop community relationships with local health
providers to promote PRC's and community based supports.

1.10.8. CHW's within PRC agencies will connect families, in-person or by
other electronic means, such as PaceTime and Zoom, with

community-based, agencies and supports through closed loop
and/or warm hand-off referrals for topics including, but not limited

■  to:

1.10.8.1. Screening for social determinants of health needs

1.10.8.2. Mental health supports.

1.10.8.3. Pood Insecurity

1.10.8.4. Health care referrals.

1.10.8.5. Substance use disorder supports.

1.10.8.6. Educational supports and services.

1.10.8.7; . Financial literacy.

1.10.8.8. Budgeting supports.

1.10.8.9. Employment Supports

.1.11. Family Resource Centers: Community Collaborations

1.11.1. The Contractor must work with the Department's Community
Collaborations initiative to • provide distribution of outreach
materials, training and education to the community about the
services offered through the Family Support programs and
CHWs, which includes, but is not limited to:

1.11.1.1. Printing outreach and education materials in additional
■. languages, such as Spanish, Nepalese,^ or other

languages to'support PRC engagement with jfarflflies.
SS-2022-DEHS-01-NEWHA-01-A06 Contractor Initials*^
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1.11.1.2. Prioritizing and implementing strategies that provide
engagement and education of early childhood
providers about PRCs and the services provided.

1.11:1.3. Promoting Family Leadership membership within
Regional Systems.

1.11.1.4. Prioritizing and implementing strategies that provide
engagement, and education of incarcerated parent
families on PRC services provided through
partnerships of activities with the Family Connections
Center at the New Hampshire Department of
Corrections.

1.11.2. The Contractor must prioritize, fund, and subcontract with the
three (3) Community Collaborations agencies within the following
Early Childhood Regional Networks to support ongoing cross-
sector coordination to support families:

1.11.2.1. Region 4: Manchester.

1.11.2.2. Region 5: Central NH, Lakes; and

1.11.2.3. Region 7: North Country.

1.11.3. The Contractor must support the Community Collaborations and
other Early Childhood Regions with utilizing collective impact
practices including but not limited to Boundary Spanning
Leadership to promote cross-system collaboration and enhance
relationships between PRCs, FRC-Qs, schools, Early Childhood
Regional Systems, child welfare and family service agencies,
businesses, philanthropic funders, and other organizations
providing family support and/or economic support services.

1.11.4. The Contractor must ensure that Community Collaborations
Early Childhood Regioris have processes in place to evaluate,
monitor, establish, and measure within each region:

1.11.4.1.. Direction: agreement on overall goals, aims, and
mission;

1.11.4.2. Alignment: organization and coordination of knowledge
and work; and

1.11.4.3. Commitment: shared responsibility for the group.

2. Exhibits Incorporated

2.1. The Contractor must use and disclose^ Protected Health InforrpSwn in
SS-2022-DEHS-01-NEWHA-01-A06 Contractor Initials ̂
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compliance with the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information (Privacy Rule) (45 CFR Parts 160 and 164) under the Health
Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA) of 1996, and in accordance
with the attached Exhibit I, Business Associate Agreement, which has been
executed by the parties.

2.2. The Contractor must manage all confidential data related to this Agreement in
accordance with the terms of Exhibit K, DHHS Information Security
Requirements.

2.3. The Contractor must comply with all Exhibits D through K, which are attached
hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

3. Reporting Requirements

Quarterly Reports

3.1. The Contractor must submit quarterly reports, or upon Department request, to
the Department and WPPC within fifteen (15) days following the end of the
reporting period, to ensure adequate and efficient service delivery. Quarterly
reports include, but are not limited to:

3.1.1. The number of FRC-Q designation applications received.

3.1.2. The number of FRC and FRC-Q site reviews performed.

3.1.3. The number of FRCs receiving the FRC-Q designation.

3.1.4. Status updates on FRCs applying for the FRC-Q designation
according to the FRCs individualized written plan.

3.1.5. A comprehensive training plan for each FRC-Q within ninety (90)
days of receipt of FRC-Q designation.

3.1.6. The number and topics of trainings provided to all FRCs and FRC-
Qs. , "

3.1.7. The number of FRC and FRC-Q staff trained.

,3.1.8. Progress made in developing shared family outcome measures.

3.1.9. The number of Navigator positions supported and/or funded.

3.1.10. The number of trainings delivered to Navigators.

3.2. The Contractor must submit a monthly Kinship Navigator enrollment report
within fifteen (15) days following the end of the reporting period, with a final
report due thirty (30) days following the contract completion date.

3.3. The Contractor must submit quarterly reports to the Department within fifteen
(15) days following the end of the reporting period, to ensure adeoGaf^ and
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efficient service delivery. Quarterly reports Include, but are not limited to:

3.3.1. The number of CHWs at each FRC, including any staffing changes and
identified funding sources to support CHW positions.

3.3.2. The number and type of trainings provided to FRC staff including Family
Support Staff, kinship navigators and CHWs.

3.3.3. The number and type of improvements to data collection, quality, and
reporting capacity for recipients which includes, but is not limited to:

3.3.3.1. Workforce support for data collection and reporting to ensure
collection of complete and representative data (e.g., race,
ethnicity, kinship, and incarceration).

3.3.3.2. Implemented strategies to educate FRC staff on the
importance of data to address disparities and inequities.

3.3.3.3. Developed plans for data quality assurance and
improvement.

3.4. The Contractor must use the NH Division of Public Health Services Equity
Review Toolkit. This toolkit will provide guidance on ensuring equity, including
Race, Ethnicity and Linguistic (REAL) and Sexual Orientation and Gender
Identity (SOGI) data collection, as well as community engagement.

3.5. The Contractor must submit quarterly Regional Leads data within fifteen (15)
days following the end of the reporting period, with a final report due thirty (30)
days following contract completion date, to ensure adequate and efficient
service delivery. Regional Leads quarterly reports must include, but are not
limited to:

3.5.1. Performance measures across all regions.

3.5.2. Evaluation strategies.

3.5.3. Technical assistance plan.

3.5.4. Training plan.

3.5.5. Project staffing assignments.

3.5.6. Partnerships engaged to support the regional networks.

Annual Reporting

3.6. The Contractor must provide a comprehensive annual report by June 30'^ of
each year. The annual report must summarize:

3.6.1. Participation;

3.6.2. Outcomes; ^ j
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3.6.3. Challenges:

3.6.4. Strengths; and

3.6.5. Identified needs for the upcoming fiscal year.

3.7. The Contractor must provide an annual satisfaction survey report to the
Department within thirty (30) days of the end of the calendar year.

4. Performance Measures

4.1. Within sixty (60) days of contract and amendment approval, the Contractor must
submit an Early Childhood Regional System Work Plan that includes specific
activities and timeline, including, but not limited to:

4.1.1.

4.1.2.

4.1.3.

4.1.4.

4.1.5.

4.1.6. Other partnerships engaged to support the regional networks.

4.2. The Contractor must demonstrate an increase in the number of PRCs receiving
FRC-Q designation or re-designation by at least four (4), from an established
baseline as of the contract effective date. Annual baselines are as follows:

4.2.1. Three (3) in State Fiscal Year 2022. ^
4.2.2. Three (3) in State Fiscal Year 2023.

4.2.3. Three (3) in State Fiscal Year 2024.

4.2.4. Three (3) in State Fiscal Year 2025.

4.3. The Contractor must provide a summary of Retrospective PFS-2 surveys
completed for the CFSS program and Community Collaborations projects.

4.3.1. Surveys must show percentage of types of concrete needs identified for
the families, when available.

4.3.2. Surveys must show what percentage of protective factors have been
increased using the retrospective survey.

4.4. The Contractor must actively and regularly collaborate with the Department to
enhance contract management, improve results, and adjust program delivery
and policy based on successful outcomes.

-DSG—US
SS-2022-DEHS-01-NEWHA-01-A06 Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
New Hampshire Family Resource Center Facilitation Organization and Quality Specialist

EXHIBIT B

Amendment #6

4.5. The Contractor may be required to provide other key data and metrics to the
Department in the aggregate and de-identified, including client-level
demographic, performance, and service data, upon Department request.

4.6. The Contractor must collect and share personally identifiable information with
the Department in accordance with the CFSS and Community Collaborations
program contracts including but not limited to ad hoc reports in a format
specified by the Department.

5. Additional Terms
/

5.1. Impacts Resulting from Court Orders or Legislative Changes

5.1.1. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future state or federal
legislation or court orders may have an impact on the Services described
herein, the State has the right to modify Service priorities and
expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve
compliance therewith.

"5.2. Federal Civil Rights Laws Compliance: Culturally and Linguistically Appropriate
Programs and Services

5.2.1. The Contractor must submit, within ten (10) days of the contract effective
date, a detailed description of the communication access and language
assistance services to be provided to ensure meaningful access to
programs and/or services to individuals with limited English proficiency;
individuals who are deaf or have hearing loss; individuals who are blind
or have low vision; and individuals who have speech challenges.

5.3. Credits and Copyright Ownership

5.3.1. All documents, notices, press releases, research reports, and other
materials prepared during or resulting from the performance of the
services of the Contract must include the following statement, "The
preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a
Contract with the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and
Human Services, with funds provided iri part by the State of New
Harripshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g.,'the United States Department of Health and Human,
Services."

5.3.2. All materials produced or purchased under the contract must have prior
approval from the. Department before printing, production, distribution,
or use.

5.3.3. The Department must retain copyright ownership for any and all original
rnaterials produced, including, but not limited to:

6S
SS.2022-DEHS-01-NEWHA-01.A06 Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
New Hampshire Family Resource Center Facilitation Organization and Quality Specialist

EXHIBIT B

Amendment #6

5.3.3.1. Brochures.

j  5.3.3.2. Resource directories.

5.3.3.3. Protocols or guidelines.

5.3.3.4. Posters.

5.3.3.5. Reports.

5.3.4. The Contractor must not reproduce any materials produced under the
contract without prior written approval from the Department.

5.4. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations

5.4.1; In the operation of any facilities for providing services, the Contractor
must comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal, state,
county, and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public
Officer or officers pursuant to laws which must impose an order or duty
upon the contractor with respect to the operation of the facility or the
provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental license or
permit must be required for the operatiori of the said facility or the
performance of the said services, the Contractor must procure said
license or permit, and must at all times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the
foregoing requirements, the Contractor hereby covenants and.agrees
that, during the term of this Contract the facilities must comply with all
rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the

:  Fire' Marshal and the local fire protection agency, and must be in
conformance with local building and zoning codes, by-laws, and
regulations.

5.5. Eligibility Determinations

5.5.1. If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility of individuals,
such eligibility determination must be made in accordance with
applicable federal and state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines,
policies, and procedures.

5.5.2. Eligibility determinations must be made on forms provided by the
Department for that purpose and must be made and remade at such
times as are prescribed by the Department.

5.5.3. In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the
Contractor must maintain a data file on each recipient of services
hereunder, which file must include all information necessary to support
an eligibility determination and such other information^-S^s the
Department requests. The Contractor must furnish the Depart n^^t with

SS-2022-DEHS-01-NEWHA-01-A06 Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
New Hampshire Family Resource Center Facilitation Organization and Quality Specialist

EXHIBIT B

Amendment #6

all forms and documentation regarding eligibility determinations that the
Department may request or require.

5.5.4. The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder,
as well as individuals declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing
regarding that determination. The Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees that all applicants for services must be permitted to fill out an
application form and that each applicant or re-applicant must be
informed of his/her right to a fair hearing in accordance with Department
regulations.

6. Records

6.1. The Contractor must keep records that include, but are not limited to:

6.1.1. Books, records, documents, and other electronic or physical data
evidencing and reflecting all costs and other expenses incurred by the
Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all income received
or collected by the Contractor.

6.1.2. All records must be maintained in accordance with accounting
procedures and practices, which sufficiently and properly reflect all such
costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original
evidence of costs, such as purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers,
requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of in-kind contributions,
labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by
the Department.

6.1.3. Statistical, enrollment, attendance, or visit records for each recipient of
services, which records must include all records of application and
eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each
such recipient), records regarding the provision of services, and all
invoices submitted to the Department to obtain payment for such
services.

6.1.4. Medical records on each patient/recipient of services. ■

6.2. During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and
any of their designated representatives must have access to all reports and
records maintained pursuant to the Contract for purposes of audit, examination,
excerpts, and transcripts. Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the
price limitation hereunder, the.Contract and all the obligations of the garties

a^^to behereunder (except such obligations as, by the terms of the Contract

SS-2022-DEHS-01-NEWHA-01-A06 Contractor Initials
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EXHIBIT B

Amendment #6

performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or survive the
termination of the Contract) must terminate, provided however, that if, upon

-  review of the Final Expenditure Report the Department must disallow any
expenses claimed by the Contractor as costs hereunder the Department must
retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such expenses as are
disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor. .

6.3. Website and Social Media

6.3.1.' The selected Vendor(s) must work with the Department's
Communications Bureau to ensure that any social media or'website
designed, created, or managed on behalf of the Department meets all
Department and NH DolT website and social media requirements and
policies.

6.3.2. The ̂selected Vendor(s) agrees Protected Health Information (PHI),
Personally Identifiable Information (Pll), or other Confidential
Information solicited either by sociarmedia or the website that is
maintained, stored or captured must not be further disclosed unless
expressly provided in the Contract. The solicitation or disclosure of PHI,
Pll, or other Confidential Information Is subject to Exhibit K: Department
Information Security Requirements and Exhibit I: DHHS Business
Associate Agreement and all applicable Department and federal laiw,
rules, and agreements. Unless specifically required by the Contract and
unless clear notice is provided to users of the website or social media,
the Contractor agrees that site visitation must not be tracked, disclosed
or used for website or social media analytics or marketing.

6.3.3. State of New Hampshire's Website Copyright

6.3.3.1. All right, title and interest in the State WWW site,
including copyright to all Data and information, shall
remain with the State of New Hampshire. The State of
New Hampshire shall also retain all right, title and
interest-in any user interfaces and computer instructions
embedded within the ywWV pages. All WWW pages and
any other Data or information shall, where applicable,
display the State of New Hampshire's copyright.

6s
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Exhibit C-27, Budget Sheet. Amendment #6, SFY 2025

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Contractor Name: New Hampshire Children's Trust. Inc

Budget Request for:

New Hampshire Family Resource
Center Fadlitaiion Organization and
Quality Specialist (Kinship, General)

Budget Period July1.2024^une 30. 2025

Indirect Cost Rate (if applicable)10%

Une Item Program Cost • Funded by DHHS

1. Salary & Wages S334.597

2. Fringe Benefits $83,649

3. Consultants $82,200

4. Equipment
Indirect cost rate cannot be applied to
equipment costs per 2 CFR 200.1 and
Appendix IV to 2 CFR 200. $.1,261

5.(a) Supplies • Educational $2,000

5.(b) Supplies-Lab SO

5.(c) Supplies - Pharrrtacy $0

5.(d) Supplies - Medical $0

S.(e) Supplies Office $2,925

6. Travel ■  $1,713

7. Software $80,000

8. (a) Other - Marfteting/ CommunicaUons $50,000.

8. (b) Other - Education and Training $47,000

8. (c) Other - Other (specify below) :  so

Occupancy $12,139

Telephone $1,767

Postage $857

Insurance $230

9. Subredpient Contracts $1,413,299

Total Direct Costs $2,113,637

Total Indirect Costs :  $211,363

TOTAL 1 SZ325.000

Contractor initial:(5
SS.2022-DEHS-01-NEWHA-01-A06 Date

5/1/2024
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Exhibit C-26. Budget Sheet. Amendment #6, SPY 2025

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Contractor Name; New Hampshire Children's TriisL IrK.

Budget Request for:

New,Hampshire Family Resource Center
Facilitation Organization and Quality
Specialist (Kinship. Federal)

Budget Period July 1, 2024-June 30. 2025

Indirect Cost Rate (if applicable)10%

r< Line Item Program Cost • Funded by DHHS

1. Salary & Wages 5109,465

2. Fringe Benefits 527,366

3. ' Consuttants 534,800

4. Equipment

Indirect cost rate cannot be applied to
equipment costs per 2 CFR 200; 1 and
Appendix IV to 2 CFR 200. $429.

5.(a) Supplies • Educational $704

5.(b) Supplies-Lab SO

S.(c) Supplies • Pharmacy 50

5.(d) Supplies • Medical $0

5.(e) Supplies Office $875

6. Travel $600

7. Software $93

8. (a) Other • Marketing/ Communications $0

8. (b) Other - Education and Training $0

8. (c) Other ■ Other (specify below) i  SO

Occupancy $5,350

Telephone $728

Postage $351

Insurance $75

9. Subrecipient Contracts SO

Total Direct Costs $180,837

Total Indirect Costs 518,164

TOTAL $199,000

SS-2022-DEHS-01-NEWHA-01-A06

■  [5ContractOf lniUal:S~-—

Date
5/1/2024
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Exhibit C-29. Budget Sheet. Amendment #6, SPi' 2025

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Contractor Name: New Hampshire Children's Trust. Inc

Budget Request for:

New Hampshire Family Resource Center
Facilitation Organization and Quality Specialist
(Community Collaboration. General Funds)

Budget Period July 1.2024-June 30, 2025

Indirect Cost Rate (if applicable)10%

Lino item Program Cost • Funded bv DHHS

1. Salary & Wages $54,495

2. Fringe Benefits $13,624

3. Consultants SO

4. Equipment

Indirect cost rate cannot be applied to
equipment costs per2CFR 200.1 and
Appendix IV to 2 CFR 200. $544

5.(8) Supplies • Educational $0

5.(b) Supplies - Lab SO

5.(c) Supplies - Pharmacy SO

5.(d) Supplies - Medical so

5.(6) Supplies Office $300

6. Travel $200

7. Software $1,500

8. (a) Other • Marl^eting/ Communications $0

8. (b) Other • Education and Training $18,000

8. (c) Other - Other (specify below) $0

Occupancy $1,969

Telephone $152

Postage $125

Other (please specify) $0

9. Subrecipienl Contracts SO

Total Direct Costs $90,909

Total Indirect Costs $9,091

TOTAL -  - $100,000

SS-2022-OEH S-01 -NE WHA-01-A06

r^s
Contractor Initial:^

Date
5/1/2024
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Exhi^t C-30, Budget Sheet. Amendment #6. SPY 2025

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Contractor Name: New Hampshire Children's Trust. Inc

Budget Request for:

New Hampshire Family Resource Center
Facilitation Organization end Quality
Specialist (Quality Assurance, Federal)

Budget Period July 1.2024-June 30, 2025

indirect Cost Rate (if applicable)10%

Line Item Program Cost > Funded by DHHS

1. Salary & Wages 5154,741

2. Fringe Benefits $38,685

3. Consultants SO

4. Equipment

Indirect cost rate cannot be applied to
equipment costs per 2 CFR 200.1 and
Appendix IV to 2 CFR 200. S75

S.(a) Supplies - Educational SO

5.(b) Supplies • Lab SO

S.(c) Supplies - Pharmacy SO

5.(d) Supplies - Medical SO

S.(e) Supplies Office $1,200

6. Travel $0

7. Software $0

d. (a) Other • Marketing/ Communications S149.454

8. (b) Other - Education and Training $0

8. (c) Other • Other (specify below) SO

Occupancy $3,121

Telephone $150

Postage S300

Other (please specify) SO

9. Subrecipient Contracts 1  $350,000

Total Direct Costs $697,727

Total Indirect Costs $52,273

TOTAL $750,000

SS-2022-DEHS-01-NEWHA-01-A06

Contractor Initial:

Date:
5/1/2024
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Exhibit C-31 Budget. Amendment #6

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Contractor Name: NH Children's Trust .

Budget Request for:

Center Facilitation Organization and
Quality Specialist (Health Disparities.
Federal)

Budget Period Julyt.2024-June 30, 2025

indirect Cost Rate (if applicable] ^0%

Line Item Program Cost - Funded by DHHS

1. Salary & Wages S5,100

2. Fringe Benefits Si,275

3. Consultants SO

4. Equipment
Indirect cost rale canrtot be applied lo
equipment costs per 2 CFR 200.1 and
Appendix IV to 2 CFR 200. SO

S.(a) Supplies • Educational SO

5.(b) Supplies - Lab $0

5.{c) Supplies - Pharmacy SO

5.(d) Supplies • Medical $0

5.(e) Supplies Office $0

6. Travel so

7. Software so

8. (a) Other • Marketing/ Communications so

8. (b) Other • Education and Training so

8. (c) Other - Other (specify below) so

Other (please specify) so

Other (please specify) so

Other (please specify) $0

Other (please specify) so

9. Subrecipient Contracts $386,988.

Total Direct Costs 5393,363

Total Indirect Costs 530,638

TOTAL 5424.000

SS-2022-DEHS-01-NEWHA-01-AOB

Contractor Initial:

Date:
5/1/2024



DocuSign Envelope ID: B7C07772-200A-4B2F-83C8.D89A3CC0724C

State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, David M. Scanlan, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that NEW HAMPSHIRE CHILDREN'S

TRUST, INC. is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on Fcbruar>' 09, 2010.

I further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretaiy of State's office have been received and is in good standing

as far as this office is concerned.

Business ID: 625893

Certificate Number: 0006595165

SI

Urn

o

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 4th day of March A.D. 2024.

David M. Scanlan

Secretaiy of State
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New Hampshire

>^Chlldren's Trust
f  New Hompshire chapter of chod auim
I  / America'

V

CERTIRCATE OF AUTHORITY

1, Mark Knights, Chair, Board of Directors, hereby certify that:

1. 1 am a duiy eiected Cierk/Secretary/Otficer of New Hampshire Children's Trust

2. The foiiowing Is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
heid on April 9, 2024, at which a quorum of the Directors/sharehoiders were present and voting.

VOTED: That Cliff Simmonds, Executive Director (may list more than one person) Is duly authorized on behalf of
New Hampshire Children's Trust to enter into contracts or agreements with the State

of New Hampshire and any of Its agencies or departments and further Is authorized to execute any and ail
documents, agreements and other Instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which
may In his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. 1 hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in fuii force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate Is attached. This authority remains valid for
thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority, i further certify that it is understood that the State of
New Hampshire wiii rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the
position(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any
limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation In contrayts^lth the State of New Hampshire,
all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

Dated: April 9, 2024
Signature of Eiected Officer
Name: Mark Knights
Title: Chair, Board of Directors

Rev. 03/24/20
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AC^D* CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE DATE (MM/DDTYVYY)

03/08/2024

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES

BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE QF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policylles) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder In lieu of such endorsementjs).

PRODUCER

E & S Insurance Services LLC

21 Meadowbrook Lane

P 0 Box 7425

Gilford NH 03247-7425

NAME*^^ Eleanor Spinazzola
(603)293-2791 (603)293-7188

AOMESS- E'6anorspinazzola@esinsurance.net
INSURER(S)AFFGROINO COVERAGE NAJC •

INSURER A
Twin City Fire Insuance Co 29459

INSURED

' New Hampshire Children's Trust Inc.

lOSb Louden Road Si^te 201

Concord NH 03301

INSURER B
Hartford Underwriters Insuranc 30104

INSURER C

INSURER 0

INSURER E

INSURER F

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 2024 REVISION NUMBER: ■

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED 8EL0WHAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD

INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS

CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.

EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

IflSR*
LTR

OTTO?UBFr
amTYPE OF INSURANCE POUCY NUMBER

POUCYEFF
IMM/PCVYYYYI

POUCY EXP
IMMPD/YYYYl UMITS.

X COMMERCIAL GENERAL UABIUTY

CUMMS-MAOE X OCCUR

EACH OCCURRENCE

PAMASETORgNTEO
PREMISES (Ea occmrence)

04SBAAC704g 05/09/2024 05/09/2025

MED EXP (Any en» p»r«ofi)

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY

GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPUES PER

PRO
JECTPOUCY

c Lfmi I ArrMCQT

LOC

OTHER:

GENERALAGGREQATE

PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGO

2.000.000

1,000.000

10,000

2,000.000

4,000,000

4,000.000

AUTOMOBILE UABIUTY

ANYAUTO

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
lEi »cdden»

BODILY INJURY (Pw p«fSOn)

OVWEO
AUTOS ONLY
HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

SCHEDULED

AUTOS
NON-OWNED

AUTOS ONLY

BODILY INJURY (Ptr Kcidtnt)

PROPERTY DAMAGE
(Ptt acddwn)

UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

OED

OCCUR

CLAIMS4AA0E

EACH OCCURRENCE

AGGREGATE

RETENTION S

WORKERS COMPENSATION

AND EMPLOYERS' UABIUTY

ANY WIOPRI£TORn»ARTNER«XECUTIVE

OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?
(Mandatory In NH)
II yo«, doacribo undor
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS Mow

STATUTE
OTH
ER

04WECAD02WK 05/09/2024 05/09/2025
E.L EACHACaOENT

1.000.000

E.L DISEASE ■ EA EMPLOYEE
1,000.000

E.L DISEASE - POUCY UMIT
1.000.000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS I VEHICLES (ACORD 101. Additional Ramarka Schadula, may ba attacliad H mora apaea la raqulrad)

Certificate holder is an additional insured (CGL) as required by a signed contract with the named insured. 30 day cancellation notice.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

State of New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

129 Pleasant St

Concord NH 03301

1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN

ACCORDANCE WITH THE POUCY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORtZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25(2016/03)

(S> 1988-201S ACORD CORPORATION. All.rights reserved.

Tho ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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New Hampshire Children's Trust

Mission Statement: The New Hampshire Children's Trust leads the drive to ensure safe, stable,

and nurturing relationships and environments for children by educating, advocating, and
collaborating.

Vision: We envision a New Hampshire where all children grow up free from abuse and neglect.
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New Hampshire
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NEW HAMPSHIRE CHILDREN'S TRUST, INC.

t

Financial Statements

For the Year Ended December 31, 2022

(With Independent Auditor's Report Thereon)
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M ELANSON

I

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Board of Directors

New Hampshire Children's Trust, Inc.

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of New Hampshire Children's Trust, Inc., which comprise

the statement of financial position as of December 31, 2022, and the related statements of

activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to

the financial statements.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the

financial position of New Hampshire Children's Trust, lnc.,as-df*Decem6erC:3a7a;20^2, and the
changes in its net assets and its cash flows for^the year-^then ended in accordance with

accounting principles generally accepted in the^Unite^States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance^ith auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America (GAAS) and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in

Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our

responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for

the Audit of the Financial Statern4nts section'df our report. We are required to be independent
of New Hampshire Children's jTrust,/Inc. ̂ and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in
accordance with the relevant ethical/requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit

opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statementsnesponsionnies oj ivianagemeni jor ine tirianciai ̂ zaiemenis j

Management is responsible fo^ the^ preparation and fair presentation of the financial //
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of / /
America, and for the design, implen^entati\n, a^nd maintenance of internal control relevant to the ../ /

/* /

Merrimack, New Hampshire

Andover, Massachusetts

Greenfield. Massachusetts

\
s.

Ellsworth, Maine 800.282.2^0 I melansoncpas.com
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Melanson

preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are

conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about New

Hampshire Children's Trust, Inc.'s ability to continue as a going concern for one year after the
date that the financial statements are issued.

Auditor^s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a

whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an

auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but

is not absolute assurance and, therefore, is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in

accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material

misstatement when It exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from

•fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements

are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate,

they would influence the judgment made by a r^asonaBlejjser-Baseda;.©^ the financial
statements.

In performing an audit in accordance^itl;i'GA^and Government Auditing Standards, we;
•  Exercise professional judgrnent and maintain-professional skepticism throughout the

audit.

/  /

Identify and assess the/risks of material misstatement of the financial, statements,
whether due to fraud or error; and design and perform audit procedures responsive to

those risks.,Such proceilures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

•  Obtain an understanc
f

audit procedures that

ing of; inteVnal control relevant to the audit in order to design

•/
/

are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of /{
expressing an opinion^ on. the effectiveness of New Hampshire Children's Trust Inc.'s
internal control.'Accordingly,^no such opinion is expressed. ;/

. \ . \ ' • • -/ f
Evaluate the appropriatenessujf a^ccbunting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting esti.mates made by management, as vyell as evaluate the overall

presentation of the financial statements. \ >
\ \ \ \ /

Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are.conditions or events, considered in the/'
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about New. Hampshire Children's Trust,'Inc.'s
ability to continue as a going concert} fo^a reasonable period of time.--

/

r

800.282.2440 I melansoncpas.com
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We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain
internal control-related matters that we identified during the audit.

Report on Summarized Comparative Information

We have previously audited New Hampshire Children's Trust, Inc.'s 2021 financial statements,
and we expressed an unmodified audit opinion on those audited financial statements in our
report dated October 27, 2022. In our opinion, the summarized comparative information
presented herein as of and for the year ended December 31, 2021 is consistent, in all material
respects, with the audited financial statements from which it has been derived.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
June 12, 2023 on our consideration of New Hampshire Children's Trust Inc.'s internal control
over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts and agreements, and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely
to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an^opinloh_on,tlT&ffecti^ness of New
Hampshire Children's Trust Inc.'s internal con^ol-'o^r financial reporting oT^compliance.
That report is an integral part of an audit perforn^d'in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering New Hampshire*Thildj:en's Trust Inc.'s internal control over financial
reporting and compliance.

Merrimack, New Hampshire

June 12, 2023

800.282.2440 I melansoncpas.com
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NEW HAMPSHIRE CHILDREN'S TRUST, INC

Statement of Rnancial Position

December 31, 2022

(with comparative totals as of December 31, 2021)

2022

Assets

Current Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents

Accounts receivable

Contributions receivable

Grants receivable

Prepaid expenses

Total Current Assets

Without Donor

Restrictions

S  1,319,055

6,073

704,785

2,029,913

With Donor

Restrictions

141,189

2022

Total

1,460,244

6,073

105,000 105,000

704,785

246,189 2,276,102

2021

Total

1,499,772

500

100,000

372,093

2,090

1,974,455

Noncurrent Assets:

Loan receivable

Property and equipment, net

Beneficial interest held in trust

Operating right-of-use asset, net

Security deposit

Total Noncument Assets

Total Assets

10,302

32,180

254,234

7,020

303,736

1,531,459

1.531.459

10,302

32,180

1,531,459

254,234

7,020

1,835,195

10,302

25,023

1,841,236

2.520

$  2,333,649 $ 1,777,648 5 4,111,297 $ 3,853,536

Liabilities and Net Assets

Current Liabilities:

Accounts payable

Accrued expenses

Refundable advance

Contract liabilities

Current portion of operating lease liability

Total Current Liabilities

Noncurrent Liabilities:

Operating lease liability, net of current portion

Total Noncurrent Liabilities

Total Liabilities

S  225,505

54,187

733,093

179,340

47,712

1,239,837

207,091

207,091

1,446,928

225,505

54,187

733,093

179,340

47,712

1,239,837

207,091

207,091

1,446,928

161,090

47,154

726,000

123,428

1,057,672

1,057,672

Net Assets;

Without donor restrictions:

Undesignated

Board-designated

With donor restrictions:

Time or purpose restricted

Beneficial interest held in trust

Total Net Assets

Total Liabilities and Net Assets

362,341

524,380

886,721

$  2,333,649

246,189

1,531.459

1,777,648

1,777,648

362,341

524,380

246,189

1,531,459

2,664,369

284,559

524,380

145,689

1,841,236

2.795,864

5  4,111,297 5 3,853,536

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

4



DocuSign Envelope ID: B7C07772-200A-482F-83C8-D89A3CC0724C

NEW HAMPSHIRE CHILDREN'S TRUST, INC.

Statement of Activities

For the Year Ended December 31, 2022

(with summarized comparative totals for the year ended December 31, 2021)

2022

Without Donor With Donor 2022 2021

Restrictions Restrictions Total 'Total

Support and Revenue

Support: .

Contributions , S  861,484 S  252,718 S  1,114,202 $  444,494

Grants 3,160,560 3,160,560 2,004,852

Designated endowment distributions 46,266 - 46,266 48,420

In-kind contributions 61,129 - 61,129 8,704

Revenue: •

Service fees 557,497 -  • 557,497 1,507,037

Net Assets Released From Restrictions 152,218 (152,218) - -

Total Support and Revenue 4,839,154. 100,500 4,939,654 4,013,507

Operating Expenses

Prc^ram Services:

Family strengthening and support 3,858,654 -
3,858,654 2,962,280

Community education and advocacy 458,162 - 458,162 340,578

Total Program Services 4,316,816 - 4,316,816 3,302,858.

Supporting Services:
269,813General and administrative 251,495 - 251,495 ,

Fundraising 256,891 - 256,891 181,755

Total Supporting Services 508,386 508,386 451,568

Total Operating Expenses 4,825,202 4,825,202 3,754,426

Change in Net Assets from Operations 13,952 100,500 114,452 259,081

Nonoperating Activities

Loss on disposal of assets (5,476) -
(5,476) (10,380)

Interest 2,471 -
2,471 810

Change in beneficial interest (See Note 6) 66,835 ^  (309,777) (242,942) 308,416

Total Nonoperating Activities 63,830 (309,777) (245,947) 298,846

Change in Net Assets 77,782 (209,277) (131,495) 557,927

Net Assets, Beginning of Year 808,939 1,986,925 2,795,864 2,237,937

Net Assets, End of Year $  886,721 $  1,777,648 S  2,664,369 . $  2,795,864

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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NEW HAMMHME CHaOHCN'S TRUST, INC

Sattmtnt of Functional Exptntai

For the Year Ertded December 31, 2022

(with tummarited comparative COUli for the yea r ended December 31, 2021)

2022

Program Seivicet SupportJn|_Senrfc^

Family Community ToUl Total

Strengthening Education Program General and Supporting 2022 2021

andSuDoen and Advocacy Services Admfnistratrve Fiindriisine Services Total Total

Penennel erpense:

Satarfei S  727.734 S  100,420 S  828,154 5  139,428 S  151,047 5 290,475 5  1,118.629 5  920,912

Payieil taict 67,092 807 67399 7,747 13374 21.221 89,120 70302

Employoe berwfita 91.110 4.114 95.224 12.781 23 164 35 945 131.169' 135.848

Subtotal peitonnel etcpenae WS,936 105,341 991,277 !  159,956 187.685 347.M1 1,338,918 1,127,262

Awaidt 50 2.541 2.591 2,591 300

Board experaes 105

Conferencet hotted 1,292 1,292 2,095 337 2,432 3,724 17,492

Duet and tubtcrfpUeni 3,222 3,222 4,950 1,071 6,021 9,243 6,903

Depreciation 6,085 6,085 6,085 3339

Educatiorwl luppllet U,1SS 2,213 13,398 13398 10351

Equipment 3,675 199 3,874 2,152 777 2,929 6403 6,871

Event ipace rental . 184

Crant distribution 2,316,066 21,84S 2,337,931 2,337,931 1,735,917

Itrfermatien techneiogv 8,480 258 8.738 8.796 1,640 10,436 19,174 9341

In-kind dortatioru;

Meeting tpace 2,346

Subscription lees 1,158

' Suppliet 61,129 61,129 61,129 5,200

Insurance S,731 29S 6,026 2,123 1,240 3,363 9,389 2,325

Marketing, branding, and web design 25,919 308,467 334,386 SO 21,144 21,194 355380 216,816

Miscellaneous 2,138 2S 2,163 826 3,243 4,069 6,232 1,872

Occupancy S6,840 .  2,330 59,170 7,520 11,897 19,417 78,587 71,302

Office expense 34.090 12.S29 46,619 14,465 11,854 26319 72,938 39,119

Postage and mailing 2,117 35 2,152 325 ' 3,601 3,926 6,078 5,717

Printing and copying 1,271 242 1,513 464 464 1,977 8,161

Professional and contracted sertdces 329,444 3316 332,960 34,862 525 35387 368347 441.640

Prtifessional development 9I,SS9 350 91,939 4,244 5,155 9,399 101,338 13,545

Program supplies S70 570 570 14,802

Telephorte artd iniertset 6,S47 221 6,768 8S9 1,346 2,205 8,973 8,735

Travel 11.393 296 11389 2.137 2.371 4.508 16.197 3.423

Total S  3.6S8.6S4 S  4S8,162 S  4.316.816 S  251,495 5  256,891 5 508.386 5  4,825.202 5  3.754.426

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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NEW HAMPSHIRE CHILDREN'S TRUST, INC.

Statement of Cash Flows

For the Year Ended December 31, 2022

(with comparative totals for the year ended December 31, 2021)

Cashflows From Operating Activities

Change in net assets

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets

to net cash provided (used) by operating activities:

Depreciation

Loss on disposal of fixed assets

Amortization of operating right-of-use assets

Change in beneficial Interest held in trust

*' Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Accounts receivable

Contributions receivable

Grants receivable

Prepaid expenses

Accounts payable

Accrued expenses

Refundable advance

Contract liabilities

Operating lease liability

Net Cash Provided (Used) By Operating Activities

Cash Flows From Investing Activities

Payment of security deposit

Purchases of fixed assets

Net Cash Used By Investing Activities

Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year

Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year

2022

$. (131,495)

6,085

5,476

8,322

309,777

(5,573)

(5,000)

(332,692)

2,090

64,415

7,033

7,093

55,912

(7.753)

(16,310)

(4,500)

(18.718)

(23,218)

(39,528)

,  1,499,772

$  1,460,244

2021

$  557,927

3,539

10,380

(238,485)

22,375

(100,000)

(125,071)

(176)

1,293

(2,934)

726,000

5,914

860,762

860,762

639,010

$  1,499,772

The accompanying notes are an integral part of'these financial statements.
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NEW HAMPSHIRE CHILDREN'S TRUST, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements

For the Year Ended December 31, 2022

1. Organization

Vision for New Hampshire - We envision a New Hampshire where all children grow up
free from abuse and neglect.

Mission - We lead the drive to ensure safe, stable, and nurturing relationships and
environments for children by educating, advocating, and collaborating.

New Hampshire Children's Trust, Inc. (the Organization) Is mandated as the Governor's
Designated Statewide Prevention Agency under Community-Based Child Abuse
Prevention (CBCAP) as the New Hampshire chapter of Prevent Child Abuse America
(PCAA), and as a member of the National Alliance of Children's Trust and Prevention
Funds (the Alliance). Founded in 1986 as the New Hampshire Children's Trust Fund, a
quasi-governmental organization, the agency transltioned to New Hampshire Children's
Trust, Inc., a 501(c)(3) nonprofit corporation, in 2011.

The Organization impacts the lives of children and families through the follo\wing
programs:

•  Family Strengthening and Support - Investments in primary prevention are essential
to building a New^Hampshire where children grow up free from abuse and neglect,
and where all families have access to comprehensive and responsive supports, so
they are healthy,' learning, and thriving now and In the future. The Organization
operationallzes this strategy by providing comprehensive supports and services to
mission-driven organizations. As New Hampshire's Family Resource Center
Facilitation Organization & Quality Specialist (FO), the Organization. coordinates
resources and .public awareness activities, and provides training and technical
assistance for the implementation of operational quality control standards for
Family Resource Centers (FRC) statewide to standardize practices and service
delivery across programs. The Organization developed, implemented, and oversees
New Hampshire's Kinship Navigation Program, which provides formal supports and
services to kinship families statewide. Additionally, the Organization developed,
implemented, and manages New Hampshire's Family Support Data System (FSDS), a
common platform for agencies to track and report on program data and family
outcomes. Data derived from FSDS is used to inform actions and service delivery.
The Organization adheres to the Strengthening Families Framework and the
Essentials for Childhood Framework to create the context for healthy children and
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families through programs, policy, and social norms change with the ultimate goal

being increased opportunities for all New Hampshire children and families.

•  Community Education and Advocacy - This strategy focuses on the community and

society domains of public health social ecological framework. Informed by the latest

research, best practices, and emerging best practices in child abuse and neglect

prevention, it provides education and support to elected officials; community, faith

and business leaders; parents; providers; and concerned citizens. It includes public
education and awareness campaigns such as BE PREVENTION, Kinship Navigation,

Family Support NH, and creates pathways for participant engagement through
activity books and other materials so children can thrive in safe, stable, and
nurturing environments.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The following is a summary of significant accounting policies used in preparing and

presenting the accompanying financial statements.

Basis of Financial Statement Presentation

The financial statements of the Organization have been prepared on the accrual basis in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America (GAAP).

Change in Accounting Principle

ASU 2016-02, Leases

Effective January 1, 2022, the Organization adopted Financial Accounting Standards

Board (FASB) Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) 842, Leases. The Organization

determines if an arrangement contains a lease at Inception based on whether the

Organization has the right to control the asset during the contract period and other facts
and circumstances. The Organization elected the package of practical expedients

permitted under the transition guidance within the new standard, which among other
things, allowed it to carry forward the historical lease classification. The Organization
elected the short-term lease recognition exemption for all leases that qualify.
Consequently, for those leases that qualify, the Organization will not recognize right-of-
use assets or lease liabilities on the Statement of Financial Position. The Organization

generally does not have access to the rate implicit in the lease and, therefore, the
Organization utilizes the risk-free rate as the discount rate.

The adoption of ASC 842 resulted in the recognition of a right-to-use asset and an

operating lease liability as of January 1, 2022. Results for periods beginning prior to

January 1, 2022 continue to be reported in accordance with the Organization's historical
accounting treatment. The adoption of ASC 842 did not have a material impact on the
Organization's results of operations and cash flows.
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See Summary of Sigriificant Account Poiicies, Leases, for further discussion of the effects
of adopting ASC 842 on the Organization's significant.account policies.

ASU 2020-07, Contributed Nonfinancial Assets

In 2022, the Organization retrospectively adopted Accounting Standards Update (ASU)

2020-07, Not-for-Profit Entities (Topic 958): Presentation and Disclosures by Not-for-

Profit Entities for Contributed Nonfinancial Assets. The new guidance requires nonprofit

entities to present contributed nonfinancial assets-as a separate line item in the

Statement of Activities, apart from contributions of cash or other financial assets. The

standard also increases the disclosure requirements around contributed nonfinancial

assets, including disaggregating by category the types of contributed nonfinancial assets

a nonprofit entity has received. Adoption of this standard did not have a significant
impact on the financial statements, with the exception of increased disclosure.

Comparative Financial Information

The accompanying financial statements include certain prior-year summarized

comparative information in total, but not by net asset class. Such information does not

include sufficient detail to constitute a presentation in conformity with GAAP.

Accordingly, such information should be read in conjunction with the audited financial

statements for the year ended December 31, 2021, from which the summarized

information was derived.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

All cash and highly liquid financial instruments with original maturities of three months

or less, and which are neither held for nor restricted by donors for long-term purposes,

are considered to be cash and cash equivalents.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable consist primarily of noninterest-bearing amounts due for services

and programs. The adequacy of the allowance for doubtful accounts for receivables is

reviewed on an ongoing basis by the Organization's management and adjusted as required

through the provision for doubtful accounts (bad debt expense). Management has
determined that no allowance is necessary.

Contributions Receivable

Unconditional contributions that are expected to be collected within one year are

recorded at net realizable value. Unconditional contributions that are expected to be

collected in future years are initially recorded at fair value using present value

techniques incorporating risk-adjusted discount rates designed to reflect the

assumptions market participants would use in pricing the asset. In subsequent years,

amortization of the discounts is included in contribution revenue in the Statement of

Activities. The allowance for uncollectable contributions is based on historical

experience, an assessment of economic conditions, and a review of subsequent

10
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collections. Contributions are written off when deemed uncollectable. Management has
determined that no allowance is necessary.

Grants Receivable

Grants receivable, that is, those with a measurable performance or other barrier, and a

right of return, are not recognized until the conditions on which they depend have been
substantially met. Amounts recorded as grants receivable represent cost-reimbursable

contracts and grants, which the incurrence of allowable qualifying expenses and/or the

performance of certain requirements have been met or performed. The allowance for

uncollectible grants receivable Is based on historical experience and a review of
subsequent collections. Management has determined that no,allowance is necessary.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment additions over $2,500 are recorded at cost, if purchased, and at
fair value at the date of, donation, if donated. Depreciation is computed using the

straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets ranging from 3 to 7

years. When assets are sold or otherwise disposed of, the cost and related depreciation

is removed, and any resulting gain or loss is included In the Statement of Activities.

Costs of maintenance and repairs that do not improve or extend the useful lives of the

respective assets are expensed.

The carrying values of property and equipment are reviewed for impairment whenever

events or circumstances indicate that the carrying value of ah asset may not be

recoverable from the estimated future casK flows expected to result from its use and
eventual disposition. When considered impaired, an impairment loss is recognized to

the extent carrying value exceeds the fair value of the asset. There were no indicators of

asset impairment in 2022 or 2021.

Beneficial Interest Held in Trust

The Organization is the beneficiary of an agency endowment fund held at the New

Hampshire Charitable Foundation. The beneficial interest in the trust is reported at its

fair value, which is estimated as the fair value of the underlying trust assets.

Distributions of income from the trust assets are to be used to plan and initiate

programs to prevent child abuse and neglect. The value of the beneficial interest in the

trust is adjusted annually for the change in its estimated fair value. Those changes in

value are reported as changes in net assets with donor restrictions. The assets in the

trust will never be distributed to the Organization.

Leases

The Organization determines if an arrangement is a lease, or contains a lease, at

inception of a contract and when the terms of an existing contract are changed. The

Organization recognizes a lease liability and a right-of-use (ROD) asset at the

commencement date of the lease. The lease liability is initially and subsequently

recognized based on the present yalue.of its future lease payments. Variable payments

11
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are included In the future lease payments when those variable payments depend on an
index or a rate. The Organization generally does not have access to the rate implicit in
the lease and, therefore, the Organization utilizes a risk-free rate as the discount rate at
the lease commencement date for all classes of underlying assets. The ROU asset is
subsequently measured throughout the lease term at the amount of the remeasured

lease liability {i.e., present value of the remaining lease payments), plus unamortized
initial direct costs, plus (minus) any prepaid (accrued) lease payments, less the
unamortized balance of lease Incentives received, and any impairment recognized.
Lease cost for lease payments is recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Organization has elected, for all underlying classes of assets, to not recognize ROU
assets and lease liabilities for short-term leases that have a lease term of 12 months or

less at lease commencement, and do not include an option to purchase the underlying
asset that the Organization is reasonably certain to exercise. The Organization
recognizes lease costs associated with short-term leases on a straight-line basis over the
lease term.

The Organization has lease agreements with lease and non-lease components, which
are generally accounted for separately. The Organization has elected, for all underlying
classes of assets, to account for each separate lease component of a contract and its
associated non-lease components (repairs and maintenance) as a single lease
component. For arrangements accounted for as a single lease component, there may be

variability in future lease payments as the amount of the non-lease corhponents is
typically revised from one period to the next. These variable lease payments are
recognized in operating expenses in the period in which the obligation for those

payments was incurred.

Net Assets

Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions

Net assets available for use in general operations .and not subject to donor (or certain
grantor) imposed restrictions. The Board has designated, from net assets without donor
restrictions, net assets for an operating reserve.

Net Assets With Donor Restrictions

Net assets subject to donor (or certain grantor) imposed restrictions. Some donor-
imposed restrictions are temporary in nature, such as those that will be met by the
passage of time or other events specified by the donor. Other donor-imposed
restrictions are perpetual in nature, where the donor stipulates that resources be

maintained in perpetuity. Donor-imposed restrictions are released when a restriction

expires, that'is, when the stipulated time has elapsed, when the stipulated purpose for
which the resource was restricted has been fulfilled, or both. The Organization
recognizes revenue from contributions and grants that were initially conditional, which
became unconditional with restrictions during the reporting period, and for which those

12
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restrictions were met during the reporting period, as net assets without donor

restrictions.

Revenue and Revenue Recognition

The Organization recognizes contributions' when cash, securities, or other assets, an

unconditional promise to give, or a notification of a beneficial interest is received.

Conditional promises to give, that is, those with a measurable performance or other

barrier, and a right of return, are not recognized until the conditions on which they

depend have been substantially met.

A portion of revenue is derived from cost-reimbursable contracts and grants, which are

conditioned upon certain performance requirements and/or the Incurrence of allowable
qualifying expenses. Amounts received are recognized as revenue when the

Organization has incurred expenditures in compliance with specific contract or grant

provisions. Amounts received prior to incurring qualifying expenditures are reported as

rMundable advances in the Statement of Financial Position.

Revenue derived from providing program services is recognized as the services are

provided. Program service fees paid in advance are deferred to the period to which they

relate. Payment for trainings and conferences Is required before the service is provided

and is recorded as a contract liability until the performance obligation is met. Due to the

nature and timing of the performance and/or transfer of services, certain contract

liabilities at December 31 of each year are recognized in the following year.

Donated Services and In-Kind Contributions

Volunteers contribute significant amounts of time to program services, administration,

and fundraising and development activities; however, the financial statements do not

reflect the value of these contributed services because they do not meet recognition

criteria prescribed by GAAP. GAAP allows recognition of contributed services only if

(a) the services create or enhance nonfinancial assets, or (b) the services wpuld have
been purchased if not provided by contribution, require specialized skills, and are

provided by individuals possessing those skills. Donated professional services are

recorded at the r,espective fair value of the services received. Contributed goods are
recorded at fair value at the date of donation and as expenses when placed In service or

distributed. Donated use of facilities is reported as a contribution and as an expense at

the estimated fair value of similar space for rent under similar conditions. If the use of
the space is promised unconditionally for a period greater than one year, the amount is

reported as a contribution and an unconditional promise to give at the date of the gift,
and the expense is reported over the term of use.

Functional Allocation of. Expenses

The costs of providing the Organization's various programs and activities have been

summarized on a functional basis in the Statement of Activities. The Statement of

Functional Expenses presents the natural classification detail of expenses by function.

13
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Certain categories of expenses are attributed to more than one program or supporting

function. Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated among the programs and

supporting services benefited on a reasonable basis that is consistently applied.

Expenses that relate solely to the functional categories are directly charged, however,

there are certain expenses that are allocated. Expenses that are allocated include

utilities, repairs and maintenance, depreciation, certain insurances, interest, salaries

and wages, benefits, and payroll taxes, which are allocated based on time and effort

estimates.

Measure of Operations

The Statement of Activities reports all changes in net assets, including changes in net

assets from operating and nonoperating activities. Operating activities consist of those

items attributable to the Organization's ongoing programs and services. Nonoperating

activities are limited to resources outside of those programs and services and are

comprised of non-recurring gains and losses on sales and dispositions, interest, and

changes in the beneficial interest held in trust.

Income Taxes

The Organization has been recognized by the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) as exempt

from federal income taxes under Internal Revenue Code (IRC) Section 501(a) as an

organization described in IRC Section 501(c)(3), qualifies for charitable contribution

deductions, and has been determined not to be a private foundation. The Organization

is annually required to file a Return of Organization Exempt from Incorne Tax (Form 990)
with the IRS. In addition, the Organization is subject to income tax on net income that is

derived from business activities that are unrelated to its exempt purpose.

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management

to make estirnates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and

liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial

statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting

period. Actual results may differ from those estimates.

Financial Instruments and Credit Risk

Deposit concentration risk is managed by placing cash and money market accounts with

financial institutions believed to be creditworthy. The Organization carefully manages Its

bank accounts and monitors deposits to ensure insurance limits are not exceeded. To

date, no losses have been experienced in any of these accounts. Credit risk associated

with receivables is considered to be limited due to high historical collection rates.

Fair Value Measurements

Certain assets and liabilities are reported at fair value in the financial statements. Fair

value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in

an orderly transaction in the principal, or most advantageous, market at the

measurement date under current market conditions regardless of whether that price is

14
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directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. Inputs used to

determine fair value refer broadly to the assumptions that market participants would

use in pricing the asset or liability, including assumptions about risk. Inputs may be

observable or unobservable. Observable inputs are inputs that reflect the assumptions

market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability based on market data

obtained from sources Independent of the reporting entity. Unobservable inputs are

inputs that reflect the reporting entity's own assumptions about the assumptions

market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability based on the best

information available. A three-tier hierarchy categorizes the inputs as follows:

•  Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or

liabilities that are accessible at the measurement date.

•  Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable

for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly. These include quoted prices for

similar assets or liabilities in active markets, quoted prices for identical or similar
assets or liabilities in markets that are not active, inputs other than quoted prices

that are observable for the asset or liability, and market-corroborated inputs.

•  Level 3 - Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. In these situations, inputs are

developed using the best information available in the circumstances.

In some cases, the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability might

be categorized vyithin different levels of the fair value hierarchy. In those cases, the fair

value measurement is categorized in its entirety .at the same level of the fair value

hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.

Assessing the significance of a particular input to entire measurement requires

judgment, taking into account factors specific to the asset or liability. The categorization

of an asset or liability within the hierarchy is based upon the pricing transparency of the

asset or liability and does not necessarily correspond to the assessment of the quality,

risk, or liquidity profile of the asset or liability.

New Accounting Standards to be Adopted in the Future

Credit Losses

In June 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-13, Measurement of Credit Losses on Financial

Instruments. The ASU requires a financial asset (including trade receivables) measured

at amortized cost basis to be presented at the net amount expected to be collected.

Thus, the Statement of Activities will reflect the measurement of credit losses for newly

recognized financial assets, as well as the expected increases or decreases of expected

credit losses that.have taken place durjng the period. This ASU will be effective for the

Organization for the year ending December 31, 2023. The Organization is currently in

the process of evaluating the impact of adoption of this ASU on the financial

statements.

15
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3. Liquidity and Availability

Financial assets available for general expenditure, that is, without donor or other

restrictions limiting their use, within one year of the date of the.Statement of Financial

.  Position, were comprised of the following at December 31, 2022 and 2021:

2022 2021

Financial assets at year-end: ,

Cash and cash equivalents

Accounts receivable

Contributions receivable

Grants receivable-

Loan receivable

Beneficial interest held in trust

Total financial assets

Less amounts not available to be used within one year:

Loan receivable

Board-designated reserve

Net assets with donor restrictions:

Beneficial interest held In trust

Total financial assets available within one year

Additional liquidity resources:

Bank line of credit.

Total financial assets and liquidity resources

available within one year

$  1,460,244 $ 1,499,772

6,073

105,000

704,785

10,302

1,531,459

3,817,863

.  (10,302)

(524,380)

300,000

500

100,000

372,093

10,302

1,841,236

3,823,903

(10,302)

(524,380)

(1,531,459) (1,841,236)

1,751,722 1,447,985

300,000

$  2,051,722 $ 1,747,985

Time and purpose restricted net assets, included in net assets with donor restrictions,

are expected to be met In less than one year and, therefore, are available for spending.
1

The Organization regularly monitors liquidity required to meet it's operating needs and
other contractual commitments, while also striving to ,maximize the investment of its
available funds. In addition to financial assets available to meet general expenditures
over the next year, the Organization operates with a balanced budget and anticipates
collecting sufficient revenue to cover general expenditures not covered by donpr-
Vestricted resources.

4. Loan Receivable

In 2016, the Organization entered into a one-year, unsecured $10,000 loan agreement
with the New Hampshire Community Loan Fund (the Fund). The Organization has

renewed the loan agreement annually and the loan has a current maturity date of

16
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June 30, 2024. Interest is compounded annually at a rate of 1% per annum. The Fund is

a nonprofit voluntary corporation that provides services to lower income households

and disadvantaged people In the form of housing, educatiorial resources, and financing
for community-based development projects. The Organization believes the Fund directly

implements the Center for the Study of Social Policy's Strengthening Families' Protective

Factors by providing concrete supports to these families in times of need and increasing

their social connections. Through the Fund's financial support of other community

organizations, it also helps indirectly with the implementation of the Strengthening

Families Framework last two Protective Factors: Parental Resilience, Knowledge of

Parenting and Child Development, and Social and Emotional Competence of Children.

As discussed in Note 2, the Organization is required to report its fair value

measurements in one of three levels, which are based on the ability to observe in the

marketplace the inputs to the Organization's valuation techniques. Level 3 is for assets

measured using inputs that are unobservable, and is used in situations for which there is

little, if any, market activity for the asset. Using Level 3 valuation techniques, the

estimated fair value of the loan receivable at December 31, 2022 and 2021 has been

determined to be $10,302 and $10,302, respectively.

5. Property and Equipment

Property and equipment was comprised of the following at December 31, 2022 and

2021:

2022 2021

Furniture, fixtures, and equipment $  38,752 .  $ 36,127

Leasehold Improvements 5,140 -

Subtotal 43,892 36,127

Less accumulated depreciation (11,712) (11,104)

Total ■ $  32,180 $  25,023

Depreciation expense totaled $6,085 and $3,539 for the years ended December 31,
.  2022 and 2021, respectively.

6. Beneficial Interest Held in Trust

The Organization is the beneficiary of an agency endowment fund created by New

Hampshire RSA 169-C:39-c and held at the New Hampshire Charitable Foundation (the
Foundation). Pursuant to the terms of the resolution establishing this fund, property

contributed to the Foundation is held as a separate fund specifically for the benefit of

17
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the Organization. A second agency endowment fund, the Lucy Fowlkes Breed Legacy
Fund^ was created in 2010. In accordance with its spending policy, the Foundation
makes distributions from these funds to the Organization.

The beneficial interest held in trust Is reported at its fair value, which is estimated as the

fair value of the underlying trust assets. As discussed in Note 2,' because there are no
observable market transactions for assets similar to the beneficial interest held In trust,

the valuation technique used by the Organization Is a Level 3 fair value measure.

Beneficial interest held in trust, beginning of year

Investment return

Amount distributed to the Organization

Foundation fees

Beneficial interest held in trust, end of year

General

Endowment

1,821,834

(230,573)

(66,131)

(9,805)

Lucy Fowlkes

Breed Legacy

Fund

$  19,402

(2,455)

(704)

(109)

Total

1,841,236

(233,028)

(66,835)

(9,914)

$  1,515,325 $ 16,134 $ 1,531,459

The change In fair value of the beneficial interest held In trust Is recognized in net assets
with.donor restrictions in the Statement of Activities.

Accrued Expenses

Accrued expenses at December 31, 2022 and 2021 consisted primarily of accrued salaries
and accrued earned time.

Refundable Advances and Grants ^

The Organization receives grants, which are conditioned upon certain performance
requirements and/or the incurrence of allowable qualifying expenditures. Amounts
received prior to incurring qualifying expenditures are reported as refundable advances.
At December 31, 2022 and 2021, $733,093 and $726,000, respectively; were reflected

as refundable advances.

The Organization was awarded federal Community-Based Child Abuse Prevention
(CBCAP) grants from the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services. These funds

are from the Child Abuse Prevention and Treatment Act Title .11 program and are

allocated to states on a per child formula. Since 1996, the Governor of New Hampshire has
designated New Hampshire Children's Trust, Inc. as the State Lead Agency eligible to
apply for and receive these funds. The CBCAP funds are used to strengthen and improve
prevention programs and activities. Whereas CBCAP is a cost-reimbursable grant.
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9.

$307,862 and $368,778 have not been recognized at-December 31, 2022 and 2021,

respectively, because qualifying expenditures have not yet been incurred. '

In June 2019, the Organization was awarded a grant with-the State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services to provide Farnily Resource Center (PRC)
facilitation and organization services in an amount not to exceed $1,004,646 and with a
completion date of June 30, 2021. In December 2019, the grant was amended to

increase the funding to $3,021,874, retroactive to October 1, 2019 with no change to
the completion date. Under this grant, the Organization provides coordination, support,
training, and technical assistance for the implementation of operational and. quality
control standards for all PRC's statewide in order to increase the number of PRC's

receiving the Family Resource Center of Quality (FRC-Q) designation and standardize
PRC and PRC-Q delivery of services. The Organization also provides support to kinship
caregivers who are caring for family members because of the placement by the Division
of Children, Youth, and Families (DCYP). In July 2021, the Organization was awarded a

second grant in an amount not to exceed $2,533,600 and with a completion date of
June 30, 2023. Whereas these are cost-reimbursable grants, $1,395,574 and $2,084,904
have not been recognized at December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively, because
qualifying expenditures have not yet been incurred.

Grant revenue from federal agencies is subject to independent audit under the Office of
Management and Budget's Uniform Grant Guidance, and review by grantor agencies.
The review could result in the disallowance of expenditures under the terms of the

grant or reductions of future grant funds. Based on prior experience, the Organization's
management believes that costs ultimately disallowed, if any, would not materially
affect the financial position of the Organization.

Contract Liabilities

Upon receipt of a prepayment for services, the Organization recognizes a contract
liability in the amount of the prepayment for its performance obligation to transfer
goods and services in the future. At December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Organization has
recorded contract liabilities pf $179,340 and $123,428, respectively. These amounts will
be recognized as revenue when the Organization transfers goods and services and,
therefore, satisfies its performance obligations.

Contract liabilities activity was as follows for the years ended December 31, 2022 and
2021:

Beginning balance

Activity, net

Ending balance

2022 2021

$  123,428 . $ 117,514

55,912 5,914

$  179,340 $ 123,428
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10. Line of Credit

The Organization has a line of credit with a bank that is secured by all assets of the

Organization. Maximum borrowing on the line is $300,000. The line is payable on
demand, with regular monthly payments of all accrued unpaid interest. Interest is

variable based upon changes in an independent index, which is the highest Wall Street
Journal Prime Rate, and is calculated using a rate of 1.5% over the index. At December

31, 2022 and 2021, the Organization had no outstanding balance on the line of credit

and did not draw on the line during 2022 or 2021.

11. Leases

As discussed in Note 2, the Organization adopted ASC 842 as of January 1, 2022, which

resulted in the recognition of a right-to-use asset and an operating lease liability of

$66,190 for its office space. During 2022, this lease expired and a new lease was
entered into in October 2022 for office space at a new location. Under this non-

cancelable operating lease agreement, monthly payments range from $4,500 to $5,070.
The lease expires on September 30, 2027, with an option to extend for an additional

5 year period. As of December 31, 2022, the Organization is not reasonably certain it

will exercise the extension option.

While agreement provides minimum lease payments, it includes payments adjusted for

inflation or variable common area maintenance charges. Variable payments are not
determinable at the lease commencement and are not included in the measurement of

lease assets and liabilities. The lease agreement does not include any material residual
value guarantees or restrictive covenants.

The components of operating lease expense that are included in the Statement of

Activities for the,year ended December 31, 2022 were as follows:

Fixed lease cost

Variable lease cost

Total lease cost

75,333

3,254

78,587

For the year ended December 31, 2022, rent expense, as previously defined under FASB

ASC 840, for all operating leases was $64,337.
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During the year ended December 31, 2022, the Organization had the following cash and

non-cash activities related to operating leases:

Cash paid for amounts included in the

measurement of lease liabilities:

Operating cash flows for operating leases ^ $ 75,333

Non-cash investing and financing activities:

Lease assets obtained in exchange

for lease liabilities:

Operating leases $ 262,557

Weighted average lease term and discount rate at December 31, 2022, were as follows:

1

Weighted average remaining lease term (years) 4.75"

Weighted average discount rate 2.87%

Future payments due under operating leases as of December 31, 2022, are as follows

for the years ending December 31:

2023 S 54,405

2024 56,040

2025 57,735

2026 59,490

2027 45,630

Total lease payments 273,300

Less imputed interest 18,497

Present value of lease liabilities $ 254,803

12. Net Assets

Board-Designated Net Assets

Board-designated net assets have been established to 1) meet the Organization's

operational demands given its uneven annual cash flow cycle; 2) be prepared for

managing uncertainties associated with federal funding; and 3) be positioned to take

advantage of opportunities for new initiatives and program expansion. Board policy
states that any interim use of these funds, when used to assist with the Organization's
cash flow, should be replaced within sixty days. The balance of board-designated net

assets at December 31, 2022 and 2021 was $524,380 and $524,380, respectively.
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Net Assets With Donor Restrictions

Net assets with donor restrictions were comprised of the following at December 31,

2022 and 2021:

2022 2021

Subject to the passage of time:
Operating support - future years $ 50,000 $ 100,000

Subject to expenditure for a specified purpose:
Strengthening Families Framework - 45,000
NH Alliance of Early Childhood Coalitions^ 180,000

Other 16,189 689 .

246,189 145,689

Perpetual in nature:

Beneficial interest held in trust 1,531,459 1,841,236

Total S 1,777,648 $ 1,986,925 ,

Net assets were released from donor restrictions by incurring expenses satisfying the
restricted purpose or by occurrence of the passage of time or other events specified by
the donors as follows for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021:

2022 2021

Satisfaction of purpose restrictions:

Strengthening Families Framework $ 45,000 $ 37,800
Summit sponsorships 57,218 22,250

Other - -6,000

102,218 66,050

Satisfaction of time restrictions:

Operating support - future years 50,000

Total S 152,218 $ 66,050
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13. ■ Donated Professional Services and Materials

The Organization received the following contributions of nonfinancial assets for the
years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021:

2022 2021

Supplies $ 61,129 $ 5,200

Meeting space - 2,346

Subscription fees - 1,158

Total $ 61,129 $ 8,704

Utiliation in

Programs/Activities

Family Strengthening & Support

Administrative

Administrative

There were no associated donor restrictions with the above contributed nonfinancial

assets. Supplies were valued using U.S. retail prices of identical products using pricing
data under a 'like-kind' methodology considering the goods' conditions and utility for
use at the time of contribution. Meeting space was valued at the estimated fair value
based on current rates for similar spaces. Subscription fees were valued at the
estimated fair value based on current rates for similar subscriptions.

14. Retirement Plan

The Organization participates in a tax-deferred annuity plan qualified under Section
403(b) of the Internal Revenue Code. The plan covers full-time employees of the
Organization who have worked at least 1,000 hours during, the 12-month period
immediately following the date of hire. Employees may make contributions to the plan
up to the maximum amount allowed by the Internal Revenue Code. Contributions made
to the plan by the Organization for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021
totaled $47,103 and $43,696, respectively.

15. Designated Funds with New Hampshire Charitable Foundation

The Organization is the beneficiary of three , designated funds held at the New
Hampshire Charitable Foundation (the Foundation). Under these agreements, amounts
that are donor designated for this purpose are transferred permanently to the
Foundation. In accordance with FASB ASC 958-605-25, amounts received for the

endowment fund are not recorded as income and are not included as assets in these

financial statements. Rather, the contributions are recorded as assets and as income of

the Foundation. The fair market value of these endowment funds was as follows at

December 31, 2022 and 2021:
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2022 2021

GPCF Child Abuse Fund $ 319,216 S 383,897

Lou and Lutza Smith Endowment Fund 444,403 534,450

Lou and Lutza Smith Administrative Endowment Fund 296,204 356,222

Total $ . 1,059,823 $ 1,274,569

In accordance with its spending policy, the Foundation makes distributions from the

funds to the Organization to offset its supporting services expenses. Total distributions
received were $46,266 and $48,420 for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021,

respectively.

16. Concentration of Risk

A material part of the Organization's revenue is dependent upon government sources,
the loss of which would have a. materially adverse effect on the Organization. During the

years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, federal grants and contracts accounted for
74.8% and 87.2%, respectively, of total operating revenues.

17. . Agency Agreement with New Hampshire Division for Children, Youth, and Families

The Organization acts as an agent on behalf of the New Hampshire Division for Children,
Youth, and Families (DCYF), where the Organization purchases goods or pays for services
when authorized and requested by DCYF. These requests are referred to as "flex fund"
requests and DCYF reimburses the Organization for the purchases or payments. DCYF
determines the families that are eligible to receive the goods or services. Whereas the

Organization is acting in a fiscal agent capacity, the activity under this agreement is not
recorded as revenues and expenses, in accordance with GAAP. Total activity in 2022 and
2021 amounted to $0 and $14,493, respectively.

18. Subsequent Events

Subsequent events have been evaluated through June 12, 2023, the date the financial
statements were available to be issued.
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WChildren'sTrust
r  Oi'M Abott ond Negke:

2024 NH Children's Trust, Inc. Board of Directors

lOSB Loudon Road, Suite 201, Concord, NH 03301

Phone: (603) 224-1279 Fax: (603) 223-9847

www.nhchildrenstrust.OfR infoiS)nhchildrenstrust.org

Name/Title Avg 0 of

Hours /

Week

Compensation Residence Primary Phone & Email

BRIAN BEALS
1 Non - All Volunteer

TAYLOR BREED 1 Non • All Volunteers

JENN CRONIN
1.3 Non ■ All Volunteer

JANICE FITZPATRICK

Treasurer
1.5 Non - All Volunteer

LAURA GOUPIL 1- Non • All Volunteer

SOOZE HODGSON, MD 1 Non - All Volunteer

KAREN KERSTING

Secretary
1 Non - All Volunteer

MARKKNIGHTS,Esq.

. Chair
1.3 Non - All Volunteer

ERIN MASKWA 1 Non - All Volunteer

ADAM MEMMOLO 1 Non • All Volunteer

PATRICIA ROBITAILLE

1 Non • All Volunteers

CHRISTINE TAPPAN

Vice Chair
1 Non - All Volunteer

y.

REBECCA LOZMAN-

OXMAN
1 Non • All Volunteer

CYNDI GRANIELLO .  1 Non • All Volunteer

JENNIFER GANIM-SMITH 1 Non-All Volunteer
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CLIFF SIMMONDS

MISSION STATEMENT

My mission as a nonprofit professional is to increase the impact of an organization and the effectiveness of
their staff, programs and key stakeholders. I seek a leadership position that requires my extensive nonprofit
management experience, communications skills, leadership ability and passion for the nonprofit sector to forge
effective strategies for meeting organizational goals and objectives.

QUALIFICATIONS SUMMARY

•  Innovative team leader and motivator with strong management skills and over 25 years experience
spanning the environmental, nonprofit and business sectors.
•  Highly accomplished Executive Director with 12 years experience successfully directing two premier
nonprofit organizations in New England.
•  Proven track record building relationships in the community and creatively accomplishing goals
through fundraising initiatives, program management and outreach.
•  Raised over $12 million for charitable organizations to date through personal solicitation, capital
campaigns and grant development.

BUSINESS EXPERIENCE

New Hampshire Children's Trust, Concord, NH 2019 - present
Executive Director

•  Responsible for overseeing the administration, programs and strategic plan of the organization, while
being the face of the NHCT working closely with the Board of Directors, government officials, community
partners and the public.

•  Work to increase and promote the visibility and the engagement of the Trust with local, state and

national partners, donors and volunteers. Other duties include fundraising, marketing and community,
outreach.

Agassiz Village, Lexington, MA 2010-2019
Executive Director r

•  Currently, leading the reorganization, financial growth and stabilization of this 75 year old residential
summer camp for underserved youth in the greater Boston area.
•  Successfully overcame $50,000 deficit while creating a $190,000 budget surplus and doubling program
participation in less than two years.
•  Leading an extensive strategic planning process in conjunction with Harvard Business School to
develop a long-range plan for growth.
•  Cultivating key partnerships and strategic alliances with other Boston area nonprofit organizations to
expand resources and increase mission delivery.

Beaver Brook Association, Hollis, NH 2000-2010
Executive Director

www.beaverbrook.org
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(Beaver Brook Association is a nonprofit, environmental education and land stewardship organization with a mission to promote an
understanding of interrelationships in the natural world and to encourage conservation of natural resources through education and
land sfca/arc/s/iipJ

•  Led the successful reorganization and expansion of operations, programming and funds development,
doubling program participation, donor base and revenues in three years.
•  , Implemented Board governance protocols and operational procedures to improve efficiencies and
minimize expenses. Restructuring education programs led to a 325% increase in revenues with a minimal
increase in expenses.
•  Spearheaded the development and execution of the organization's first capital campaign—reaching a
goal of $1.7 million. Led effort to place conservation easements on organization's holdings using funds from the
campaign.
•  Increased volunteer base from 50 to 200 volunteers through program development and outreach
initiatives. Created the Eco-Team volunteer program that expanded our corporate volunteer corps and
increased corporate support.
•  Built a successful grant writing program and cultivated corporate sponsorships and gifts.
•  Managed administrative staff of eight and more than 30 seasonal educators and presenters.

Environmental Resources Management^ Ewing, NJ 1994-1999
Community Relations Manager

•  Counseled major corporate clients from the utilities, pharmaceutical, petrochemical,
telecommunications and manufacturing industries on communit>' relations outreach strategies: Managed more
than $500,000 in project budgets.
•  Developed and implemented comprehensive strategic communications plans for the successful
completion of client projects, including hazardous waste clean up, eco-restoration and facilities siting.
•  Plan implementation included organizing community action panels and public meetings, developing
communications materials and orchestrating consensus building among community and governmental leaders.

Dynamac Corporation, Philadelphia, PA 1992-1994
Community Relations Specialist

•  Managed communit>' and media relations for more than 24 United States Environmental Protection
. Agency (US EPA) hazardous waste sites under the Superfiind law.
• . Developed communications strategies and plans to aid in the successful clean up of contaminated sites,
including the second-most contaminated site in the US.
•  Organized public meetings and developed and distributed communications materials in support of US
EPA's technical plans and investigations. Demonstrated a strong proficiency in disseminating technical data
and jargon for public consumption.

Walter E. Fernald School, Waltham, MA 1988-1992
Director of Communications and Volunteer Services
(The oldest publiclyfunded facilityfor adults with mental retardation in the western hemisphere, dating back to 1848.)

•  Managed all internal and external communications for a facility with 2,300 employees and 700
residents, including media relations, special events and communications and marketing materials.
•  Developed and maintained an extensive volunteer services program, resulting in growth from 50 to
1,000 volunteers in less than three years.
•  Successfully developed media crisis management protocols to improve the reputation of the facility and
gain support of key stakeholders, donors and families.

United Way of Stamford, Stamford, CT 1987-1988
Communications Associate and Photographer

•  Developed, wrote and designed newsletters, campaign updates and brochures
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•  Assisted in planning and implementing special events

EDUCATION

Antioch College, Institute for Nonprofit Management Leadership Training
Duquesne University, B.A., Public Relations
New England College, Minor, Environmental Science

RECOGNmON

Honored by the Nashua River Watershed Association as one of the "Forty on our Fortieth" award recipients
Souhegan Valley Chamber of Commerce Business of the Year Award - Beaver Brook Association
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T RACY L VtRGASON

OBTECnVE:
Seasoned professional with a proven track record in strategic leadership and program management. Seeking a
role where I can provide dynamic oversight to a Program team, develop and execute annual work plans,
advocate for funding and policy, and ensure successful coordination of program initiatives across departments.

EXPERIENCE:

October 2023 - Present SENIOR PROGRAM DIRECTOR -New Hampshire Children's Trust
y Senior Program Director: Provides strategic leadership for the Program team through the development

and execution of an annual work plan, that includes advocating for funding and policy and providing oversight
and general management of program-focused events. Assesses and manages NHCT participation in regional,
state-level and national external partnerships and task forces relevant to the programmatic focus of the
agency. Coordinates program initiatives across NHCT departments and across systems as necessary to
support Family Resource Centers and Early Childhood Coalitions to lead the drive to strengthen families and
to ensure safe, stable, and nurturing relationships and environments for children in NH.

January 2022 - October 2023 DIRECTOR -Child Care Aware oMmen'ca, Remote
y DIRECTOR OF CHILD CARE SYSTEMS BUILDING: Develops and implements solutions for specific challenges that

exist currently in the field of early care and education to support Child Care Resource and Referral agencies
across the country. Emphasis on supply and capacity building of home-based child care and family child care
networks, effective business practices and automation, the workforce and supporting implementation work
through federal investments within states and nationwide. ^

January 2010 - Present ADJUNCT FACULTY - Community CollBges, MA & NH
y Adjunct faculty: Plan and implement syllabus for early childhood course for community college students.

Maintain class attendance and responsible for general classroom management. Establish and maintain
grading system and update assignment information online via Blackboard. Prepare for weekly classes. Taught
"Creativity and the Young Child", "Health, Safety and Nutrition". "Child Growth and Development" and "Infant
and Toddler Care and Programming". Colleges include Granite State College. Middlesex Community College
and Nashua Community College

October 2008 - January 2022 PROGRAM MANAGER -Southern NH Services, Nashua, NH
y Child care resource & referral Program Manager: Coordinate and oversee SNHS CCR&R operations

as they relate to the deliyery of Resource & Referral (R&R) services, recruitment of, and technical assistance
to child care programs in Greater Nashua area in relation to NH State licensure. credentialing, accreditation,
child care boost, licensed plus, etc. Database management and coordination of training component, including
direct provision of training, where appropriate, to providers and families. Compile and analyze services
quarterly as they pertain to performance measures.

October 2007 - October 2008 COORDINATOR/MANAGER -RCA Child Care Services. Sa/em, NH
y Child Care Resource & Referral Coordinator: Coordinate and oversee RCA Child Care Services

operations as they relate to delivery of Resource & Referral (R&R) services, recruitment of, and technical
assistance to child care programs in relation to NH State licensure, credentialing, accreditation, support, etc.
Database management and coordination of training component, including direct provision of training, where
appropriate, to providers and parents. Compile and analyze services quarterly as they pertain to performance
measures.

y child and adult food program coordinator/manager: Coordinate and oversee CACFP operations as they
pertain to the Child and Adult Care Food Program. Assess and evaluate completed monthly menus. Support
CACFP providers through in-home meal reviews and phone and email consultation.
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T RACY L VCRGASON

August 2005 - October 2007 LICENSING & EVALUATION -Bureau of Child Care Licensing,
COORDINATOR Concord. NH

^ Licensing & evaluation Coordinator: .Plan and coordinate professional assessments of a variety of
residential and non-residential child care programs. Provides technical assistance and utilizes specialized
knowledge and skills in evaluating and analyzing programs or operations. Coordinates complex complaint
investigations and conducts independent investigations. Evaluates compliance with applicable state and
federal laws and regulations regarding health and safety in child care programs.

August 2002 - August 2006 CHILD CARE R&R COORDINATOR -RCA Child Care Services, Sa/em, NH
Child Care Resource & Referral Coordinator: Coordinate RCA Child Care Services operations as they
relate to delivery of Resource & Referral (R&R) services, recruitment of, and technical assistance to
residential and nonresldential child care programs in relation to NH State licensure, credentialing,
accreditation, support, etc. Database management, and coordination of training component, including direct
provision of training, where appropriate, to providers and parents. Compile and analyze services quarterly as

.  they pertain to perfoirnance measures.

January 20Q2 - August 2002 LEAD TEACHER -Kindercare Inc, Londonderry, NH
y LEAD TEACHER: Lead teacher in Infant Classroom overseeing daily care for up to 9 infants. Duties

consisted of planning and implementing monthly themes throughout day, compiling and producing newsletters
and daily plans, communicating with parents on daily basis through verbal interaction and daily activity sheets,
and attending workshops to further education in field of early childhood.

February 2001 - December 2001 CHILD CARE TEACHER -Kathy Herward Child Care Ctr, Andover, MA
y Child Care Provider/Teacher: Co-teacher in Preschool 1 Classroom overseeing daily care for sixteen

children. Duties consist of planning and implementing weekly themes throughout day, implementing small
group and class project time and activities, collaborating with co-teacher on monthly newsletters, field trips,
and daily plans, communicating with parents on daily basis through verbal interaction and daily activity sheets,
and attending workshops to further education in field.

August 1999 - November 2000 FAMILY CC PROVIDER -Baby Boot Camp Daycare, Bremerton, WA
y State and Navy Licensed In-Home Child care Provider/Owner: Supervised and coordinated the care of six

children, emphasis in providing children with a loving home-based environment, aiding in children's social,
emotional, cognitive, and physical development. Researched and instituted American Sign Language into the
home daycare program. Trained and certified in Infant and Adult CPR and First Aid, HIV/AIDS Awareness,
Child Abuse and Neglect, and Food Handle Permit.

EDUCATION:

2007 WheELOCK College, Boston MA: Masters of Science- Early Care and Education. Emphasis on
Leadership

2004 WHEELOCK COLLEGE, BOSTON MA: Completed 2 credits from Infant/Toddler Seminar in Waterville
Valley, NH.

2004 ■ College for lifelong learning, Manchester NH: Completed 4 credits in Child Growth &
Development.

2001 GORDON COLLEGE, MA: Completed 3 credits in American Sign Lariguage

2000 Olympic College, Bremerton WA: Completed 23 credits in Early Childhood Education.

1995 Elmira College, Elmira NY: Bachelor of Arts (Individualized Studies: Humanistic Journalism) -
Emphasis in Art, English, Psychology, and Minor in Women's Studies. Resident Assistant.

1991 Waverly High School, Waverly NY: Regents Diploma - President of Student Council, Debate
Club and FHA; Citizenship Award Recipient; National Scholastic Photography Portfolio Scholarship
Winner; Member of the National Honor Society; Waverly High Art Merit Award.
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Tracy LVtRGASON

CREDENTIALS/AWARDS;
NH PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT SYSTEM: Early Childhood Master Professional Workshop Trainer.
Faculty, and Program Consultant
MARY STUART GILE AWARD: Awarded in 2019 Child Care Aware of New Hampshire
MARY STUART GILE AWARD: Awarded in 2016 as part of Spark NH Workforce Professional Development
Committee

MARY STUART GILE AWARD: Awarded in 2015 as part of NH Early Learning Standards Task Force
GUIDING STAR AWARD; Awarded in 2015 from the Department of Health and Human Services Child
Development Bureau
MARY STUART GILE AWARD: Awarded in 2008 as part of the New Hampshire Association for the Education of
Young Children.
MARY STUART GILE AWARD: Awarded in 2005 as part of New Hampshire Child Care Resource and Referral
Network

MEMBERSHIPS/ASSOCIATIONS:
July 2019 - January 2022
July 2015 - January 2022
2019-2022

May 2013 - January 2022
Oct. 2008-Jan. 2022

August 2008 - August 2010

June 2004 - August 2008
October 2007 - Present

September 2007 - June 2009

September 2007 - 2009
November 2006 - 2009

May 2005 - 2009
March 2005 - June 2006

April 2004 - Present
September 2004 - 2008
August 2002 - August 2005
June 2004 - August 2005

June 2003 - August 2004

June 2002 - Present

September 2002 -June 2004

Pyramid Model State Leadership Team and Core Team
Child Care Aware of America State Leadership Council
Workforce Study Task Force
Quality Rating and Improvement Task Force
Credentlaling Revision Task Force
NHAEYC (New Hampshire Association for the Education of Young Children):
Membership Secretary. Spring Conference Co-Chair
NHAEYC: Recording Secretary
NHCCR&R Network (New Hampshire Child Care Resource & Referral):
Co-Chair as of 2010, Elected President in April 2009-10.
CDB Trainer Development Program: Mentored other Early Childhood Educators
to become workshop presenters. Mentored 4 Prot6g6s in 2-year time period.
Derry Village Extended Daycare Program Board: Board Member
New Hampshire Child Care Program Licensing Rule Task Force
Alliance for Better Chlldcare: Board Member

Early Learning New Hampshire (ELNH): Conference Task Force Member
ELNH: Parent Member

DVS PTA (Derry Village School PTA): Member
NHCCR&R Network: Member/President (5/05-8/05)A/ice-President (10/04 - 5/05)
ELG TP (Early Learning Guidelines Task Force): Member

eeECE (educating for excellence through Early Childhood Educators): *
Secretary
NAEYC (National Association for the Education of Young Children): Member
GSFCCA (Greater Salem Family Child Care Association): Honorary Member

SPECIALIZED TRAINING/WORKSHOP SESSIONS:
Baby Signs & Toddler Talk; Incorporating Sign Language Into Your Infant/Toddler Program; The ABC's of Sign;
Sign Language 101; Simple Songs in Sign; Write it Down, Read it Loud, Sign it Proud: The Basics of Language
Enrichment & Sign Language in Early Childhood Programs; Child Care Basics: What Families Look For In Quality
Child Care; Beyond the Basics: Anti-Bias Curriculum; Child Care Basics: 1-2-3 Grow With Me; Credentialing
Crunch!; Nature Calls!; Messy Gooey Gobs of Fun Night!; NACCRRAware 101 Training; Becoming an Early
Childhood Professional: The Importance of Developing a Portfolio & Obtaining Your Credential, Zero to Three's
Preventing Child Abuse and Neglect Curriculum Trainings, Training Policies & Practices, Nature's Art, CCR&R
Volunteer Program Orientation, A Saturday in Sign, Staffed Family Child Care Networks.

COMPUTER EXPERTISE. HOBBIES, AND INTERESTS:
COMPUTER EXPERTISE: Windows, Microsoft Word, Excel, Publisher, Salesforce, Miro, Smartsheet, Zoom,
Teams, Asana, HubSpot
HOBBIES AND INTERESTS: Art, Creative Writing, Photography, Jewelry Design, Dance, Kayaking, Nature
* AveilBble upon request: List of continued education through attendance at various workshops, seminars, and conferences.
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NATHAN J. FINK
Advocate, Educator, Optimist

EXPERIENCE

Director of Advancement,

New Hampshire Children's Trust

El Sept 2018 - ongoing 9 Concord. NH

• Leading Communications, Marketing, and Development for New Ham'p_^ire
Children's Trust, the Governor's designated statewide communilv-based child

abuse prevention agency, NH's chapter of Prevent Child Abuse America, and a

member of the National Alliance of Children's Trust & Prevention Funds.

ua
1  I t

•n/

u V
•v^

Community Relations & Grants Coordinator ^
The Mental Health Center of Greater Manchester

© Oct 2015-AuR 2018 9 Manchester, NH

• Developed an extensive grant portfolio worth over S5 million in

' private, state, and federal appeals.

• Leadership Team Member and agency representative at various high profile
charitable events, forums, and educational presentations.

• He?d copywriter, speechwriter, and content generator, contributing editor of
the website re-design team, MHCGM's Narrative Bank and btog writer.

cxo c
MOST PROUD OF

.a, Pres^ce of rnind^
j I had to make more time for my sons

^ The dynamic PR team,j^
we've assembled at the NHCl]

Q My sincere belief
that talent is a function of curiosity ^

STRENGTHS

Oration, Diplomacy, Cultural
Sensitivity, Planning & Logistics,

Writing/Editing, Persistence

r  >

X'

Visiting Assistant Professor

DePaul University

© Sep20n-juneZOiS 9chlcago.IL

Executed full 3/3/3 course load {quarter system) of self-designed,

department approved curriculum.

Member of various committees exploring the NYT pilot program, DePaut's

Student Showcase, and Fulbright Scholarship preparation.

• Multiple student organization adviser and general enlistee manager.

• Frequent regional and national.educational conference presenter.

Co-Creator, GM, & Head of Sales

Outdoor Outlet, U.C

liSl'Aug 2004 • May 2007 9 Oshkosh, Wl

*! Co-Crcator, designer, and manager of 3 commerce websites,
employing 10+ employees in a 15,000 square foot facility.

• Propelled net sales to $350,000+ in peak months.

• Branded and marketed sites on various online platforms {social media),

while compiling, analyzing, and reporting financial data.

•  Integral In the purchasing of wholesale product and subsequent logistical
distribution.

LANGUAGES

English

Native

Spanish

Advanced

EDUCATION

MFA, Writing

University of New

Hampshire

l!i!l Sep 2009 • May 2011

GPA

4.00 / 4.00

BA, English
University of Wisconsin

^ Sep 2001 - May 2004

GPA

3.86 / 4.00
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NICHOLAS RISC

Experience

Accounts Poyoble Clerk • July 2009-February 2010

Partnership for Successful Living • 45 High Street, Nashua, NH 03060

Responsible for: processing invoices, doily bank deposits, coding invoices, reception coverage,
internal Medicoid audits, tracking cash balances,.and mailing payments.

Accounts Receivable Clerk • March 2010-August 2010

Partnership for Successful Living • 45 High Street. Nashua, NH 03060

Responsible for: doily bonk deposits, processing payments, client accounts, grants receivable,

security deposits, collections, evictions, tracking payments, and providing reports to management.

Senior Staff Accountant • August 2010 - January 2017

Partnership for Successful Living -. 45 High Street, Nashua, NH 03060

Responsible for: general ledger activity for Partnership for Successful Living, bonk reconciliations,

balance sheet reconciliations, journal entries, payroll processing, grant drawdowns, budgets, cash
transfers, tracking capital expenditures, track construction projects, maintain fixed assets, oversee
accounts payable/accounts receivable, and month end closings.

Financial Specialist • January 2017 - November 2020
Portriership for Successful Living • 77 Northeastern Blvd. Nashua, NH 03063

Responsible for: Maintaining general ledger, maintain fixed assets, bank reconciliations, monthly
reporting, reviewing finoncials, journal entries, grant drawdowns, contract procurement, reconcile
accounts payable/accounts receivable, providing financial projections and budgets to upper
management, and month end closings.

Accountant/Controller • November 2020- January 2022

New Hampshire Children's Trust • 10 Ferry Street Suite 307, Concord, NH 03301

Responsible for preparing accounts payable and accounts receivable invoices, month end

closing, reconcile bank statements, prepare and submit budgets for contracts, grant compliance,

and financial reporting to executive director and board. Also responsible for facilitating audit and
monitoring budgets with programs managers.'maintaining fixed assets, and any other projects

associated with finance and accounting.

Director of Finance • January 2022 - Current

Responsible for preparing accounts payable and accounts receivable invoices, month end
closing, reconcile bonk statements, journal entries, grant invoicing, prepare and submit budgets for
contracts, grant compliance, financial projections, and financial reporting to executive director
and board. Also responsible for facilitating audit and monitoring budgets with progrorns managers,
maintaining fixed assets, and any other projects associated with finance and accounting.
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Skills

•  Proficient in non-profit accounting software MIR, Microsoft Office applications, writing,

communication, and technology. Familiar with QuickBooks.

Education

Raymond High School- 2004

Southern New Hampshire University

2013 ■ AS Business Administration 2016 ■ BS Business Aciministiation

■  Completed associates degree in business administration with highest honors. Member of Phi
Theto Kappa. Alpha Sigma Lambda, and Delta Mu Delta honor societies, completed bachelor
degree Mogno Cum Laude.

Refierences- Furnished upon request

Nicholas Riso Page 2
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NH Department of Health and Human Services

KEY PERSONNEL

List those primarily responsible for meeting the terms and conditions of the agreement.

Job descriptions not required for vacant positions.

Contractor Name: New Hampshire Children's Trust, Inc

a  ' J

NAME JOB.TITLE

ANNUAL

AMOUNT PAID

FROM THIS

CONTRACT

ANNUAL

SALARY

Cliff Simmonds Executive Director $54,624.00 $177,622.00

Tracy Vergason Senior Program Director $101,400.00 $107,000.00

Nathan Fink Director of'Advancement $87,800.00 $110,954.00

Nicholas Riso Director of Finance $34,395.00 $110,954.00

$0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00



STATC OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

PEPARTM5OT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVIGE^ '
DiVlSON OFPUBUCHEALTH SERIES

Lort A. Waver » HA2EN DRIVE, CONCORD, NH 03301.3^
CoBUBiastooer 603>27]'4S01 ].S00<8S2-3345 ExL 450]

.FaV:6^27U827 TDD Accen: 1<«)(>-T35*29M viwwib^iLC^
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Mrerar

Aiigust'21. 2023

His ̂ ceDency. Governor Chrlstophier t. Sununu
and the Honorable Cound!

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Oivisioh of Public Health
^rvices, to enter into a Sole Source amendment to an exiting contract with New Hampshire
dhlldren's Trust. Inc. (VC# 21.8449), Concord, NH. to expand Family Resource Center
infrastructure that helps New Hampshire families through a variety of programs by Increasing
thie.price limitation by ^KS.OOO from $10,579,647 to $13,204,647, v^h no change to
.the completibri date of Jurie 2024, effective upon Governor and Council apprp\rat,
61=^ Federal Furids.. 38.1% GeheralFunds.

The.original.cpfitract.wasapproyed by Govemorand Council on June^, 2021, item #41,
amended on Octotser 13^ 2b21. rterri,#20, on April 6, 2022, Hem #8. on January 18, 2023. item
#l 9i ,and most recently on June-28; 2p2_3, #24.

Funds areiavaiiable'ln the. following accounts for State Fiscal Year 2Q24, with the;
'authority to acgusi'budget line Herns the price limitation ̂  encumbrances t^b^en state.
Tisci^^ years through if and justified.

See attached fiscal details.

EXPLANATlbN

This reque^ fe SpI.e Source becau^ MOP T 50 requires all amendments to agreements
.previously appfpved'as sole.soufce.to be tdei^tlfied asfsole source.and the Department is addir^g
addHional.furidirigi llie bontractbf is uriiquety qualified to provide, statewide.supppit-and
effecttvely apply evidence-t^ed standards and serv^s to New Hampshire's network of Family.
Resource Centers the goal of strengthening families stat^de.:Addit|onaljy , this amendment

■ adds fimding from House Bill 2;(^23) to support the:jrifrastructure for the stat]^de netWprk of
Family Resbuf^Centere^^

The purpose-cf this-request is to add State Fiscal Year 2024 funding to allow for-the
.Conlractorto.oohtinue.to support the infrastnjcture for ̂ e statewide fretwork of Family Resource;
Centers. .Additionaliyiithis amerid marketing arid outreach .for child
c^.initlatlws. ^ildiCTre sqt^a^^ and the Early Childhood Regional System.



His Excellency. Covemor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Gounod

PagelofZ

The additional funding eupports:

1. Enhancing Family Resource Centers by supporting the infrastructure of the Family
Resource Centers, Family Resource Center of Quality designation efforts, providing staff
training, fostering improved collaboration with other early childhood systems, and
sustaining evldence-l>ased initiatives arrd community partnerships.

2. Strengthening marketing and outreach to the eligible population and providers on topics
including resource and referral services, the NH Child Care Scholarship program,
wortcforce initiatives, childcare supply, and quality enhancement. This includes hostir^
and maintaining the. consumer education website. NH Connections.

3. Supporting seven Early Childhood Regional Systems by providing Infrastructure and
technical assistance ^oss key early childhood regional partners, family support
programs. Community Collaborations agencies, and key State partners. The Contractor
will support .and provide ongoing capacity building, coordination, communication,
performance management, and evaluation.

Approximately 6,400 families statewide will continue to be served annually through the
Famity Resource Centers supported through this amendment.

In addition to the families being served, approximately 75 additional community-based
agencies will be served annually with training.

The Departmer\t will monitor services by:

• Reviewing the process and outcome measures identified in the quarterly reports
submitted by the Contractor.

• Meeting with the Contractor monthly to ensure compiiance, with contractual
requirements; and

• Reviewing expenditures and conducting data quality assurance activities on a
monthly basis.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, the Departrhent will be
unable to expand existing services, as well as marketing and messaging services, which
contribute to the develojpment of healthy families and healthy communities.

Area sen/ed: Statewide. .

Source of Federal Funds: ALN 93.575, FAIN 2201NHCCDO.

In the event that the Federal funds become no longer available, additional
Genera) Funds will not be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

eaver

ioner

Lori

Comm

The DeparUntnl of Health and Human Servteet'Mission is to Join comawniUes and /amilies
in providing opportunities for ciluens to aehievt health ond independence.



Fiscal Detail Sheet Amendment N5

AMENDMENT *5

NHCHILDRENS TRUST

OS-9S-046-«S0010-721$0000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. OEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS.

HHS: TRANSITIONAL ASSISTANCE. DIVlStON OF FAMILY ASSISTANCE. KINSHIP

i81.6S% G«n0«l Pi.nd* 8 3S^ Fftdwral "^1

, Inc. Vendor «2t&449

SistdFiacel

Year
Class/Account Class Title Job Numt>er Current Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

2022 102-500731 Contracts for ProQ Svc 45001601 $325,000 $0 $325,000

2023 102-500731 Contracts for Proo Svc 45001601 >  $1,325,000 $0 $1,325,000

2024 102-500731 Contracts for PrOQ Svc 45001601 S1J25,000 50 $1,325,000

Sub Total $2,975,000 $0 $2,975,000

05-95446-450010-721 eOOOO HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS,
HHS: TRANSITIONAL ASSISTANCE. DIVISION OF FAMILY ASSISTANCE. KINSHIP .

191.66% Oenef«iF..nrf* a . ■ l

New Hampghlre ChPdren'a Trust, Inc. Vendor 9215449

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Numt>ef Current Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised Arrtount

2022 074-500589 Grents for Pub Assist and Reli 45001602 $199,600 SO $199,600

2023 074-500569 Grants for Pub Assist and Reil 45001602 $199,600 $0 $199,800

2024 : -  074-500569 Grants for Pub Assist and Reli 45001602 $199,600 $1,000,000 $1,199,600

Sub Total $599,400 $1,000,000 $1,599,400

05495490-902010-60400000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS.
HHS: PUBUC HEALTH DIVISION. COMMUNITY AND HEALTH SERVICES

■100% Fedoral Funda
State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Niunber Current Amount

Increase
(Decrease)

Revised Amount

2022 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 90050405 $631,616 SO S831.618

2023 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 90050405 $1,035,469 SO $1,035,469

2024 102-500731 Contracts for Proo Svc 90050405 $0 $0 SO
Sub Total $1,667,087 SO $1,867,087

D5-95-92-92(
HHS: BEHA)
hOO% Conor

510-33820000- HE
/lORAL HEALTH C
at Funda

ALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS.
IV. Bureau of Drug & Alcohol Svca. Govamor Commlaalon Funda

State Fiscal
Year

Class / Account Class Tide Job Number Current Amount
Increase

(Decease)
Revised Amount

2022 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 92058502 $100,000 $0 -  $100,000
2023 102-500731 Contracts for Proo Svc 92058502 S100.000 SO $100,000

2024 102-500731 Contracts (or ProQ Svc 92056502 $100,000 $0 $100,000

Sub Total $300,000 SO ' $300,000

06-96490-9(
HUMAN SVS
.45.12% Gfln

2010-70470000 HE
,HHS: PUBLIC HE

i»nil urirf SI 55% Ffi

JKLTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
ALTH DIV, COMMUNITY COLLABORATION
rturat

State Fiscal
Year

Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount
Increase

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

2022 102-500731 Contracts for Proo Svc 90070470 $35,000.00 SO.OO S35.000.00

2023 102-500731 Contracts for Proo Svc 90070470 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
2024 102-500731 Contracts for Proo Svc 90070470 $374,760.00 $0.00 $374,760.00
2024 • 102-500731 ■  Contracts for Proo Svc . 80070471 $360,000.00 SO.OO S360.000.00

Sub Total $769,760.00 $0.00 $769,760.00

0549&490-901010-S7710000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF. HHS: PUBUC HEALTH
DIVISION. BUREAU OF POUCY AND PERFORMANCE, PH COVID-19 HEALTH DISPARITIES

State Fiscal
Year

Class/Account Class TjUe Job Number Current ArT>ounl
Increase '•

(Deaease)
Revised Amount

2022 102-500731 Contracts for Proo Svc TBD $910,000 $0 $910,000

2023 102-500731 Contracts (or Proo Svc TBD $1,640,000 SO $1,840,000
2024 „ 102-500731 Contracts for Proo Svc TBD S100.000 $0 $100,000

Sub Total $2,650,000 SO $2,850,000

New Hampshire Children's Trust, Inc.
S5-2022-OEHS-O1-NEWHA41-AO5

Page-1 of 1



Fiscal Detail Sheet Amendment 05

0&^S-042«421110-24300000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OP HEALTH AND HUMAN

SVCS. HHS: HUMAN SERVICES, CHILD DEVELOPMENT. ARPA CHILD CARE STABILIZATION

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class rnie Job Number Current Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

2022 102-500731 Contracts for Proo Svc 42117774 • $37,499 $0 $37,499

2023 102-500731 Contracts for Proo Svc 42117774 $112,501 $0 $112,501

2024 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 42117774 $0 $0

r Sub Tola! $150,000 $0 $150,000

0S4)9S4M2-421110-24290000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN

SVCS. HHS: HUMAN SERVICES. CHILD DEVELOPMENT. ARPA CHILD CARE CCDF
lOOK Federal Funds

State Fiscal Class / Account Class Tlito Job Number ' Current Amount Increase Roused Amount

2024 102-500731 Contracts for Proo Svc 42117773 SQOO.OOO SO $900,000

Sub Total $900,000 $0 $900,000

05-95-42-421110.Z9780000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS,

HHS: HUMAN SERVICES, CHILD DEVELOPMENT, CHILD CARE DVLP-QUALITY ASSURE

State Fiscal Class / Account Class Title Job Numtier Current Amount Increase Res4sed Amount

2024 074-500569 Grants (or Pub Assist and Reli 42117814 $0 SI.625,000 $1,625,000

-  Sub Tolal $0 $1,625,000 $1,625,000

OS-SS-42-421410-7SOeOOOO HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF.

HHS: HUMAN SERVICES. JUVENILE JUSTICE SERVICES, OJJDP

Slate Fiacai

Yeer
Class / Account Class Tide Job Number Current Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised Arnoum

2022 072-509073 Contracts lor Proa Svc 42140814 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

2023 072-509073 Contracts (or ProQ Svc 42140614 $74,200.00 $0.00 $74,200.00

2024 072-509073 •Contracts for Proo Svc 42140614 $74,200.00 $0.00 $74,200.00

. Sub Tolal $146,400.00 $0.00 $146,400.00

I  OvdrallToUll StO.S79.647l $2.625.0001 $13.204.647

GF 38.1 •; 35.i5^
.  FF 61.90* - 75.2*

New Hampshire Children's Trust. Inc.

SS-2022-OEHS-01-NEWHA-01-A05

Page 1 of 1
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #5

This Amendment to the New Hampshire Family Resource Center Facilitation Organization and. Quality
Specialist contract is by and between the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human
Services {'State* or 'Department") and New Hampshire Children's Trust, Inc. (The Contractor').

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on June 30. 2021 (Item #41). as amended on October 13. 2021 (Item #20). on April 6. 2022 (Item #8). on
January 18. 2023 (Item #19). and on June 28, 2023 (Item #24), the Contractor agreed to perform certain
services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration
of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37. General Provisions, Paragraph 17. the Contract may be amended
upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to increase the price limitation to support continued delivery of these
services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37, General Provisions. Block 1.6. Account Number^ to read:

1. 05-95-045-450010-72160000

2. 05-95-090-902010-50400000

3. 05-95-092-920510-33820000

4. 05-95-090-902010-70470000

5. 05-95-090-901010-57710000

6. 05-95-042-421110-24300000

7. 05-95-042-421410-79060000

8.05.95-042-421110-24290000

9. 05-95-042-421110-29780000

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$13,204,647

3. Modify Exhibit C. Payment Terms, Section 1 to read:

1. This Agreement is funded by:

1.1. 14.1% New Hampshire Overdose Data to Action Program (NH 0D2A), as awarded
in January 2021. by the Centers For Disease Control And Prevention, Assistance
Listing Number 9ll36. FAIN NUi7CE924984.

1.2. 12.1% Kinship Navigator Programs, as awarded in October 2020, by the
Administration for Children and Families, Assistance Listing Number 93.556, FAIN
20011NHPKIN and 2101NHPKIN.

1.3. 6.0% Community Collaborations to Strengthen and Preserve Families, as awarded
in September 2018, by the Administration for Children and Families, Assistance
Listing Number 93.670, FAIN 90CA1858.

1.4. 2^6% Health Disparities Grant, as awarded in May 2021. by the Center for Disease

•M

(g
itials VNev^ Hampshire Children's Trust, Inc. A-S-1.3 Contractor Initials

SS.2022.DEHS.01-NEWHA.01-A05 PagolofA Data?^^^^^^
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Control and Prevention, Assistance Listing Number 93.391. FAIN NH750T000031.

1.5. 1.1% ARRA Child Care Stabilization, as awarded in April 2021, by the Child Care
Development Block Grant, Assistance Listing Number 93.575, FAIN 2101NHCSC6.

1.6. 6.0% ARPA Child Care CCDF, as awarded in April -2021, by the Child Care
Development Block Grant. Assistance Listing Number 93.575, FAIN 2101NHCDC6.

1.7. 1.1% JJ Funds, as awarded in October 2018. by the Office of Juvenile Justice and
Delinquency Prevention, Assistance Listing Numt>er 16.540. FAIN 2019-JX-FX-
0052.

1.8. 12.3% Child Care Development Quality Assure, as awarded in November 2021. by
the by the Child Care Development Block Grant, Assistance Listing Number 93 575
FAIN 2201.NHCCDD.

1.9. 2.3% General Funds. Govemor's Commission.

1.10. 22.5% General Funds.

4. Modify Exhibit C Payment Terms. Section 3 to read:

3., Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred in the
fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved line item, as
specified in Exhibits C-1, Budget Sheet, through Exhibit C-26. Budget Sheet. SFY 2024,
Amendment #5.

5. Modify Exhibit C-19, Amendment #4. Budget Sheet, by replacing in its entirety with Exhibit C-19.
Budget Sheet, Amendment #5, SFY 2024. which is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.

6. Add Exhibit C-26. Budget Sheet. Amendment #5, SFY 2024, which is attached hereto and
incorporated by reference herein.

New Hampshire Children's Trust, Inc.

SS-2022-DEHS-01-NEWHA^1tA05

A-S-1.3

Page 2 of 4

Contractor Initials.

Date
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All terms and conditions, of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
in full force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective upon Governor and Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date vi/ritlen below, .-

•' ■ . ■ State of New Hampshire. " >•
Department of Health and Human Services

8/22/2023'

Date .
n

Deev$ion*d by;

Nam^:'^n"g^b
Title: Deputy Director - dphs

8/21/2023

Date .

New Harhpshire Children's Trust. Inc.

IM
DMuSlBMd by:

Na"g:"'i!rm'^imn.onds
Title: Executive Oirector

t'/

New Hampshire Children's Trust, inc.

SS-2622-DEHS-01-NEWHA-01-A05

; ^-$-1.2

Page 3 of 4
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution. • ;

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

■  8/22/2023

Date
Title: Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

New Hampshire ChiWren's Trust. Inc.

SS-2022-DEHS-01-NEWHA-01-A05

A-S-1.2 .

Page 4 of 4 •
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Exhibit C^. Budget Sheet. Amendment «$, SFY 2024

New Hampshire.Department of Health and Human Services

Contrector Name: New Hampshire Children's Tn/eti'lnc.

Project Title: Facilitating Organization for Family Resource Centars - Child Care Development, Quality Assure

Accounting String: OS.OS.42^21110.297BOOOO HEALT.H.ANO SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS,
HHS: HUMAN SERVICES. CKILp.OEVELOPMENT.CHim CARE OVLP-QUALrTY ASSURE (100% ledera!)

Budget Period: SFY24: July 1. W23-. June 30. 2024

Total Program Cost • Funded tw DHHS contreci share '
Linettom Direct - - - Indirect* Total Direct Indirect Total

1. Touri Saiarvrwapes 5  • 175.924.09 S  175,924.08 5 175.924.08 6  . 175.924.08
2. Employee Benefits t- 5 43.991.02 S  - 43.981.02 5 43.981.02 $ • ^ - 43.981.02
3. Consultants 8  .. . , 5
4. Equipment: S . • .

Rental 5 250.00 S  250.00 S 250.00 5  250.00
Repair and Maintenance 5  • s

Purcttase/Depreciation 7 5  ' . ■ %

5. Supplies: '- $ • • s

EducsttorutI 5 5.000.00 r 5  5.000.00 5 5.000.00. $  5.000.00 -
Lab Vv- 5 $

Pharmacy S s

Medical - s - S

Office 5 2.500.00 S  . 2.SOO.OO $ 2.500.00 5  ' 2.500.00
6. TfBvd $ •  750.00 $  750.00 S- 750.00 $  750.00
7. Occvpancv 5 6.875.00 5  6.875.00 S 6.875.00 S  6.875.00
9. Current Ei^enses $- - . •

Tdephone $ 450.00 S  . 450.00 5 450.00 • %  450.00
Postage S 500.00 • 5  500.00 S 500.00 S  500.00
Subscnptions $  • - 5
Audit and Leqai ■ • $  - • %

insurance ■ s • 5 ...

Board Eivenses.
■ s : %

9. Software s . 25.000.00 S  25.000.00 * * 2S.000.00 5  25,000.00
10. Market]nq/Cammunicaticns 5 395.586.98 5  365.586.98 5 385.586.98 i  385.586.98
11. Staff Education and Traininq $ s

12. Subcontracts/Aoreements •" 5  • . j

Program Suticontracts $ 5

FRC Subcontracts S 896.000.00 5  896.000.00 5 896.000.00 S  ■ 696.000.00
13. Other (soeafic detads mandatory): 5. s

Indimct As A Ptfcent o/ Oinct 5  82,162.92 S  82.162.92 % 82.182.92 S  82.182.92

TOTAL 1,542.817.08 S  82,182.92- $  1,625,000.00. % ■■ ■■ 1,542,817.08 I 82,182.92 $  1,625,000.00 1
Indirect As A Percent o1 Direct ■ 5.3% 5.3%

New Hampshire Children's Trust. Inc

SS-2022-DEH&41-NEWHA-01-A05 Contractor Initials
.

Date

I.

a/21/202}
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A. W€»v<r

laitritn CemralnkAcr

Kirt« K1 H<b<n
Dir«ier

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION OF ECONOMIC & HOUSING STABILITY

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03J01

«0W7J-9474 1-«00452-3J45E*l9474

Fax:603-27MZ30 TOD Accetj; I-800-73S-2964 www.dhhi.eb.fov

•  , June 7,2023

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T, Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301.

REQUESTED ACTION

. Authorize the Department of Health and Human" Services. Division of Economic Stability,
to enter into a Sole Source amendment "to an existing contract with New Hampshire Children's
Trust, Inc. (VC# 218449), Concord. NH to "revise the scope, of worlc to expand the ongoing
support oif Family Resource Centers across the state to achieve the "Family Resource Center of
Quality' designation of national standards,, sustain kinship, navigation and, Community
Collaborations, facilitate coordlnatiori of Family Resource Centers and the Early Childhood
Regional System, and expand upori marketing for child care scholarship assistance by,
increasing the price limitatioh by $2,854,760 from $7,724,887 to $10,579,547,-with no change to
the completion date of June 30,2024. effective July 1; 2023, upon Governor and Council approval.
48.16% Federal Funds. 51.84% General Funds. . ^

The original contract was approved by Governor.and Council on June 30,2021. item #41,
amended on Octobef 13.2021, Item #20. on April 6.2022, item #8, and most recently on January
18, 2023, Item #19.

Funds are anticipated to be available in Slate Fiscal Year 2024, upon the availability and
continued appropriation ,of funds in the future operating budget, with' the "authority to.adjust
budget line items within the pnce limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years through
the Budget Office, if needed and justified. . • . ■ -

See attached fiscal details.

EXPLANATION .

This request Is Sole Source because MOP 150 requires all amendments to agreements.
previously approved as sole source to be identified aS| sole source and the Department is adding
additional funding and revising the scope of work. The CoriUador Is uniquely qualified to provide
statewide support and effedively apply evidence-bas^ stancliTrds and services to NH's network
of Family.Resource Centers"with the goal of strenglhening families etatevride.

The purpose of this request is for the Contrador to expand'the Infrastructure and support
for the statewide network of Family Resource Centers.

This requestlncludes: * "

•  • 1. Family Resource Centers. Additional funds will support. Family Resource Center
Infrasfrudure, Family Resource Center of Quality designation efforts, and staff training.
Additional funds will support, two (2) existing senrices at the Family Resource Centers;
the Kinship Navigation Program and Community Collaborations.

:  2. Kinship Navigation. Additional funds will sustain the management and implementation of.
Kinship Navigation prograrhs in Family.Resource Centers through State Fiscal Year 2024.

'77t« Dcpariment of KcoIUi ond Human Stn>i<et'Miitian is iojoin ccmmunitits and fomities
in providing opporiunitie$ for cUutn* to oohievc health ond independenee. .
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■ HU Ewcenency. Governor Chrijlopher T. siinunu
and the Hoftoreble Council r-.

Pago 2 of 3. • ^i. , '

Services are focused on providing resource and economic connections and support to
'  kinship care families. There are currently 1,070 Individuals receiving services through

the Kinship Navigation program statewide. . .

Community Colliaboratlons. Additional funds wilt sustain cross-sector Community
Implementation Teams that connect-familiss to the services they need to support setf-
sufficiency and economic stability in targeted communities. Services are focused on
providing resource connections to families with young children, and crealing.systBm-leye1

.changes designed to help reduce,child maltreatment and the risk of children entenng
foster care. u ' ? . "

Expand the Contractor's scope of work to increase marketif>g and outreach and trainir^jg
opportunities that supports access to resources for families, child care providers,
employers, and other stakeholders. This includes hosting and maintaming the consumer
Vacation website, NH Connections, as a souite of information dissemination. Marketing
and outreach efforts will Increase stakeholder awareness and utilization of resour<» and
referral services, NH Child Care Scholarship program; initiatives for workforce..child care

■ supply, and quality improvement. /

5 Expand the Contractor's scope'of work to provide infraslnjcture and technical assistance
support Vo the seven Early Childhood Regional System leads. The Early Childhqod-
RMiohal System collaborates and coordinates across key early childhood regional
Dartners. including Family Resource Centers, family support programs. Community-
Collaborations agencies and the Departments of Health and. Human SenriMS and
Education. The Contractor will support arid provjde ongoing-Mpacity -building,
coordination, communication, performance managerheTit. and evaluation.
Approximately 8.700 families will be supported through this amendment; . ̂
•  6.400 families will continued to be served annually through the Family Resource

•Centers;

""r Approximately 250 additional families will be served" annually through Kinship
Navigation; and ; J •'

•  Approxirnately 200 additional families will be served annually througti the" work of
Commuhity Collaborations targeted communities.

'  In addition to the families being served, approximately 75 additional commuiiity-bas^
agencies will be served annually with training. . •

The Departmerit will monitor services by: .

vf: - • Reviewing the process and outcome measures identificd in the quarterly reporis
_  ■ subrhitted by the Contractor;

•  fVleeling with, the Contractor monthly to erisure 'compliance with contractual
requirements; and- . .. •

'• • Reviewing expenditures and conducting data quality assurance activities on a^
•V' -.? ' monthly basis. ^v.

'  Vuv, Should the Governor and Council not authorize.this request, the Department will be
' unable to sustain the management and implementation of the.servlces delivered to families

directly and that prevent child maltreatment, .including Kinship Navigation; support for the Famity
■ Resource Center infrastruclure.'staff training; Early Childhood Regional System sup^rt to
enhance coordination of early childhood systems, and Family Resource Center of Quality
' designation efforts; and expand marketing and messaging about key family programs, including

.f.i

»

V. ..:£i

-.•'-in

•:i 'i
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Hl» Exccftency. GovcfflOf Chiittophef T. Swnunu
V- ' ' and (he Hor^aiM Coundi

Pege3of3 •• '•

chlld care. T>iese services oontribirte to the development of healthy families, which contribute to
the development of healthy communities.

Area served: Statewide.

Source of Federal Funds: ALN 93.670.. FAIN 90CA1858; ALN 93.391. FAIN .
NH750T000031; ALN 93.575. FAIN 2101NHCSC6 and 2101NHCDC6.

In the event that the Federal. Other Funds become no longer available, additionalGeneral Funds will not be requested to support this program. .

Respectfully-submitted, •** ,.
V  1 ..J

S  /

lU-fivrT ■ .
Cd^ Weaver
intern Commissioner

•.*>

''•V'

■iv-
•;Jv^

7.'!

r*...

The DtportrntntofHtallh end Humon it to Join co/nninniiietand fomHin ':i'' in pnt/idi/tg ofipe^luniu'ei/or eiiiunt (0 ochietjehtollhcnd independenct. •

■it
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.  -'v: FlKelOei4il$l>eeiAmendmeni 04

0s-9s-04s-«s0010-72te0000 HEALTX AMO'SOCiAL SERVICES, DEPTOF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS,
HHS: TRANSmONAL ASSISTANCE. DIVIS,ION OF FAMILY ASSISTANCE. KINSHIP
100%Generel FuniJt

Slate Fiscal

Year
Class/Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount

Increase

(Oeaeose)
Re>4s«d Amount

2022 102-500731 Coniracts lor Proo Svc 45001601 5325.000 SO $325,000

2023 102-500731. Coraracts lor Pioo Svc 45001601 $1,325,000 so 51.325,000

2024 102-500731 Coniracts lor Proo Svc '  45001601 5325.000 -S1.000.000 51.325.000

• Sub Total • Sl.975.000 51.000.000 52.075.000

05-95443^50010-72160000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPTOF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS,

HHS: TRANSmONAL ASSISTANCE. DIVISION OF FAMILY ASSISTANCE. KINSHIP
100% Feoerei Fund! -.v-i

New Hynpthlfe'CNldfen'e Tfuit, Inc. vendor 4216449

State Flacal

Year
Class/Account ClBss.TlSe ' jobNimber Currem Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised Amount.'

,  ;

2022 074-500569 Grams lor Pub Assist and Reli 45001602 5199.800 •  SO ■  S169.BX
,* 2023 074-500569- Grams lor Pub Assist and Reii 45001603 '  5199.800 50 •  5199.8X

2024 074-5005691 Grams lor Pub Assist and Rell 45001602 5199.600 . SO 5199.6X

Sub Total t 5599.400 $0 SS99.4X

05495490-9020-50400000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF H^TH ANO HUM/Mt SVS.
HHS: PU8UC HEALTH DIVISION. COMMUNITY AND HEALTH SERVICES
100% Federal Funds.

'■] •

•V* •

Slate Fiscal
Year

Class / Account Class Tide Job Number Currem Amount
irKrease

(Oeaease)
Revised Amouni

2022 102-500731 Conitacu lor Proo Svc 90050405 5631.618 t: sui.'eie
2023 102-500731 . Comiacts lor Prog_Svc . . 90050405' • 51.035.469 50 51.035.469
2024 102-500731 - Contrads lor Proo Svc . 90050405 SO 50 SO

Sub Total '4'. • * - t- $1,867,087 SO 51.667.X7
!•

OS-9S-92420510-33e20Q0O- HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. OEPT OF HEALTH ANO HUMAN SVS. ,
HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DfV. Bureau ol Druo 6 Alcohol Svct. Governor Cemmlaslon Funds
100%0eneril Furrda -i

■'

Tit.-
Stale Fiscal

Year '
Class / Account • Class TUie' ' Job Number Currem Amount •

Increase
fOecresse)

Revised Amount

2022 • 102-500731 Contracts lor ProQ Svc 92058502 5100.000 50 SIX.OX
2023 102-500731 Comrads lor Proo Svc . 02058502 ' 5100.000 50 SIX.OX
2024 102-500731 .- Comrads lor.ProQ-Svc 92056502 SO SIX.OX SIX.OX

Sob Total n- 5200.000 SIX.OX SXO.OX

05-95 490402010-70470000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPTOF HEALTH M4D
HUMAN SVS. HHS: PUBLIC HEALTH OIV. COMMUNITY COLLABORATION . ■

>*' )*»

■r-

State Fiscal
Year Class / Account ., Class Tide • JobNumlser Currem Amount Increase

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

•■2022 102-500731 .  Comrads lor Proo Svc 90070470 535.000.00 SO.X 535.0X.X
2023 102-500731 Conuads lot Proo Svc 90070470 •  50.x SO.X SO.X
2024 102-500731 Comrads lor. Proo Svc • 90070470 SO.X $374.760.X 5374.760.00
2024 102-500731 Comrads lor Proo Svc 9C070471 • 5380.0X.X S380.0X.00

-Sub.Totai 53S.OX.X S7S4.760.x S789.7M.X

05495490401010-57710000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. HEALTH ANO HUMAN SVCS OEPT OF. HHS: PUBLIC HEALTH .
DIVISION. BUREAU OF POLICY ANO PERFORMANCE. PHCOVID-19 HEALTH OISPARITIES . J}; i-
.100% Federal Funds ■ ' . "5
State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account- ^  Class Tide Job Number Currem Amount

Increase
TOecrcase)

Revised Amount

2022 102-500731 Contrads lor Proo Svc TBp ■i- S910.0X .SO S910.0X
2023 102-500731 Corwrads ibr Proo Svc • TBD . .  $1.840.0X •  50 $1.640.0X
2024. 102-500731 Contrads lor Proo Svc ' T6D ■  SO S1X.X0 SIX.OX

•V. -•i *• ' V  Subtotal :t. S2.750.OX SIX.OX '  $2.6X.0X

05493442-421110-24300000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
'SVCS. HHS: HUMAN SERVICES. CHILD DEVELOPMENT. ARPA CHILD CARE STABILIZATION
100% Federal Funds

. New Hampihire Children's Trust, inc.
SS-2022-0EKS-O1NEWHA01-A04

av.
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^  ' Fiscal DeisN SKcct AmcndmenI 04

Stale Fiscal
Year

Class / AcMuni ClauTUle Job Number Current Amount
increase

(Decrease)
Revls^ Amount.

2022 102-500731 Contracts (or Proa Svc' 42117774 $37,499 SO $37,499

2023 102-500731 .Contracts (or Proa Svc 42117774 S112.501 SO 5112.501

Sub ToUl S150.000 SO S150.000

05:095-04J^21i10-24290000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, OEPTOF HEALTH AND HUMAN .
SVCS. HHS: HUMAN SERVICES. CHILD DEVELOPMENT, ARPACHllD CARE CCDF ■ 'H-

State Ftscat
Year

.ClaM 1 Account Class TWe .  Job Numbe' Cvrreni Amouni
Increase

(Decrease)
Revised Amount'

2024 102-500731 Contracts (or Proa Svc 42117773 50 .  5900,000 5900.000

*• Sub Total ' 50 5900.000 S900.000

05-09-42-42

HHS: HUMA

410.79MOOOO HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS OEPT OF.
N SERVICES. JUVENILE JUSTtCE SERVICES. OJJDP •  / •" •'i;

State Fiscal

Year
Class/Account.' Class Tiiie ' Job Numter CurreiY Amouni

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

2022 072-509073 . Contracts (or Proa Svc ■  42140614 50.00 .50.00 50.00

2023 072-509073 Contracts (or Prog Svc 42140614 574.200.00 • 50.00 i>. . 574.200,00

2024 072-509073 Contracts (or Proa Svc -  42140614 574.200.00 $0.00 574,200.00

Sub Total
iT 5148.400.00 50.00 5148.400.00

.• ' C' •  't O^ratlTolall " $7,724,887! S2.854.760l .. $10,579,647

> . ,

GF

■Pf
51.84%
48.16%

•34.55%
65.45%
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■  ' State of New Hampshire .
, Department of Health and Human Services

. Amendment/M .. . "

This Amendment io the New Harripshire Family Resource Center Facilitation Organization ai^ Quality
Specialist contract is by and between the Stale of New Hampshire. Department of Health and Human

'•V. Services ('State' or 'Department').and New Hampshire Children's Trust, Inc.Cthe Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on June 30. 2021 (Item fMI). as amended on October 13, 2021 (Item #20). on April 6, 2022 (Item #8).
and on January 18. 2023. (Item #19), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the
terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended, and in consideration of certain sums
specified; and . •

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37. General Provisions. Paragraph 17. the Contract may be amended
upon written,agreement pf the parties and approval from'the Governor and Executive Council; and ■'

'  VVHEREAS, the parties agree to increase the price limilatio.n and modify the scope of services to support
continued delivery of these services; and

• NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained"

J510.579.W7 - - ' ' ■
.'2. Modify Exhibit B. Scope of Services, by replacing in its entirety with Exhibit B. Amendment #4,

Scope of Senrices, which Is attached hereto and Incorporated by reference herein.
j!!'::, • 3. Modify Exhibit C. Payment Terms, Section 1;to read; , • • '

1. This Agreement is funded by: • • .. V •
"% J:' 1.1. 17.6% New Hampshire Overdose'Dala to Action Program (NH0D2A), as awarded

:.*-i January 2021. by the'Ceniers For Disease Control And Prevention; Assistance
v '■ . . listing Number 93.136, FAiNNU17C£924984. ' , T ' ; '

12. 5.7% ■ Kinship■ Navigator Programs, as. awarded- in October 2020, by the-
'' V; '■ 5'' AdmiriistrationforChildrenandFamilies. AssislanceListingNijmber93.556 FAIN •

■20011NHPKINand2101NHPKIN.

13. 7.5% Community Collaborations to Strengthen and Preserve Farnilies; as awarded
September 2018. by the Administration for.Children and Families, Assistance

Listing Number 93.670. FAIN 90CA1858. ■ .f,,.. '
■ 1.4. 26.9%-HeaHh Disparities Grant, as awarded in May 2021, by the Center for Disease •

, ^ Control and Prevention. Assistance Listing Number .93.391, FAIN NH750T000031. '
1.5, 1.4% ARPA Child Care Stabliization, as awarded In April 2021. by the Child'Care

Development Block Grant, Assistance Listing Number 93.575, FAIN 2101NHCSC6.
". 1.6. 8.5%..ARPA Child.Care CCOF. as awarded in April 2021, by the Child Care '

Development Block Grant..Assislance Listing Number-93.575. FAIN'2101NHCDC6.

"  ..r .1^ ' Funds, as awarded In October 20'18, by the Office of Juvenile Justice and ,
♦, Delinquency Prevention, Assistance Listing Number 16.54, FAIN 2019-JX-FX-'

'• 0052. ••

18. 2.'8®/o General Funds, Governor's.Commission. .
■.V 19. 28;2®/o Gerieral Funds'

4. Modify Exhibit CPaymenl'Terms.,Section 3 to'read: " '
^  . 0>s. . 3. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement.basis for actual expenditures Incufr^in the'

New Hampshire Children's Tfusl, Inc. ' A-S-1.3 Conlractor Initials
SS-2022-DEHS-01-NEWHA-Ol".A(M - ■Page,1o(4
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u.

fulfillment-of this Agreement, and shall be fn accordance with* the approved line item, as
specified in Exhibits C*1, Budget through Exhibit C-23, Budget Sheet. Amendment ItA. .

5. Modify Exhibit C-19.- AmGndment #3. Budget Sheet, by replacing in its entirety with Exhibit C-19.
• Budget Sheet; Amendment #4. SFY 2024. which is attached hereto and incorporated by

•  reference herein. '• *

6. Add Exhibit C-20. Budget Sheet, Amendment #4. SFY 2024.-which is attached hereto.and
•  incorporated by reference herein.

7. Add Exhibit C-21, Budget Sheet, Amendment **4, SFY 2024, which is attached hereto and
Incorporated by reference herein. •

8. Add . Exhibit C-22.'Budget Sheet, Amendment #4, SFY 2024," which Is attached hereto and '
incorporated by reference herein.

9. Add. Exhibit C-23. Budget-Sheet, Amendment #4,. SFY 2024, which is attached hereto and
incorporated.by reference herein. * '• ..

-■' *

.- -:V

'v

'ft;, ■'X

S',. . X. <•

'tt. '• ■-Ml

I

■y • . t*.»

^TV-

*■ •>'*

V*.-

New Hampshire ChiWren's Trust. Inc.
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. Ail terms and conditions of the Contract and prior arhendments not modified by this Amendment remain
in full force.and effect. This Amendment shall be effective July. 1. 2023 upon Governor and Council
approval. • . r' . . . •

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below. ^

State of New Hampshire
,  Department of Health and Human Services ....

6/9/2023

Date Name: Karen hebert ■S'A

Title: Division Olreccor

6/9/2023

Date

New Hampshire Children's Trust. Inc.'
— OMvSlBMabr:

Ms

.Title: Executive Director • y

. -4

:iv.

As

A

4.'. .•

M■ .r

(y

•Vj

'iV-J

/

■ii

t«-r
v..

New.Hampshire Children's Trust. Inc.
SS.2022.OeHS-0l-NEWHA-0i-A04"

•A-S.1.2
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The preceding Amendment. ha*h[ng been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution. "V--. . .. •

\ OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

.X

6/9/2023
.•v,

Date
Cuanno

Title: Attorney

I hereby cenlfy thai the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor, and Executive Council of
The State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: ' fdate of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

i- .r;-'

Date Name:

Title:

•rvt-'

■y. ,.a'

•V" .

V. '
}) %

-f?,

■  " V.

■ •*'

■r'f'

. • H'-" .

.'j'T

New Hampshira'Children's Trusi, Inc..

SS-2022-DEHS^1 .NEW^-OI -AW*
t  ('.i^

■ A-S-1;2
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
<. ' • New Hampshire Family Resource Center Facilitation Organi2dtion and Quality Specialist

EXHIBIT B

Amendment #4

y  -V

Scope of Services

1. Statement of Work

1.1. ' The dontractor must provide services in this agreement to- the statewide
■■ network of Family Resource Centers (PRCs) in New Hampshire.

1.2. The Contractor must ensure services are available Statewide via phone,
teleconferencing, and In-person meetings. ,

1.3. For the purposes of this agreement, all references to business hours must
meari Monday through Friday, from 8:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m., excluding state,
federal, and Contractor holidays. ^

1.4. . The Contractor must participate in meetings with the Department on a quarterly
basis, oc as otherwise requested by the Deparirfient.

■ 1.5. Facilitalidh Organization and FRO Quality Designatior^

'■ 1.5.1. The Contractor must support each FRC with their self-assessment
to determine the level of readiness for each FRC to receive the •
Family Resource Center of Quality (FRC-0) designation in ■ 'T
accordance with National Family Support-Network (NFSN) t, •

'* Staridards of Quality for Family Strengthening and Support
(Standards). ,

1.5.2. The Contractor must perfdrm an individual assessment of any FRC
applying for FRC-Q designation to identify and .docurnent
deficiencies in meeting Standards and to assist each PRC . - .
throughout the application process.. -•

1.5!3. ■ The Contractor must work with, the Wellness and Primary
Prevention Council (VVPPC) and Family Support NH (FSNH) to

;  . provide support to PRCs In implementing and meeting the •
Staridards for the purpose of acquiring an FRC-Q designation. The

' Contractor must ensure support, which includes, but is not limited .
to: , ■

s' 1.5.3.1. Providing.FRC& with information about the Standards
.. (hltps://www.na'tionalfamilysupportnetwofk.org/

;  standards-df-quaHty). ' .
1.5.3.'2..i^ 'Providing technical support to -FRCs ' with the

i  Implementation of Standards.

•  1.5.3.3. Providing • technical * support , to FRCs with the
•- , implementation of procedures to document practice of

^  . . j Standards-! _ ,
SS-2022-DEHS.01-NEWHA-01-A04

New'Hampshire Children's Trust, IrK. Page i of 23

Contracior Inilials

' Dale

'.v. Li

-  .i"
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•  ■ * * ■ . ■ 'i >
New Hampshire Department of. Health and Human Services
New Hampshire Family .Resource Center Facilitation Organiiation and Quality Specialist ' •

.. EXHIBITS
f; V Amendment #4

•  1.5.3.4. Providing training and iechnical assistance to PRCs with ,, ,
•  , ■ the development of a written plan to meet Standards.

^  1.5.3.5. Traveling to any PRC. requesting an in-person
•• T' ^ • consultation. . . .

1.5.3.6. Assisting PRCs with completing the FRC-Q application." ■ ^

'* 1.5.3.7. Reviewing FRC-Q applications for accuracy.. . '

"■ ■ ' ■ 1,5.3.8. Participating in the NFSN through a membership with
PSNH; and

•  1.5.3.9. . Providing PRCs with information and trainings on
acquiring the-FRC-Q designation. X'

.. ' 1.5.4. The Contractor'must collaborate with other PRC technical,
.  - asisistance assets to assess the capacity of each PRC relative to *

■  the core.and optional standards defined by (he WPPC.
1.5.5. • The Contractor must work with the Department and PRCs to f'

determine culturally appropriate-process and outcome data ' , '
'  collection and analysis. -

1.5.6. The Contractor must assisfPRCs with increasing operational
:  efficlencles: • . 'sc-

.  1.5.7... - The Contractor must provide technical assistance for oversight as ...
^  well as implementalipn of a quality improvement process. .v .
■" 1.5:8. The Contractor must utilize a Community of Practice sharing model

;  • that allows FRO administrators and leadership to establish and ' '
v: . . Strengthen cooperation, collaboration, .and informal mentoring

'V* , among PRCs. . ^
1.5.9. The Contractor must educate policymakers, conimunities. and - T

comniunity groups on PRC best-practices. . ■
1.'5.10. The Contractor must ensure priority Is given io PRCs providing

*■ -v" home services to: :;• • • -a
1.5.10.1. Families for whom the Division for Children. Youth and

'  Families (pCYP) has issued a letter of concern:
1.5.10.2. Families with cases reported by'DCYP as unfourided but '' ■

with reasonable concern; and "■ ,

1.5.10.3. ■ ■ Recipients of Temporary Assistance to Needy Fannilies
:  (TANF) program services. -

ESS-2022-DEHS-01-NEWHA-9.1.A04 Conuaclor Initials

New Hampshire Children's Trust, Inc. _ .' ;■ _ Page 2 of 23 . Date
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human-Services
.if- New Hampshire Family Resource Odnter Facilitation Organization and Quality Specialist

EXHIBITB■M .."

Amendment#4

1.5.11..

i

. M

1.5.12.

The Cohlraclor must ulilize the Family Support Data System
/(FSDS), or other Quickbase applications as. appropriate, for the.
purposes of supporting quality improvement efforts, capable of
collecting data on, but not limited to, the following;
1.5-.11.1. Identifying PRC location's statewide. '
1.5.11.2. Identifying FRC-Q locations statewide.

* 1.5.11.3. Identifying FRC-Q designation.expiration "dates.
1.5,11.4. Documenting-irainings provided to FRCs through:

1.5.11.4.1'; . ■ Title of each training:

:r;"' 1.5,11.4.2. •. Number of training attendees; and 7
'  . ' ' . .•. 1:5'.11.4.3. Learning objectives for each trairiing.

. 1.5,11.5. Identifying which FRCs have connpleted the FRC-Q self-
assessment. = • - •

1.5.11.6. Identifying which .FRCs have completed the FRC-Q
/designation appli.cati.on;-

1.5.11.7:,

1."5.11.8.

1:5.11.9:

•Identifying FRCs with plans in place to become an FRC-
p. ; , ^ . .r* -v ■-
Identifying individuals who have received Standards
certification.

DocumentingJRC and FRC-Q service outcomes.
1.5.1,1.10. Documenting FRC program and population priorities. *
1.5.11.11. Identifying shared rheasurements among FRCs for

family outcomes.
The Contractor must ensure collection of data in the FSDS and

• support dala quality, incjuding, but noflimlted to, the following
demographics:
1.5.12;1.' . , Race. " /' V
1.5.12.2. Ethnicity. •' •-
■1.5.12.3. ' Language'. ./ ■*

1.5.12.4. Household, income.

■1.5.12.5. ' Marital status.

1.5.12.6. Age of parenls or caregivers. -D)

SS-2022.DEHS-OI-NEWHA.01-A04

New Hampshire Children's Trust, IfK; "Page 3 of 23

Conlrdclor Iniiials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
.. New Hampshire Family Resource Center Facilitation Organization and Quality Specialist

EXHIBIT B ^ .
'  ' Amendment #4

rjJT- T ■' . _ ■ _,V-
,  ';A, -■

1.5.12.7. Sexual orientation'and/or gender identity.
1.5.12.8. Town.

1.5.12.9. County. ' '■ ^

1.5!l2.10. Incarcerated parent.

1.5.12.11. Receipt of:public benefils, which Includes, but Is not
r ^ limited to: . . "

*  1.5.12.11.1. Supplemental . Nutrition Assistance
Program (SNAP).

,  . : * 1.5.12.11.2. New Hampshire Child Care Scholarship.
I' i;5.12:11.3. ■ Medicaid. ... .V" v.'- '

1.5.12.11.4. Social Security Disabilily Insurance v.
A " (SSDI). . ■ • . ■ '

1.5.12.11.5. Supplemental Security Income (SSI).

V  > 1.5.12.11.6. TANF. .
v  2 1.5.12.11.7. Special Supplemental Nutrition Program

for Vyorrien, Infants, and Children (WIC); ■ ' /
1.5.13, The Contractor must provide upon request to the-Department
^  summary reports, information, and individual participant-outcomes •' •

reporting. ;,v

1.;5-.14. • The Contractor must coordinate data collection efforts for PRC
programs, which include, but are not limited to: ■ '

•• • • '{•- ;•{
1.5.14.1. Corhprehensive Family Support Services (CFSS).

1.5.14.2. NH Maternal, Infant, and.Early.Childhood Home Visiting.
(MIECHV). . > ' J '

.1.5.14.3.. Healthy Families Amerlca'(HFA) Home Visiting. '
1.5.14.4. Community Collaborations to Strengthen arid .Preserve 'X.

... , Pamiliei (CCSPF).

X. " 1.5.14.5. . Early Childhood Regional System. •• "
1.5.15. The ContractQf must provide Technical Assistance (TA) around

-.;j;v - ■'' ^ data integrity and'develop reports related to the data collection. . ■4K'
1.5.16. The Contractor must provide training to all new FRC sla?f who enter

data into the Quickbase platform.

•  . ■ 6s .
SS-2022-OEH$-01-N6WHA-01-A04 . Contrsclof Initials ̂
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
New-Hampshire F^amlly Resource CenterFacUltallon Organization and Quality Specialist

EXHIBIT B ^
Amendment #4

1.5.17._ The Contractor must ensure.data integrity for the CFSS program
and Community Collaborations project and provide the necessary
reports monthly.

1.5.18. The Contractor must work with the Department to plan and ajign "
•. > other data collection efforts for any other new programs - r: •

administered through FRCs.

1.5.19. Tlie Contractor must provide quality Improvement training and
resources to FRCs and FRC-Qs, which includes, but is not limited

■  to: •

I.-'

1.5.19.1. Collecting dnd.disseminating FRC-Q best practices and
, evidence-based program models.

•  1.5.19.2. Convening FRCs and FRC-Qs in' a Community of.
•  • Practice sharing model. ' • '

■1.5.19.3. Promoting collaboration through shared learning
' opportunities and training with PRCs and FRC-Qs

"  across stale agencies In an effort to improve service.
•  '• •'* • outcomes. ' ;v. ' "

T.5.19.4. Increasing PRC administrative ,and operational
.. • , ...efficiencies. *

1.5.19.5. . Providing technical assistarice to ensure thai each "FRC-
Q has a clear non-profit business model!

'• 1.5.20. The Contractor must provide funding to each PRC in year two (2) of
the contract for administrative needs to support the work of the
PRC, .which includes, bul ls hot limited to: \ '•*-

~  i.5.20.1. Executive Director and Chief Financial Officer salaries.
J.' ' ' '

'  * •' " 1.5.20:2.- iBuilding repairs and maintenance.
1.5.21. The Contractor must ensure the.distrlbution of funds is based on. a

formula with FRC-Q designation.. .
1-.5.,22. The Contractor rpay identify and assist FRCs and FRC-Qs in their .

■  applications for. addlllona! funding opportunities for FRC and FRCQ
operations, programs, or quality improvement activities.

"  1.5.23. The'Contractor must facilitate the FRC-Q designation review
,4 process, which,includes, but is not limited to:

■ 1.5.23.1. Assembling FRC-Q designation review teams devised of
members of the WPPC.-

■  '■ ■ CS-S$-2022-D£HS-Ot-NEWHA^I-A04 . . . Conlroclor Initials^r===_
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services .
New Hampshire Family Resource Center Facilitation Organizetion arid Qualiiy Speciatist

^  EXHIBIT B ,

'  • :• ' fv-' ' Amendment#4

1.5.23:2. Providing reviewing teams with necessary sile reyiew

f  tools.

1.5.23.3. Coordinating PRC site reviews.

1.5.23.4. Recording, publishing, and reviewing team minutes. • •

1.5.23.5. Developing a form to gather review team meeting
•:V feedback. • ' - * - • .

1.5.23.6. . Communicating results to FRO applicants.

1.5.24. The Contractor must attend all WPPC meetings.

1.5.25. The Contractor must attend all FSNH monlhl/meetings and r "' .J.

,'r-

■  ' ,6/9/2023
NowrtampsWreChildren'sTrusl.'Inc. • Pdg®6of23 '• , Dale

%. '.-n

'hs

provide progress reports on the number of FRCs achieving FRC-Q
designation: . >

^ -V ^-1*5.26. The Contractor must attend any NFSN meetings as Identified by .;•■
the Department." '

,1.5.27.' The Contractor'must utilize project management best practices-
throughout the conlracl terrn.

1.5.28. ■ The Contractor musi demonslrate implementation of a Community
of Practice-sharing model among FRCs and FRC-Qs.

1.5.29.- The Contractor must documehl specific trainings, guidance, and
supports for FRCs and FFtC-Qs providing home visiting services.

.1.5.30.. The Contractor must maintain the FSDS data collection system in
accordance with this Scope of Services.

1.5.31. The Contractor must derrions.trate an increase in the number of, . ,
FRCs receiving the FRC-Q designation.-

1.5.32. The Cofitractor rhust maintain the training process and continue to
develop the Kinship. Navigation-position based on evaluation of the.
program -and staff .performance.

.  1.5.33. The Contractor must provide evidence of a sufficient number of
'• Navigators through subcontract to ensure Statewide coverage..

1.5.34. The Contractor must support FRC-Q with the re-designation. ^ .v
process every three (3) years. ;• . * ■»

! . 1.5.35. The Contractor ni.ust"provide support to FRC^Q to develop a work
' V' , plan to increase best practice standards using the National,

"  standards of quality for fanhily strengthening and support, data
r: outcomes, clieht "satisfactofy sutvcys BOd otheV evalualiop IogIs;.

SS-2022-OEHS-0l-NeWHA-0l-A04 CohUactOf Inilials^^-— ;
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. New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
New Hampshire Family Resource Center Facilitation Organization and Quality Specialist

EXHIBITS
Amendment #4 , -

1.6.

1.5.36. The Contractor; in collaboration with the Department, must design a
FSNH satisfaction survey to ensure the Facilitation Organization
meets the needs of the PRCs./

Kinship Navigators
1.6.1. The Contractor must fund and support positions for the purposes of

supporting kinship caregivers who are caring for kin. The
' •* Contractor must ensure:

1.6.1.1. Navigators are utilized within FRCs and FRC-Qs to
•  t ' ■ -ft provide support to kinship caregivers who are caring for

. ft kin as a result of a placement; and

1.6.1.2. Navigators connect with kinship caregivers. in-person or
by other electronic means, such as FaceTime and Zoom,

ft for purposes that include, but are not limited to;- .

1.6.1.2.1. Assessing kinship caregiver needs. .

1.6.1.2.2. ' f^rdviding outreach, engagement, and"
-  . community support services and

referrals. "

1.6.1.2.3. Utilizing or creating peer support groupis
.ft..,. - ■ for kinship caregivers.

1.6.2.; The Contractor must provide training to Navigators to provide > -
consistency across Navigators through education and training, ' • ;
consistent with: 'ft'

■>^7-

1.7.

1:6.2.1.- DCYFjand
• • •■ .. .. -

"  1.6.2.1 TANF. ft
1.6.3. ■ .The Contractor must maintain or increase Navigator positions and

kinship Navigator support in each year of this Agreement.

Community Health .Workers . . .

1.7.1.

1.7.2.

.«

The Contractor must subcontract with the statewide network of
FRCs to fund positions establishing a workforce of Community •
Health Workers (CHWs) to provide direct.services to priority
populations Imp.acted by COVIp-19 and. health disparities.

The Co'ntractor must provide and support specialized training arid
technical assistance as proposed by the Department to the newly-
developed workforce of Community Health .workers with topics
including, but not limited to: '

fS
SS.2022-OEHS-01-N EVyHA-OI -A04
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EXHIBIT B
Amendment #4

■i- .V- " -.ti- . - S

17.2.1. Role ofCHWs. , . ■ ,

1.7.2.2! . Community Heallh Workers and Public Health Networks.
.1.7.2.3. . Community Health Workers and community coalitions.
1.7.2.4. Local community and health resources.

1.7.3. The Con.tractor must support FRC Family Support staff and
Community Health Worker's with training and technical assistance

•  around data collection, cultural competency, and accessing state
and local communliy resources. Data will be collected in the Family
support Data System (FSb'S) or another application in Quickbase

■  : as appropriate. Training's include, but are not-limited to;
1.7.3.1. Becoming providers of NH Easy.
1.7.3.2. Bureau of Family Assistance overview training.
1.7.3.3. Cultural diversity and equity training.

'1.7.3.4., Family Support Data System/
1.7.3!5. Concrete support and Retrospective Protective Factors

Survey-2 (PF$-2) to determine social determlnanis of
health needs and protective factors skills gained.

i.7.3,6. Assessing food insecurity.
1.7.4. The Contractor must allow and encourage CHWs to participate on

the NH CHW Coalition and the CHW Community.of Practice.

1.7.5. The Contractor must allow and encourage CHW. attendance at
•  Department-approved trainings through Area Health Education

^  CentersJAHECs) and North Country Health Consortium to meet
thirteen (13) competencies for CHWs.

1.7.6. The Coniractor musl ensure that Family' Support Workers and
CHWs: /.

'  1.7.6.1. Provide case nrianagement and connections to
/  ' . * community services and referrals; /-■"

1.7.6.2.- Complete PFS-2 surveys or other Needs Assessnnents
and Protective Factors assessments;.

1.7.6.3. Enter data into the FSDS; • •
i'. '■ .

.  1.7.6:4. * Assist with maintaining and/or applying for social
■  services within their community; V

■; /—■

-  ■ is
SS-2022-qEHS-01-NEWHA.01.A64 .... , ... Comractof Initials^ a
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EXHIBIT B

.  ̂ Amendment #4 • ^

' ' ' '• .V .. .. .
.r-. , - - . JJ* J ■ \*

1.7.6.5;; Provide and distribute educational information-about
COVID-1'9 vaccinations -and .Department general
guidance.for individual mitigation; '

.  ■ .. 1.7.6.6. identify and help to mitigate barriers in health care-
.  ' :• access such as transpodation, language, childcare,

•  ' ' etcetera; and

1.7.6.7. . Connect clients with community-based, agencies and
.. supports through closed loop and/or warm hand-off
referrals for topics Including, but not limited to:

1.7.6.7.1. Food insecurity.

1.7.6.7:2. Mental health supports.
V' .. .1.7.6.7.3. Health care referrals.

1.7.6.7.4. Substance use disorder supports. *

•" *-■ 1.7.6:7.5. Educational supports and services. . - "
^  1.7.6.7.6. • Financial literacy. • , .

1.7.6.7.7. Budgeting supports.

1.7.6.7.8. .COVID-19 testing, vaccinatiori, and/or
imrhunization resources.

1.8. Community;Collabofatldns
1.8.1.. The Contractor musi work with the Department's Conj^^ily .

Collaborations Initiative to provide .distribution of outreach materials,
.7 trairiing and education to the community about the se.rvices offered

through the Family Support programs and CHWs, which includes,- ■
V  but is not limited to: , ; .

1.8.1.1. Printing-outreach and education materials iri additional
languages, such as Spanish. Nepalese. or other

W  ■' languages to support FRC engagement with families. .
::• 1.8.V.2.' Prioritizing and implernenting strategies that provide"

engagement and education of early childhood providers
i: - ■* iv 'V about FRCs and the services provided.

- 1.8.1.3. .. . Promoting Family Leadership membership within
RegionaliSystems. ^

1:8.1:4. Prioritizing and implementing strategies that provide
engagement and education-of incarcerate^;^rent'

V  families on FRC services provided through panf|^hips
SS-2022-OEHS.01-NEWHA-O1-AO4 Conlraclof InilialsV—
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EXHIBIT B

Amendment #4

i  of aclivilles with the Family Connections Center at the-
New Hampshire Departrrient of Corrections..

;  1.8.2. The Contractor must prioritize, fund, and subcontract with, the three
,v ' ' * . (3) Community Collaborations agencies within the following Early

Childhood Regional Networks to support ongoing cross-sector
coordination to support families:

"■ ' 1.8.2.1. Region 4: Manchester. :i
1.8.2.2. Region 5; Central NH, Lakes: and

1:8.2.3. Region 7: North Country. . •:
1.8.3. ' The Contractor must support the Community Collaborations and

•  other Early Childhood Regions with utilizing collective impact
practices including biit not limited to Boundary Spanning

'  Leadership to promote cross-system collaboration and enhance
-  . i; relationships between.PRCs, FRC-Qs. schbois, Early Childhood

Regional Systems, child welfare and family service agencies,
■ businesses, phiianthrop,to funders, and other organizations , -

i  providing family support and/or economic support services.
,  1.8.4. The Contractor must ensure that Commuriily CoIIaboratiorns Early

Childhood Regions have processes in place to evaluate, monitor;
. establish, and measure within each region: =

'  1.8.4.1. .Direction: agreement on overall " goals, . aims, and
mission; . * •;

.. *' 1.8.4.2. ■ Alignment: organization and coordination of knowledge
•• V. ' " •'- and work; and ' S:'; .... '

^  ■ . 1.8.'4.3-. Commitrfient;.shared responsibility for the group.
1.9. Early Childhood Regional System ■ " '■' * v

1.9.1. The Contractor rriust subcontract with the seven (7) Early / '
.. Childhood Regional Systems to support the FRC-Q indicator of

community strengthening. .

.  1.9.2. The Contractor must support the Early Childhood Regional System
to develop strong and healthy communities by working

■  collaborallveiy with various stakeholders, such as PRC's, by
• establishing formal partnerships in order to address community vr

'  issues and priorities and enhance early childhood care and
education (ECCE). Formal partnerships include, but are not limited

.  to: • •

6s ■ \
I aI* V.SS-2022-DEHS-Q1-NEWHA^1.A04 , ' Conlrector InUials
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EXHIBITS

:  Amendment #4

*  . ' /p;-'

* < • ' ;o; 1.9.2.1. Parent Leadership. • '•
,f.. " " '■

1.9.2.2. . Family Resource Centers and home visiting programs.
.  .1.9.2.3. . Community Health Centers and Health Providers.

-I'v- 1.9,2.4. ,,^,f:sfmily Centered Early Supports and Services.

1,9.2.5. Regional Public" Health Networks.
^  ' 1.9.2.6?/ Nutrition SeK/ices agencies.

i.9.2.7. Head Start. Early Head Start, family or center-based
^  ■> childcare. ■ , ,

... ■' ' ■ -1.9.2.8. Local educational agencies serving children birth to"
=•?'? eighi, . including before-school and after-school

'  k prograrris. and public and private schools.,
r  , i.9.2.9. Behavioral health system, serving children and their "

?  . '■ i f. families. ' •
4  '-L- 1.9.2.10. Supports for children with disabilities and deveiopmenlal ■ ■

I  debys. . . * ' ■ . '
,.9;- ' ■ ;i ■1.9.2.11. - Economic assistance and ernployment support system.

1.9.2.12. . Childwelfare.' : . "
1.9.2.13. •Other.externa! community partners and/or public-private .

:  :. partnerships as unique to each region (e.g., ;
'• .9:- philanthropy, local government officials, Charhber of 1

Commerce, law • enforcement officials, community
;; recreation, faith-based groups, housing services, and

■ local businesses).

\i 1.9.3. The.Contractor must establish and mainlain.an infrastructure to
'  support the seven'(7) Early Childhood Regional System networks.

"■ T .9.4. ■ The Contractor must support'capacllybuilding and key indicators
;  for Early Childhood Regional System to establish and maintain a
"  process to;

1.9.4.1. Erisurp each of the seven (7) early childhood regions has
s.v 'a lead agency identified to coordinate localized partner

?/'*"_ ' . collaboration, initiatives, needs assessments and
■• ' reporting;

1.9.4.2. . Maximize awareriess of community resources available
in the slate, regionally, and nationally in orderlo^duce

■  gaps and duplication, increase localized pl.anriij^ and'
SS.2022-OEHS-0,1-NEW/HA-01-AW '• ,■ Contfaclor initio'lsU^--
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exhibit b

•  ' T Amendment #4

■<St

• i '

<ih'

1.9.5.

coordination, in order to connect families with needed
•  services. . <•:

1.9.4.3. Enhance the quality of and increase access to ECCE
and community based family supports and expand the

V/' use of evidence based or evidence informed practices;

1.9.4.4.' Prioritize partnerships and members from PRCs, Home-
v.- Visiting programs, School,. Regional Public Health

Networks, and Family Advisory Council membership to
enh'ance ECCE coordination;

1.9'.4-.5. Improve and strengthen state-regional comrriunication
including sharing of community priorities .and needs as
well as NH Department of Education (NHED) and DHHS
priorities and initiatives; and • v;

1.9.4.6. Identify shared riieasures of success, as agreed upon by
the Department; which include, but are not limited to:

^  1.9.4.6.1. Data collection arid strategy mapping.
1.9.4.6.2. ■ Performance nneasures.

1.9.4.6.3. Needs and gaps assessments
.. • conducted or utilized by regions. .

1.9.4.6.4. Training opportunities, attendance, and
community partners.

,, 1.9.4.6.5. Strategies and tools to measure success.
■1.9.4.6.6. Technical.assistance provided.

1.9.4.6.7. Quarteriyreporting.
The Contractor must provide technical assistance for the Early
Childhood'Regional System/Regibnal Leads, which includes, but is
not iinfiited to:

■I.9.5.I.' Ensuring bi-directional ^communication betvyeen the

. ... • 1.9.5.2.

'  1.9.5.3.

SS.2022-DEHS^1-NeVWA.0VA04
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.  EXHIBIT B
'  Amendment #4 :

I! - —

f  '

;;; • 1.9.5.4. . Providing training and coaching on collective impact
T  ' practices and models, vyhich includes; but is not limited

•'5 - " to. Boundary Spanning Leadership.

1.10. Marketing and Public Awareness

>•* • i-

'  i'M-

1.10.1. The Contractor must market FRCs to raise public awareness, and
..--r to raise awareness among statewide and potential partners.'

1.10.2. r the Contractor must ensure that public awareness activities align
^  and are coordinated with ot.her statewide family support and

strengthening networks. . ' .

1.10.3.. The Contractor must ensure consistent marketing and branding of "
PRCs and FRC-Qs by targeting specific audiences, including, but ' ■:
not limited to:

■/* "1-.1_0.3.1. Conimuhity leaders and stakeholders.
1.1.0.3.2. Caregiyers with young children, j-.

s:.: ■■ 1.10.3.3. . Childcare centers and providers."

'  :• 1.10.3.4.- Family support agencies. '
'  . ■ ri

1.10.4. The Contractor must marke:t and promote Statewide awareness
among the public and potential parlners.of: . ; "

V  1.10.4.1. Family Resource Centers (FRCs); '
v;- 1.10.4.2. • .Child Care Development Fund scholarship;

1.10;4.3. Regional Early Childhood System; and
t.10.4.4. NH Connections website. • '

1..10.5. The Contractor.must manage the NH-Connections consumer
educatj,on website, Chiid.Care.Aware of NH (nh-connections.org).
Management responsibilities must Include, biifare not limited to:

-  ■ 1.10.5.1.' • Promote the use of the NH Connections website among , .
'^stakeholders. ■ ■ ^

.V 3; • i."i0.5.2. Host NH Connections website Upon request.
f- .'"i .. • . ■

'  1.10.5.3. Maintain.the NH Connections website to ensure, it is:
.  ' • • • •'■ 1.10.5.3.1. " Navigable, with working links;

'  1.10.5:3.2. Current,- including' updating, and
v: . , v removing outdated information and data

V,.,, on a daily or weekly basis as^^ded; v
'■ and ' 1 6S ' ' "'i.

SS-2022-OEH$<I l-NEWHA-Ol -AOI . Contraclor initials'^
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EXHIBIT B
•v,; .;' '• Amendment #4

1.10.5.3.3. Compliant with federal requirements for
the consumer education website, as

4. detailed in the Office for Child Care
> Guidelines. ;v

1.10.5.4. * Create a system for staff and contractors to
■j-

communicate needed changes and updates.

. 1.10.5.5. Support external partners and contractors to develop
informational pages as needed. ■ -*

N,

1.10.5.6. Track use, Including visit frequency and navigation.
1.10.5.7. Provide a platform .for ongoing feedback on site use

satisfaction.

1.10.6. The Contractor rhUsI increase public awareness of the quality
designation among childcare centers and/or providers through

' content and/or collateral development and targeted messaging
and/or outreach.

1.10.7. The Contractor must provide marketing and public awareness to
ensure stakeholders, families, child care providers, social service
providers, local and state government officials and employees, and
employers are aware of, have access to. and utilize the child care
services-, initiatives, training, technical assistance, and programs- ^
provided by the Depariment, their contractors, and parlriers.
Marketing includes, but is riot limited to: .,;•

* H 1.10.7.1. A comprehensive marketing and branding guide for use
by staff and contractors delivering child care programs

*  ' • * > •**

aligned with Department guidelines. %:

■','v''T.10.7.2. Working with coritractors to ensure a'cohesive marketing
plan thai aligns with Department requirements. •

'f- 1.10.7.3. Designing and developing content for monthly and
*  quarterly updates for various initiatives, as requested by

/r; .. the Department.

^■■* ' 1.10.7.4. Creating a. standardized template for PowerPoint
presentations, brochures! and additional resources, as •

^  requested by the Department, that builds a recognizable. ,
'7';. • ; * and consistent!brand image.

1.10.7.5. Supporting the annual Celebration for Early Chjidhood
*  . ' Professionals and the Celebration for Oul^rdS^hool ■'Time Professionals. * f '

SS-2022-DEHS-01-NEWHA^l-A04 - ' ConVflclof Iniiials
6/9/2023
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>  EXHIBIT B
•  Amendment #4

1.10.8. The Contractor must promote use and understanding of New
'Hampshire Connections'information System (NHCIS) through
development of training tools and tip sheets.• : 5-!

.41'

1.10.9. ■ The Contractor must promote the use and understanding of the * '
newly developed Family Information Network accessible through

'  ■■ the NH Connections website and hosted In the NHCIS.

1.10.10. The Conlracior must develop and implement a plan,, in
collaboration with the Department, to promote the following
programs and initiatives to providers, families, employers, PRCs.-

X  contractors, .sehrice providers, and other stakeholders through
y; prpmotional pieces, social media, instructional tools, and videos, as

.  appropriate: * ■ ■

' ' t-.IO.IO.I. Granite-Steps for Quality-. ' ' *

1.10..10.2. New Hampshire Child Care Scholarship Program.

^  * . 1.10.10.3. Head Start and Early Head Start.

-  • 1.10.16.4. New Hampshire. Early Childhood and Out-of-Schpol
' • '■ ^ Time Credenlialing System.-
.  r "'S'- " ■ 1.10.10.5. Other initiatives and projects identified by the

'  ' Depa'rtmerit. ■ .y
1.11. Juvenile Justice Family Assessment . \

•1.11:1. The Contractor must subcontract-with the statevyide network of •
•  PRCs tj3 provide a private meeting space at designated PRC

Tj: ;fT. locations so that the Juvenile Probation Parole Officers (JPPQ) can
meet and work with the youth and family.

• • 1.11.2. The Contractor must: • -•

iii;' 1.11.2,1. Coordinate -a private meeting space that is. in a
•  '■ -'.V 'M convenient location.fpr the youth and.family and where.

>  the JPPO completing the assessments can engage with
youth and families in a collaborative environment that,

x:' provides privacy for the youth and family.
i.v-: i' ' 1.11.2.2. Ensure the meetings are coordinated with the

... Department.
". • 1.11.2'3.- Offer availability during all regular business hours and

^..y- .. have extended hours to meet the needs of Ihe -families.-
'M: . .. .1.11.2.4. Offer access td the meeting space and resewation-

^ is ' system during evening hours. .
SS-2022-OEHS^1.NEWHA-01-A04 ' Contractor milials
New Hampshire Children's Trust. Inc. ■Pagei5pI23 * . " Dale
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Amendment #4 •

'■5 "• 7 '

2. Exhibits Incorporated , '

2.1. The Contractor must use and disclose Protected Healih Information in
"  compliance with the Standards for Privacy'of Individually Identifiable Health" .

• Information (Privacy Rule) (45.CFR Parts 160 and 164) under the HealthInsurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIP^) of 1596, and in accordance
with the attached. Exhibit I. Business Associate Agreement, whicH has been
executed by the parties. ^ -

2.2- The Contractor must manage all confidential data related to this Agreement in
accordance with- the terms of Exhibit K. DHHS Information Security.

'"V Requirements. " ■'* . - '

2.3. The Contractor must comply with all-Exhibits D through K. which are attached
hereto and incorporated by-reference herein.

3. Reporting Requirements .

.  .Quarterly Reports . '
'  3.1. The Contractor must submit quarterly reports..or upon'Department request, to

•  the Department and WP.PC withl.n fifteen (15) days following the end of the
reporting perio.d, to ensure adequate and efficient, service delivery., quarterly

.  reports include, but are nol limited to;- r . " ,
3.1.1. The number of FRC-Q designation applications received. ; . , ■

. '"'.3.1.2. The number.o.fFRC and FRC-Q site reviews performed. ;;i;
'  3.1.3. The number of PRCs receiving the FRC-0 designation. .. '

3.1.4. Status updates on PRCs applying for the FRC-Q designation accprding
.>■ ■ ■ -to the FRC's.individualized written plan.

3.1.5.. A cornprehensive training plan for each FRC-Q within ninety (90) days
■ " ■ of receipt of FRC-Q designation. " .. -

/  3.1^6. The number and topics of trainings provided to all PRCs and FRC-Qs.
-3,1.7. The number of FRC and FRC-Q staff trained. ^ .* ^
3.1.8. Progress made in developing shared family outcome measures. ^ :
3.1.9. The number of Navigator positions supported and/or funded. •;
3.1.10. The number of trainings delivered to Navigators.

3.2. The Contractor must submit a monthly Kiriship Navigator enrollment report " '
within fifteen (15) days following the end .of the reporting period, with a finely
.report due thir^ (30) days following the contract completion date. ^

3.3. The Contractor must submit quarterly reports to the Department,wUhiijr^fteen
SS.2022-bEHS-Ol-N6WHA-01-A04 Conmtof Initials^ ^
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EXHIBITS

Amendment ■

(15) days following the end of the reporting period, to ensure adequate and
efficient service delivery. Quarterly reports include, but are not limited to;

3.3.1. The nurnber of:CHWs at each PRC. Including any staffing changes and
identified funding sources to support C.HW positions.

3.3.2. The number and type of trainings provided to both the Family Support
Staff and CHWs through COVID-19 Health Disparities funding.

3.3.3. The number of CHWs and PRCs enrolled as providers of NH EASY in
order to support individual connections to economic supports to
minimize COVID-i9 impacts;

3.3.4. The number of improvements to data collection, quality, and reporting
capacity for recipients iri relation to COVID-19 disparities and inequities,
. which includes, but is not limited to:

. 3.3.4.1. Workforce support for.data collection and reporting to
ensure collection of.complete and representalive data
(e.g.. race, ethnicity.'Kinship, and incarceration).X.'.

•■ if--

3.3.4.2. Implemented strategies to educate CHW and PRC staff,
on (he importance of data to address disparities and

.  inequities. •v'fv..

' V

3.3.4.3; Developed plans for data quality assurance and
•  Improvement. ,• . • • • :v.

.. .13.4.4. NumberofcasesbyCHWandnumberofencountersper '
•• . ' CHW. " ■

- . '3,3.4.5. ■ Number of COVID-19 encounters indicating mitigation
"w-fv and prevention through referral of .vaccination and •

■  ' f, . vaccine support by each PRC and by CHW, which
includes coordiriation of . activities 'related to
administration of vaccines, but not the actual vaccine .

•-i" .-xadminislration.

3.14.6. Number of encounters to provide communication about
V  ,?. # ' ■ C0VID--19 risk factors, millgation, and prevention.

3.3.4.7. , , Nurnber of other navigation arid support sen/ices, to ... x
''.address" COVID-19. risk factors (e.g.. employrrienl, . .

'•'* , " economic, child care, health care).
.3.4. The Contractor must use the NH Division of Public Health Services Equity" f

t  Review Tool.kit prior to work plan deveioprfient, and/or implernentatipn of, o
programrning. This toolkit will provide guidance on ensuring equily,7fito :

f"- Race. Ethnicity and Linguistic (REAL) and Sexual Orientation ;;ani^nder
SS-2022-D6HS-01-NEWHA-CVA04 Conlreclor ,,

'  • •' " * ' 679/2023 ;
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EXHIBITS

Amendment #4

:■ Identity (SOG'I) data collection, as well as community engagement, ds core_
pieces of the work of the Department grant-based work. '

3.5. . The Cbhtraclpr musl submit quarterly Regional Leads data within fifteen (15)
days following the end of the reporting penod, with a final report due thirty (30)
days following contract corhpleiion date, to ensure adequate and efficient'

-  service delivery. Regional Leads quarterly reports must include, but are not
limited to: . " •

•  3.5.1. Performance measures across all regions.

3.5.2. -Evaluation strategies. ;
3.5.3. Technical assistance plan.- ' • •

3.5.4. Training plan.. v ^

3.5"5. Project staffing assignments. > . .... v.,
3.5.6. Partnerships engaged io support the regional networks.

Annual Reporting
•  ̂ A

3.6. The Contractor must provide a comprehensive annual report by June 30"? of
each year. The annual report must summarize: ^

3.B.I.' Participation;- . '*
■  3.6.2. Outcomes; y % •

3.6.3. ChaHenges;
-  . 3;6.4; Strengths;and Z. ■ *' . . 'f

'  3.6.5. -Identified needs for the upcoming fiscal'year. .
■i} ' ■ '

37. The. Contractor must provide an annual satisfaction survey report to the
Department within thirty (30) days of the end of the calendar year..-

4. . Performance Measures ' . •

4.1. " Within sixty (60) days of contract and amendment approval, the Contractor must
submit an Early Childhood Regional System Work Plan that includes specific
activities arid timeline, including, but not limited to: ' . ,

4.1.1. Performance measures across all regions.- .

4.1.2. Strategies to evaluate. • : r. .•" •••' i-'
4.1.3. • Plan for technical assistance. ,

.  ̂ 4.1.4., Plan for training. ' ^
"  4.1.5. Whoisassighed to the project.

SS-2022-DEHS-01-NEWHA-01-A04 "
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EXHIBITS

Arhendment #4

ii

•:N'

■  4.1.6. .Other partnerships engaged to support the regional networks.

.. 4.2. The Contractor must demonstrate an increase in the number of PRCs receiving
FRC-Q designation or re-designalion by at least four (4). from an established
baseline as of the contract.effe.ctive date. Annual baselines are as follows:

4.2.1. Three (3) in Slate Fiscal Year 2022. ■

. 4.2'.2. Three (3) in State Fiscal Year 2023. ■'

4.2.3, Three (3) in State Fiscal Year 2024.

4.3. The Contractor must provide a summary'of PFS-2 surveys completed for the
CFSS program, the" COVlp Health Disparities .and Community Collaborations
projects. : — /
4.3,1. Surveys must show percentage of types of concrete needs identified for

!■ . the families served by race, ethnicity, and language, when available;.
.  4.3.2. Surveys must show what percentage of protective factors have been

^  increased using the retrospective survey. " , •
4.4. The Contractor must actively and regularly collaborate with the Department to

enhance, contract management, improve results, and adjust program delivery
.  .and'policy based on successful outcomes.

4.5. The Contractor may be required to provide other key data and metrics to the
;v Department. ' in iUe. aggregate and de-identified, including client-level

demographic, performance, and service data, upon Department request.

v  Contractor must .collect and share data with the Department, in the
aggregate and de-identified, in a format specified by the Department.

7  f, • 5. Additional Terms -
5.1;' Impacts Resulting from Court Orders or Legislalive Changes '

"5.1.1: The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future state or federal
legislation prcourt orders may have an impact ori the Sen/ices described
herein, the State has the right to modify Seivice priorities and

.  expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve
.  v.'. '■■ ■ complia.nce therewith. ' , ,

-  5.2.- Federal Ci>)il Rights Laws Compliance; ■Culturally and Linguistically Appropriate
Programs and Services '>

o; i5.2.1.. The Contractor must submit, within ten (10) days of the contract effective
..p ... dale, a detailed description .of the communication access and language

'• assistance services to.be provided to ensure meaningful access to
. r. programs and/or services to individuals with limited Eriglish p'ijq^ency;

SS-2022-OEHS-01-NEWHA-01-A04 . i-;'.,- Conlfactof Initials
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■ EXHIBIT 8

•  Amendment #4

individuals who are deaf or have hearing loss; individuals who are blind '
. ̂ or have low vision; and individuals who have speech challenges.-

'  . . 5.3.' Credits and Copyright Owriership '•

5.3.1. , All documents, notices, press releases, research reports, and other,
materials prepared during or resulting from the performance of the "
services of the Contract must include the following statement. "The
preparation of this (reporl, document etc.) was financed under a

fc,. Contract with the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and
.. Hunrian Services, with funds provided in part by the Stale of New
"  - Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or

required.-e.g., the .United Stales Department of.Health and Human
•  ̂ Services.' • "

5!3.2. All rtiaterials produced or purchased under the contract must have prior
approval from the Department before printing, production, distribution,

-V or use. '•

.  - 5.3.3. The.Deparlment must retain copyright ownership for any and all original
materials produced, including, but not limited to: ■

"5.3.3.1. ■ Brochures. - i'lV;

-S.ls.Z.- Resource directories.. " -v' .i; .

5.3.3.3. Prolocols or guidelines: ■ ^

.5.3.3.4. Posters.

'S.S.S.S.- ■ Reports. "
K  i-:': 5.3.4. the Contractor must not'reproduce any. materials produced under the

;  contract without prior written approval from the Department.

5.4.' Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations "

i  . ■ 5.4.1. In the operation of any facilities for providing services, the Contractor
, must -corhpi^^jth all laws, orders and regulations "of federal, stale.

"  V * county, and nriunicipa! authorities and with any direction of any Public
r.. ..ii; . Officer or officers.pursuant to laws which musl.lmpose an order or duty

r": upon the contractor with respect-to the operation of the facility or tlie
provision of the services al such facility. If any governmental license or

-  permit must be-required for thp operation of the said facility'or the
performance of the said services, the Contractor must procure said

•' :v license or permit, and must at all tjmes comply with the terms and
■ conditions of .each such, license or permit. In connection with the
foregoing requirements, the Contractor hereby covenants and"^rees.
that, during the term of this Contract the facilities must conririlyjj^ith.all

■  SS-2022-DEHS-01-NEWHA-01.A04 ConifBClOf InitialsV-^^' .

New HampshireChiWren's Trust, Inc. Page20ol23 '"iv. Date
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Amendment #4

"' rules, orders', regulations, and requirements'of the State Office of the
Fire Marshal ̂ and the local fire protection agency, and must be in-

,, ■"conformance with local .building and zoning codes, by-laws,, and
• regulations. , .

iO,'; 5.5. Eligibility Determinations •

"5.5.1. If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility of individuals,
such eligibility determination must be made in accordance with ■
applicable federal and state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines,
policies, and procedures. ' .4':

•••' 5.5.2. Eligibility determinations must be made oh forms provided by the
Department for that purpose and must be made and remade at such

v,..: tirnes as are prescribed,by the Department.
.. 5.5.3. In addition to the dele.rrriinalion forms required' by the Department, the

Contractor must maintain a data fi le on each-recipient of services
hereunder, whiiph fi le must include all information necessary to support
an eligibility determination and such other Informatiori" as the"
Department requests. The Contractor must furnish the Department with
all forms and documentation regarding eligibility determinations: that the

•V ' Department may request or require.
5.5.4. The Contractor.understands that all applicants for services hereiinder.j

.  as well'as individuals declared ineligible have' a right lo a fair hearing
regarding that deterrhinatbn. The Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees that all applicants for services must be permitted to fi ll out an
application for^m and that each applicant or re-applicant must be
inforrned of his/her right to a fair hearing in accordance with Department

'- '"v. - 5. regula'lidns. • • ri.-. . :• -
^  ' 6. Records;'

.6.1. " The Co'ntractor must keep records thatinclude. but are not limited to;
... .6.1.1. Books, 'records-, documents, and other'electronic or physical data

evidencing and reflecting all costs arid other expenses incurred by the
. Contractor in the performance of .the Contract, and all income received

or collected by the-Conlractor. •"

6..1.2. ,AII records must b.e mairitained in accordance, with'acco,untlng "
< procedures and practices, which sufficiently and properly reflect at) such

co$ls and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, .records, and original.

'.J,

•Vf

,.e,vldence of costs, such as purchase requisitions and orders,
requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of in-kind con

yoiwhers, .--tv
ri^jtions,

SS-2P22-OEHS-01-NEWHA-01-ACM Contractor Iniltals^^
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-  Amendment #4

•• ■ labor time cards, payrolls, and other' records requested or required by t
the Department.

i- , 6.1.3. Statistical, enrollment, attendance, or visit records for each recipient of ' .
•• services, which records must Include all records of application and

, eligibility (Including all forms'required to determine eligibility "for each
such recipient), records regarding the provision of services, and all

'  Invoices submitted to the Department to obtain payment for such

services. . - .. ..

^  6.1.4. • Medical records on each palient/recipienl of services.

6!2. During the-term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and .
any of their designated representatives must have access to all reports and
records.maintained pursuant to the Contract for purposes of audit, examination,

'  excerpts, and transcripts. Upon the purchase'by the Department of the
■*'" maximum number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the

price limitation hereunder, the Contract and all the obligations of the parties'
hereunder (except such obligations as. by the terms of the ConlracI are to be

'f ■ performed after the end of the terrn" of, this Contract and/or survive the
'  termination of the Contract) .must terrhinate, provided however, that if, uppn i-.

•• review of the Final Expenditure Report the Department must -disallow any
"  ... expenses claimed by the Contractor as costs'hereunder the Department must

t. retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such .expenses as are
V' disallowed or to" recover such sums from the Contractor.

6.3. Website and Social Media ' ' ' .

7' 6.3.1. The selected .Vendor(s)' ^must work with the Departrrienl's • -
}' . Communications Bureau to ensure that any social media or website

*  designed, created, o.r managed on behalf of the Department meets all
-  .• . Department and NH DoIT website,and social media requirements and

.V, policies. ' ^ . •• '
' • 6,3.2. " The selected Vendor(s) agrees Protected Health Information (PHI), '

Personally .Identifiable Information (Pll), or other Confidential' .
'V. Information splicited either by social media or the website that is

maintained, stored or captured must not be further disclosed unless
'• ' expressly provided in'ihe Contract. The solicitation or disclosure of PHI. • •" iv-

. i'.-u; Pll. or other Confidentiallnformation iS'Subjecl to Exhibit K: Department r
■  information. Security Requirements and Exhibit. IV DHHS Business ...

*' •: ' . Associate Agreement and all applicable Department and federal law.
'  rules. and agreements. Unless specifically required by the CoMf^t andunless clear notice is provided to.users of the website or socj^i^edia,

•  SS-"2022-OEHS-01-NEVyHA-OliA04 * ' Contractor Initials .
6/9/2023
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Amendment #4

the Contractor agrees that site visitation must not be tracked, disclosed
or used for website or social media analytics or marketing.

■ 6.3.3. Slate of New Hampshire's Website Copyright

6.3.3.1. All right, title and interest- in. the. State VVWW Site,
including copyright to all Data and information, shall..

•  remain with the State of New Hampshire. The State of
New Hafnpshire shall also retain- at! right, title and

.  interest in any user interfaces and computer Instructions
embedded within the W\AAA/pages. All WWW pages and ■
any other Data or Information shall, where applicable,

•  ' display the State of New Hampshire's copyright. >

:'5A

rf •

ti

■A-:-
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Exhibit C>11. Budget Sheet. Amendment M. SFY 2024

- New Hampshire Department of Health end Human Services

Contractor Neme: New Hampehire Childrtn't Tryet. lnc.r

Project Title: Fadlitaiing OrganlxetJen lor Famihr Resource Centers • OCYF Klrahip: add aOdhlonat $1,000,000 to eslsiing S32S,000

Accounting String: OS-SS'04S-4S0010-721$0000 KEAUTH AND SOCUL SERVICES. OEPT OP HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS. HHS;

TWANSmONALASStSTANCE. DIVISION OP FAMILY ASSISTANCE. KINSHIP

'Budget Period: SFY24: July 1.20U-June 30.2024 ' .
*  ̂ r*.« •' .♦ Total Program Cost • . •  . Funded by DHHS contraci'share

■

UrtC Ucm *.• ,f • DIreef - Irtdlroct ti Total Direct C •- • • mdiraci ■ ■ ---V . Yeui-

1

1

$ 334.S97.34 s  •• * 3 - 334.597.34 3- 334.597.>4 3 - 3  334.597.34
•

Z. Emc*oyee Benefits {'. $ 03,049.34 0  - . . ' $  •- 83.049.34 3 63,849.34 3 ' 3 63.649.34

3. Consultants 3 103.370.00 3  ' 103.370.00 3 103.370.00 3 3  103.370.00

4. Eouioment: S • ».-z- 3 3 3

Rental J 1.201.00 $  .• •3 1.201.00 •3 •1.281.00 3 3  1.261.00

Repair srtd Mainiertsnce s 7'.- $ 3 3 r •• S • 3

Pvirchese/Deorecialion S :> - - s 3 8- $  - 3

S. Supplies: s ... s 3 •• 3 .. 3  .i' .1. 3

Educational • . s 2.000.00 $  . . 3 2.000.00 3  ' 2.000.00 3 3  2.000.00

Lob ■ s 3 .... 3 - s- 3  -

. Phannacv : ? >- s s  • 3 5  • •• •3 . • 1 •$ . .
•• MedicDi s .. $ 3 • -.V i 3 s 3 •

Otiice $ 2.92S.00 ■$."i * v'. 'i.:- 3 2.925.00 S 2.925.00 S  . r • 3  2.925.00
6. Trevel $ • 1.713.00 3 3 1.713.00 s 1.7-13.00 3 3  1.713.00
7. OecuDsncY •  12.139:00 3  I 3 12.139.00 3 12.139.00 3  . 3  12.139.00

a. Current Expenses $ 5  - •' 3 -• 3 8  . 5 ■  - .
Teteohono $ 1,767.00 3  •• 3 . 1.787.00 3 1.767.00 3 . . 3- . 1.-767.00
Posiaoe $ 8S7.00 3 3  ' 857.00 3  ■ 857.00 3  • 3  857.00

Subscription 5 . 3 3 3 . $ 3

Audit Ofxi i.eosi s . s  • - 3 •  ; 3  • - 3

Instxsnce $ 230.00 S 3 230.00- 3 230.00 3 3  230.00

Board Ejmenses s .  . $  . • 3 3 3 3

9. Sofhnere ■i - 92.7.16.00 3 3 92.716.00 3 92.716.00 3 3  92.7 le.W
. 10. MarttetirtQ/Communications J 56.7O2.S0 3 3 . 56702.58 3 • 56.702.58 3 3  56.7CZ58

11. SiaH Education and TrairtinQ $ 25.000.00 S 3 25.000.00 3 25,000.00 3  " 3. ' ■ 25.000.00
r 12. SuOcontrsctVAoreemenis s 3  ■ • . • 3 •' ' 5  • 3 3

Prooram Subcontracts 3 3 3 • 3  - - 3

FRC SubconpBCts 5 4&S.619.00 3  . .. 3 485.619.00 3 485.619.00 3 3- ' 485.619.00
13. Other (specific deiaits mandatorv): i .. 3 .. 3 j, 5  .. 3 ;  • s

mc^ecr As A Aerceni or Oiract 3 120.453.75 3 120.453.75 ' 3 120.453.75 3  120.453.75
-i. / TOTAL s 1.204.546.2$ 3 120.453.75 3. 1.325.000.00 3 1.204.546.23 3 120.453.75 3  1,325.000.00.

Indirect As A Percent ol Direct 10.0% 10.0%

New Hampshire Chadren*s TrusL Inc.
SS-2022-OEHS-Ot-NEWHA4)1-A04' -
Exfsbil C-t9. Budget Sheet AmenOrient S4. SFY 2024
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■T

' New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

ContrecterNeme: New HtinpshireCh&drvn'e Trust Inc. , . ^

Pr^cl Title: Fscinuting OrgantLxtim for Family Resource Centers • Governor Commbsion Futxis: t'tOO.OOO

Accounting String: 0S-9S-92-920StO43a30000- HEAtTH AND SOCtAt SERVICES. OEPT OF HEAtTH AND HIIMAN SVS. HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DfV.
' Bureau of Drug & Alcohol Svcs. Govemor Commbsion Funds

Bud9ct,Period:.SFY24: July 1. 2023-June aO. 2024 y.. . "

. -Total Program Cost Funded by OHHS.contract share'
Line Item r .. . Oireet •• 'Indirect ■■ - Teul Direct Indirect ■ Total •

Total SslsrWWsoes s  • 8.2«8.t9 S 8.288.19 9  • - 8.288.19 9 8.288.19
2. Emclovee BeneTrts S Z072.05 V-;- s 2.07 2.0S 9 2.072.0$ ... 9 2 072.05
3. Comuttants •.i;. 189:00 •* 189.00 9  I-; 169.00 .. % 189.00
4. Eouiomcrtl: s ■ .9 9-. ,v-.— t (•

• Rental s 122.00 9 122.00 9 122.00 9 122.00
» T. Repair artd MasxenarKe s $ 9 9 . .

PurcTune/Depredation s 9 9  - - 9
S. Supplies: i i-." • V.. 9 9 , 9 .

■ Educational t 334.00 9 334.00 I- 334.00 9 334.00
tjib N'j: i 9 .. 9 •• .9 .

'■ Phannacv s  • 9 . ■- S 9
Medical s rV- •>, 9 s 1. ,

.* •. OKice . 9 112.00 ... 9" 112.00 s .  112.00 -9 ■ 112.00
6. Travel »  , 12.00 9 12.00 9 . 12.00 9 -  I2.W
7. OccuoancY •» 1.090.00 9 1.096.00 9:. 1.096.00 9 1.096.00
a. Current E^oenses . 9 .. S .

TetetJhone *;• r. •* - 130.00 9 1SO.OO 9 150.00 .9 150.00
Postaoe %. 68.00 9. 68.M J- -68.00 • 9 68.00
SuOscriptions • . - . *.:• i •t 9 • 9 9
Audit and Leoai -X 9 9 9
instrerKC 9 1  .
Board Expenses s - 9 9'' . . 9

9. Softvmre 3 .289.00 9 289.00 9 289.00 •9 289.00
.10. MaiVclino/Comriumicaiions- S 11.I3S.I9 9 11.13S.19 9 11.135.19 . '9 11,135.19

iy: 11. Stan Education and Treinir^ 5 9 9  .. ... 9 *-
12. Subcontracts/^ecments S .. 9 - 9 . '9 ..

Proqrom Subcontracts- s 1.883.00 s-'- t883.00 9 1.883.00 9 1.683.00
FRC Subconiraas s 65.1S8.G8- 9 8S.IS8.68 9 .65.158.66 '  _ 9 65.158.66

13. Olher.fsoeaiic deiaib manda*.orv); 9- 9 9 . 9 ...

'odirecJ As A Percent o/ Duecf 9 S 9.090.91 9 . 9.090.91 9 . 9 9.090.91 :9' • 9.090.91
TOTAL 9 90.909.09, 1 9,090.91 9 ■100.000.00 9 90.909.09 9 - 9.090.91 -9 100.000.00 1

Irtdlrect As A Percent of Direct tO.0% 10.0%

New Hampshire Children's Trust Inc. '
S&-2022«EKS-01-NEVVHA:01-A04
Erdtibit C-20. Budget Sheet Amendment 84. SFY 2024 Contfaetof Initiefs^
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EKhlbil C*21. Budget'Shetl. Amiendment M. SPY 3024

.  . New Hampshire Department of Healtti and Human Service*

Contractor Nama: New Hampshir* CbUdren'i Tryst,'lnc.

Fre}tct Tlita: Facilitating Organizaiion for FamUy Rcoource Center* • Communtty CoRaboration: S7S4,760

Aeeouitting Sli1t»g: 0St95-09O^201 0-70470000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. OEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS.KHS:
r  PUBLIC HEALTH Diy. COMMUNTTY COLLABORATION

Budgot Period: ,SFY24: Jufy i. 2023 - June 30. 2034

-KV -

Total Proflratn Coat Funded by OHHS contract share

Lineltcm - Diroci - Indirect Toul -  . Direct indirect ■ ,t • Total

1. Total SalarvrWaoes S .  40.000.00 8  • 40.000.00 8 40.000.00 - 8  40.000.00

2. Empioveo Benefits s '10.000.00 8  10.000.00 8 10.000.00 8  lo.ooaoo

. 3. Cortsultar^t* s ISS.000.00 8 : 155.000.00 .8 155.000.00 .. 8  1S5.000.00

4. Eoupmenc 8 - 8

Rental s 400.00 8  400.00 8 -  400.00 8  400.00

Repair and Maencnance i.. ) 8  .-; • ••

Rxrchase/Deireciation . $ ■. 8

8 - 8  ■ •

Educational 8 .* 8  •:

Lab 8  - -.v

Prtarmacv -- 8 • _ - '• 8

Madiesi *

'• Offico s 800.00 - 8  600.00 8 600.00 8  600.00

«. Travel" I 150.00. 8  150.00 8 150.00 • 8  150.00

8 1.328.00 8.- 1.326.00 8 1.326.00 8  t.326.00

8. Current Exoenses S _ - ,. 8 • • 8 .

Teleonor* •$ 100.00 8  100.00 8 100.00 8  100.00

Posiaoe 8 125.00 8  128.00 8 125.00 8 . : • 125.00

t'. Syb3cript)or» 8 8 8 >: ' 8

Audit and Leoal 8 8 • - ■ 8 8 -

irtsurarwa 8 8 rr- ••. .8 8

Board Expenses 8 8 .8 8

8 ' 8 8 ' 8

10. MonteUno/Communications 8 . 2.500.00 8  2.500:00 8 .  2.500.00 8  2.500.00

11. SiaK Educaten and Troinino 8^1 i- - 8 8 . 8

12. SuOcontracts/Aoieementa 8 ■  300.000.00 8  300.000.00 8 300.000.00 • 8  . 300,000.00

FRC Subcontract 8 • 196.400.00 • 8  '196.400.00 8  . 196.400.00 8  196.400.00

13. . Other (soecific details mandatory}: I 8 8

8 8 48.159.00 8  - 48.159.00 .8 ... . 8. 48.159.00 8  48.159.00

.  .
8

TOTAL 8 708.601.00 8 48;iS9.00 It". 7S4.7C0i)O •i- 706.601.00 8 48.159.00 8  7 54.76000.

'  Indirect Aa A Percent ol Direct

New Hampshtie CMdren'a Trust; tnc ' •-
SS-2022-OCHS-0t-NEVSIHA-0l-AO4
CxNbd C-21. Budoet Sheet Ame/Wn^ C4. SFr 3024

6.«% 6.8%

'i' ; . ■ ■ <[«
Comraoar .1 tUIs

6/9/2023
Oato: i'.



OocuSign Envelope 10; 788C001&^B2(MB60-9E62-5782rA925226

OocuSIgn Envelope IO;-9lCC3f!84-B36F-4E09-935B-FA1A38340t5a. •

e*tilb»t C-2J Gudpet Sheet Amtfldment«, SFY 2024
it-

Hampshire Department of Health and Mutiuft Service*

Contractor Mjfwi: New Karnp»hlr»Chlldrtn*»Trx»u Inc.- • "*'■
i-i-l

y  -ri:

Prelect TWe: FaeiiftajlAQ Orgentzatlon for Family Geaource Centers . Ph COVIO-is Health Dbpariilcs: SIOO.OOO

Lintlng StHng: 0S-OSS-O9O-t0tOtO^771000O KEAUTH
PUSUC HEALTH DMSION, BUREAU I

Budget Pertod:"sFY24: Juty i. 2023 . Jgrji 30,2024

Accounting String: 0S-OSS-O9O-t0lOtlW771000O HEAUTH AND SOClAt. SERVICES. HEALTH AKO HUMAN SVCS DEPTOF HHS"
HEALTH DMSION. BUREAU OF POLICY AMD PERFORMANCE. PHCOVIO-tO HEAUTH OtSPARTTieS

Total Progrsm Cost Fundad by DHHS contract ahareLine Item Direct indirect Total Diract TMaiIndirectTotal Saiaryrwaq
Employ Bertefts

3. Consultanii
4. Eeuipmenc

Rental

Rcocif tnS Mainterance
PurchaseOepreciatten

Su
Educatiortai
Lab

PTiamtacv
Metbcsi

Offlco
6. Travel

Occupancy
. Ctrrrent Ejtpenses

Telephooe
Postsoe
Subscriptions
Atidil artd Lepal
Insurance
Boanl tjoemes

SotMora
10; MotitetinQrCommurtieaaofts
It. SiaH Education and T
12. Subcon!nscis//Vireements

Program Subcontraas
FRO Subcontracts 100.000.00 100.000.00 .  100.000.00 100.000.0013. Olher (tpecrttc details mahdatpryl

TOTAL loo.ooaoo s 100.000.00 lOO.OOO.OO t WMOM
0.0%Indirect As A Percent el Direct

•iV-'.

New Hampshire ChBdcen's Trusu Inc.
SS-2022-OEHS.Ol-NEWHA«igLD« -'.r
Erfiielt C-22. Budget Sheet Amer^eni ®4. SFY »24

0.0%

Contractor IritA
(t

Oa!B
6/9/2023

o;;
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Exhibit C.n, BudQtt Sheet. Amendmem •«. SFV 2024

M'.

•: Now Hampshlre Oepartment of HeaUh and Human Services

ContrtCtor Name: Mew Mamp*hlreChl1dfen'» Trust, inc. .

Project Title: Pjcitiuting Organtutien for Fimlly Resource Cemers • ChW OevtlopmCTi. ARPA Child Care CCOF: $900,000

Accounting String: OS-095^2^21t10-24290000 HEALTH ANO SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF MEALTW AMD HUMAN SVCS. KHS: •
KUNIAN SERVICES. CHILD OEVELOPMEMT. ARPA CHILD CARE CCDF

Budget Period: SFY24; July 1,2023. June 30. 2024 •

Line Hem

1. Total Saiarrrwapes

2. Emptoree Benefta
3. Consuttams

Et^uiomenc

TotalProgmm^Cg^

Obccl Indirect ToUI-

07.750.00

21.937.50

• 75.00

a7.750.00

21.937.50

7S.OO

Direct

Funded by DHHS contrect
Indirect

87.750,00

21.937.50

75.00

Totel-

67.750.00

21.937.50

75.00

Repair and Manienaoce
Purch»sa/Depreoa5on

S. Supplies:
Educational

Pharmacy

'Medieol

Office 1.200.00 1.200.00 1.200.00 t.200.00

7. Occupancy 97S.OO 975.00 975.00

Telephono 60.W 60.00

45.00 45.00 45.00

60.00

45.00

Subscripacrts

Audh and Legal

Board Expenses

Sortwsre

10. MarfceiinorComrnunications • S 392.177.50 392J77.50 392.177.50

11. Siaft Education end Trains

392.177.50

350.000.00
350.000.00 350.000.00 350.000.00

13. Other (soeoHc doiaes mandatory):
Indirect As A Percent o< tXreci

TOTAL 854.220J)0

45.780.00 45.780.00

Indirect As A Percent of Direct

45.780.00

5.4%

900.000.00 854,220.00

45.780.00

45.780.00

5.4%

45.780.00

900.000.00 1

New HampsNre Chadren's TrusU Ire.
SS-2022-O£HS-0t-NEVVHA-0l-AD«.
E>9*b"t C-23. Budget Sheet Amendment 84. SFY 2024

:V. Corvacttr INtiats,
[5

Date.
6/9/2023

Vr-,.
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STATE OF NEW.HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AFfl) HliMAN SERVJCES

DIVISION OF ECONOMIC A HOUSING STABILITY

l^A.W#iwr 129 PLEASANT STRECT. CONCORD. NH 03301
"  603-271^74 |.fitlM52.3345 ExL M74

P«x: 603-2714330 TDD Aceen: I-000-73S-2964 .www.6bhi.nli.|or
Karte t, Hcben

,, Olitttar

December 29. 2022

His Exceller^cy. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
the Honorable Council

State House
Concord. New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Departmerit of Health and Human Services, Division of Economic and
Housing Stability, to enter Into a . Sole Source amendrrient to an existing contract with New
Hampshire Children's Trust. Inc. (VC #218449), Concord. NH for the ongoing support of Fanrilly
Resource Centers (FRCs) across the state to receive the "Family Resource Center of Quality"
(FRC-Q) designation to achieve national standards, assist youth and families involved with the
Juvenile Justice system, further support the Kinship Navigator Program, provide training to
ccrhmunity-based providers of family. support sen/Ices, and to continue addressing, health
dispanties across the state by exercising a contract renewal, option by increaslrig the price
limitation by $2,991,422 from $4,733,465 to $7,724,887, and extending the completion date
from June 30, 2023 to June 30, 2024. effective upon Governor andCoundl approval, .52,38%
' Federal Funds. 4,7.64% General Funds.

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on June 30, 20i21. Item
#41, amended on October 13. 2021, item #20. and most, recently amended on April .6. 2022,
ltem#8.

'  .Funds are available In. the following accounts for State Fiscal Year 2023, and are
anticipated to be available in'State Fiscal Years 2024. -upon the availability and continued
appropriation of fund.s in the future operating budget, vyith the authority 16 adjust budget line
■items within the pricie limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years through the

• Budget Office; If needed and justified. . ^ -•
See attached fiscal details.

EXPLANATION

•This request is Solo Source because MOP ,150 requires all amendments -to agreements
previously approved as sole source to be Ideri'tified.as sole source. The Contractor Is uniquely
qualified to provide statewide support to FRGs bewuse the Conlractor has been working
effectively applying evidence-based standards and services to kinship families with the goal of
strengthening families statewide.

The purpose of this requesl is for the. Contractor to continue to provide Infrastructure
and support.for the statewide network of FRCs. including the Kinship Navigation .Program,
community-based training, and the Communi^ Health Workers (CHW) staffing 8upport...wilh
.additional funds appropriated within Senate Bilf444 (SB444) ip support the services, pin addition,
tNs request will expand the scope of services.to include Juvehlle Justice Ihlegratiori.

The DtpOflment o/ HtaUh and Httman Sruiett^'Mmion it to Join eemmunilkt ond /oniiltn
iii providing opportuniiitt (or ciliunt to oehitvc htolih ond Indeptndtnce.
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SB444 was signed Into law by the Govofnor on June 17. 2022, effective July 1, 2022.
' SB444 was enacted to mKi^ate adverse childhood experiences and appropriated the aum of
$1 000 000 to the Department to provide continued support to the PRCs as senrices Indude
work designed to mitigate adverse childhood experiences. This funding will allow the FRCe to
better serve families, prepare for "Fanhity Resource Center of Quality" (FRC-0) desigriation.
enhance coordination .with early childhood systems such ae Adverse Childhood Experiences
Response Team. Community Collaborations and support evidence-based prograrhs Including
homevlsiting programs, end supp^ the current critical work of the PRCs.

This request Is also to expand the scope of service to include Juvenile Justice Intesration
•  = and to add:funding for three (3) extetirig services at the PRCs:

1  Juvenile Justice Inteoration will continue to advance the Department's Initiative to
^  transform and improve the.State's Juvenile Justice System by providing a private meetlr^

'  space at each FRO. as a convenient location for the youth end their family; enabling the
Juvenile Probation Parole Officers (JPPO) to meet and work with the youth and family to
In a community-based setting. In this environment, the JPPO will work to engage with

•  youth end families In a supportive arid collaborative environment. At the initial point of
contact with law enforcement, the JPPO wll work with youth and their families to conduct
a formal Child and Adolescent Needs and Strengths (CANS) assessment. This

'  assessment provides law enforcement with recomrnendations reg^ding the level of
Ipjgrvontion needed for youth and'their farnllies. The Department has determined the
PRCs are supportive and convenient locations for youth and their families.

-7 2 Kinship Navioatton will expand case management and barrier resolution supports to
familiea that are In a kinship relationship. The add^ furiding will allow the Contractor to
? provide additional technical assistance, training and support for the o^oir>g programovaluotion to ensure best practices as Kinship Navigator caseloads continw to increase
statevride. There are currentiy 645 Kinship families participating in this program.

.. 3 Training to commuriitv-based providers in evidence-based services will be expanded
•1 statewide to providers of Comprehensive Family Support Services. Trainings Ihcludes

'  Motivational Interviewing,. Strengthening Families' Protective Factors and Standards of
Quality. ^ ^

4 Community Health Workers will continue to deliver comprehensive supports provided by
FRCs-and specifically address some of .the economic and health impacts related to
COVID-19. CHWs will provide resource ider^tlfication and connections to mental health,
health care.- substance use disorder, economic supports, and food and nutrition prc^rams
for families. •

Through this contract, the Contractor administers a data systern usad.by all FRCs. This
data platform is now supporirng FRCs wrth consistent, statewide data collection and outcomes,
enabling the Department to measure the positive Impact of the services FRCs provides to
■support family strengtheriing and child well-being. , The data platform provides severaldashboards and reports; including periodic.perfbnmance metrics, demographic and dispanties

.  reports.

'  Approximately 8,252 families vrill be supported, through this amendment:
•  6.400 families will continued to be senred annually through the FRCs;
•, Approximately i.pOp families wrili be served annually through Juvenile Justice

Integration;
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•  Approximately 250 additional families will be served annuatty through Kinship
'  Navigation; and

■■ ' • Approximately 602 families will t>e served annually through the work of the CHWs.
. . In addition to the families being served:

. .. Approximately 75 additional community-based agendas will be served annually
with tralriing; and ' .... ' ^

i'- • • Approximately 15 CHWs will continue to provide support under the Health
Disparities Grant to the statewide network of FRCs.

'  As referenced In Exhibit A. Section 1.. Revisions to Form P-37. General Provisions, 3.3.
.of the original agreement, the parties have the option to extend the agreement for up to four (4)
additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, aviailable funding, ̂ reement
of the parties and Govemor and Council approval. The Department Is exerdsing its option to
renew services for one (1) of the four (4) years available.

Should the Governor and Coundl not authorize this request the Oepartrnenl will be-
unable to expand the Kinship Navigator Program, train community-based providers and address
health disparities due to COVID.19; The Juvenile Justice system will not have these supportive
and convenient locations to meet with youth and their families. These services contribute to the
development of healthy families, which contribute to the development of healthy communities.

Area served: Statiew.ide.

Source of Federal Funds:

CFDA #93136 FA1N#NU17CE924984;CFDA #93.558. FAIN #20011 NHPKIN&
2101NHPKIN- CFDA #93.67. FAIN #90CA1858; CFDA #93.391. FAIN #NH750T000031; CFOA
#93.575, FAIN #2101NHCSG6; CFDA #16.54.-FAIN #2019-JX.FX-0052; General Funds,
Gbvemof's Commission and General Funds.

In the event that the Federal. Other Funds or General Funds become no longer

available, additional General Funds will not be requested to support this program.

tespectfully submitted.

Lo Weaver '
Interim Commissioner
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Fiscal Detail Sheet Amendment «3

05-95-045^50010-72160000 HEALTH AND SOCiAL SERViCES. OEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS.
MHS: TRANSITiONAL ASSISTANCE, DiVlSION OF FAMILY ASSISTANCE. KINSHiP

100% Ceneral Funda

Stata Fiscal

Yaar
Class / Acccurit Class TlUe Job Number Current Amount

increase

(Decrassel
Revised Amourtt

2022 • 102-500731 Contacts for Proo Snc 45001601 $325,000 SO $325,000

2023 102-500731 Contrads for Proa 4S001601 . S32S.000 St.000.000 51.325,000

2024 102-500731 Contracu for Proa Sx 45001601 . SO S32S.C00 5325.000

Sub Total • '■> S650.000 •  51.975.000

OS-95^>45^S0010-7ai«0000 HEALTH aIa SOCiAL SERVICES, OEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS.
HHS:TRANSiTlONALASSiSTANCe;OIVISiGNOF;FAMlLV ASSISTANCE. KINSHIP .

100%Federel Funds

State Fiscal
Year

Class 1 Account Class TiUe Job Number Current Amount
IncresM

fOocr^e)
ReMsed Amount

2022 074-500569 Grants lor Pub Assist and Rtii 45001602 5199.600 SO 5199.600

2023 074-500569 Grants lor Pub Assisl'ond Red 4S001602 S199.600 SO 5199.600

2024 074-S00S89 Grants lor Puts Assist btkI Red 45001602 •SO S 199.600 $199,600

SubTotal • '• • '$399,600 .  5199.600 5599.400

05^95-090-9020.50400000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. OEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS.
HHS: PUBLIC HEALTH DIVISION. COMIAUNiTY AND HEALTH SERVICES

I00%fed«rai Funds

Slate Fiscal Class/Accounl Class Title Job Number Current Amount
increase

(Oecreasel
ReMsod Amount

2022 102-500731 ContmcU for Proo 90QS0405 5631.616 $631,616

2023 102-500731 Contracts for Proo Svc 90050405 $747,247 5268.222 51.035.469

2024 102-500731 Contracts for Proo-Svc 90050405- SO SO
«

SubTotal $1,576,665 526a222 51.667.087

05-95.92.920510-3M20000- HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS.
HNS: BEHAViORAL HEALTH DIV. Bureau of Drug & Aicobol Svcs, Governor Commission Funds

iOOUGonarai Funds '• 2 1

Slate Fiscal Class/Accounl Class Title JobNtrmber Current Arhount
'incroaso
fOecrsasel

Revised Amoint

2022 102-500731 Cor>iracls for Proa Svc 92058502 S100.000 SO 5100.000

2023 102-500731 - Conlracis for ProQ Svc -  92056502 ■ SO $100,000 51W,000

2024 102-500731 Contracts for Proo S>c 92056502 SO W SO

■ SubTotal S100.000 5100.000 5200.000

0$-95-090-902010-70470000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, OEPT .OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVS. MHS: PUBLIC HEALTH DIV. COMMUNITY COLLABORATjON

100% Federal Funds

State Fiscal Class / Account y. -Class Tilio
■■■ ' 4

Job Number Cunroot Amcunl .
Increase

(Occreaset
Revised Amount

2022 102-500731 Ccniracis fv Proo Svc 90070470 S35.000.00 SO.OO 535000.00

2023 102-500731 CcrvtraclsforProoSvc 90070470 50.00 SO.OO $0.00

2024 102-500731 CorrtfBCis for Profl Svc 90070470 50.00 SO.OO 50.00

Sub ToUl $35,000.00 $0.00 $35,000.00

New Hampshire Children's Trust, inc.
SS-2022-0EHS-01-NEWHA-01-A03
Page 1 of 1
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OS:09WW)-901010-577*00<10 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. HEALTH AND HUMAN 5VCS OEPT OF. HHS: PUBLIC HEALTH
division, bureau of policy and performance. PH COVlD-19 HEALTH DISPARITIES

100% Fed«ral. Funds

NewHempsi

State Fhc^
Year'
2022. _
2023

2024

lire CWdrens Trust

Class / Account

102-500731

102-S00731

107-500731

inc.

Class Title '

Conlrecis tef Prop Svc
Contrecls Ig ProQ Svc
Cortrsds for Proo S<<

jum Total

Job Number

TflO

TBD

TGD •

Currenl Amouni

$910,000

S910.000

SO

fOwyewe)

SO

S930.000

s5
S930000

Revtsad Amouil

$910,000

S1.840.000
8o

s2.7sd.66o

flW»S^2421110'243wOOOHtALm • "•

SVCS, HHS: HUMAN SERVICES, CHILD DEVELOPMENT, ARPA CHILD CaRE STABIUZATION

100% FddsrsI Funds ' "

New Hsmpshife Chndfen's Tmsi. Inc.
Siait Fiscal

Y«v
Ciess' Account

Vcndor.0218449

2022

2023

2024

102-500731

1Q2-S0073I

102-S00731

Class Titie

Conifacts for Pfop S\c
Contrtcis tor Prop Svc
ContfBds for Prop

Sub Total

Job Number

42117774

42117774

42117774

Current Amount

S37.499

S112.50I

Sfi
S'SO.OQQ

Increase

fOecreasal

JS.

RoNisod Amount

S3MW
S112.S01

"^5
S1SO,000

05-9M2-421410-79060000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS OEPT OF.
HHS: HUMAN SERVICES. JUVENILE JUSTICE SERVICES,OJJOP

100%Fedarel Funds

New Hampshire Children's Trust lr>c.
Stale Fls^j ci„8 / AccountT

Y

Votdor 9218449

ear

2022

2023

Oass Title

Contracts Ig Prog Svc

Job Number

42140614

42140614

Current Amount .

SO.OO

Increase

(Oecreasel

SO.W

Revlsod Amour>t

jao5

072-509073

0^-509073

Connects to Prop Sk $0.00
SO.OO

SO.OO

S74.200-00

574.200.00

S148.400.00

$74,200.00

$74,200.00
Corerects te Prog S%c

Sub Total

42140614
$148,400.00

S7.724.687jOvffltlTctali $4.733 4651 S2.99l.422|-

.•!< •.■}".•
•.V

r*.!

'f.

New HampjMre ChiWrcrt's Trust, inc.
$S-2022-DEHS-01-N£WHA.01-A03
Pa$c 1 o>1
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #3

This Amendment to the New Hampshire Family Resource Center Facilitation Organization and Quality
Specialist contract Is by and between the State of New Hampshire. Department of Health and Human
Services ("Slate" or "Department") and New Hampshire Children's Trust. Inc. ("the Contractor).
WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Govemor and Executive Council
on June 30. 2021 (Item #41). as amended on October 13, 2021 (Item #20). and as amended on April. 6,
2022 (Item #8). the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions
specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums specified; and
WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions. Paragraph 17, the Contract may be amended
upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Govemor and Executive Council; and
WHEREAS, the parties agree to exrtend the term of the agreement, Increase the price limitation, or modify
the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and
NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual coveriahts and conditions contained
:in the Contract and set forth herein, Jhe parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37. General Provisions. Block 1.5, Account Number, to read:

1. 05-095-045-450010-72160000; ,

2. 05-095-090-9020^50400000;

3. 05-095-092-920516-33820000;

a: 05-095-090-902010-70470000;

5. 05-095-090-901010-57710000; .. .

6. 05-095-042-421110-24300000; and

7. 05-095-042-421410-79060000.

2. Form P-37. General Provisions. Block 1.7. Completion Date, to read:

June 30,2024..' _

3. Form P-37. General Provisions. Block 1.8. Price Limitation, to read:

$7,724,887. ' ,

4. Form P-37. General Provisions. Block 1.9. Contracting Officer for Stale Agency, to read:

Robert W. f^oore. Director. -

5. Modify Exhibit B, Scope of Services Amendment #1. by adding Section 1.48. to read:

1.48. The Contractor shall subcontract with the statewide network of Family Resource Centers
(FRC) to provide a private, meeting space at designated FRC locations ̂so that the Juvenile
F'robation Parole Officers (JPPO) can meet and .work with the youth and family. The
Contractor shall:

1.48.1. Coordinate a private meeting space that is in a convenient location for the youth
and family and vrtiere the JPPO completing the assessments can engage with
youth and-farniljes.ln a collaborative-environment that provides privacy for the
youth and family.

1.48.2. Ensure the meetings are coordinated vrtth the Department.

""cs
DS

New Hampshire Children's Trust. Inc. A-S-1.3 Contractor ^^^^^2023
SS-2022-DEHS-O1 -NEWHA-01 -AOS Page 1 of 5 Pato
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1.4B.3. Have availability during ail regular business hours and have extended hours to
meet the needs of the families.

1.48.4. Access to the meeting space and reservation system during evening hours.

6. Modify Exhibit e Payment Terms, Section 1 to read;

1, this Agreemerit is funded by:

1.1 24.2% New Hampshire Overdose Data to Action Program (NH 0D2A), as awarded on
January 2021, by the Centers For Disease Control And Prevention. CFDA #93.136,
FAIN#NU17CE924984. *

1 2 7 8®^ Kinship Navigator Programs, as awarded on October 2020, by the Administration
for Children and Families. CFDA #93.556, FAIN #20011NHPKIN & 2101NHPKIN.

1.3 -.5% Community Collaborations to Strengthen and Preserve Families, as awarded on
September 2018, by the Administration for Children and Families, CFDA #93.67, FAIN
#9aCA1858.

1.4 35.6% Health Disparities Grant, as awarded on May 2021, by the Center for Disease
Control and Prevention, CFDA #93.391, FAIN #NH750TD00031.

'  1.5 1.9% ARPA Ctiild Care Stabilization, as awarded on April 2021, by the Child Care
Development Block Grant, CFDA #93.575, FAIN #2101NHCSC6.

1.6 1.9%, JJ Funds, as awarded on October 2018, by the Office of Juvenile Justice and
Delinquency Prevention, CFDA #16.54, FAIN #2019-JX-FX-0052.

1.7 2.6% General Funds'; Governor's Commission.

1.8 25.5% General Funds.

7. Modify Exhibit C Payment Terms. Section 3 to read:

3. Payment shall be on a,cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred in the
;;; fulfillment of-this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved line Item, as

specified in Exhibits C-l. Budget through Exhibit C-19. Budget Sheet, Amendment #3.

8. Modify Exhibit C-2. Amendment #1. Budget Sheet, by replacing in its entirety with Exhibit C-2.
Budget Sheet, Amendment #3, SFY 2023, which is attached hereto and incorporated by "
reference herein.

9. Modify Exhibit C-4, Budget Sheet. Amendment #1. by .replacing in its entirety with'Exhibit C-4,
Budget Sheet, Amendment #3. SFY 2023. which is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein. '

10. Modify Exhibit C-8V Amendment #1, Budget Sheet, by replacing in its entirety with Exhibit C-8,
Budget Sheet. Amendment #3, SFY 2023," which Is attached heretp and Incorpdrated by
reference herein.

11. Add Exhibit C-15, Budget Sheet. Amendment #3, SFY 2023, which is attached hereto and
Incorporated by reference herein.

12. Add Exhibit C-16, Budget Sheet, Amendment #3, SFY 2023, which is attached hereto and
incorporated by reference herein.

13. Add. Exhibit, C-17, Budget Sheet, Amendment #3. SFY 2024, which is attached hereto and
incorporated by reference herein.

14. Add Exhibit C-18, Budget Sheet, Amendment #3. SFY 2024, vyhich is attached hereto and
incorporated by reference herein.

■  " ,, ftsNew Hampshire Children's Jnisl. Inc\ A-S-1.3 Contractor Initials j
SS-2022-DEHS-01 -NEWHA-OI -AOB Page 2 ol 5 Date '
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15..Add Exhibit C-19, Budget Sheet. Amendment #3. SPY 2024, which is attached hereto and
incorporated by reference herein.

New Hampshire Children's Trust. Inc.

SS-2022-OEHS-01 -NEWHA-OI-A03

A-S-1.3

Page 3 of 5
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All. terms arxi conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
In full force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective upon Governor and Couhcil approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

, Stale of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services •

1/3/2023

Date

G
OocuSleMd br.

Name:'^®'"®" Hebert
Title: oivision Director

1/3/2023

Date

New Hampshire Children's Trust, Inc.

a^:'W»^f-Simn.ond5
Title:

Executive oirector

New Hampshire ̂Children's Trust, Inc.

SS-2022-DEHS-01 -NEWHA-bl -AOS

A.S-1.2 .

Page 4 of 5
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The preceding Amendment, hav|ng been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFiCE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

>D«cuSlot>M fry'.

1/4/2023

Date

>—D«eusi

v.-j<i7a<n«a<»>0—.. .
fyjgm0:Robyn cuarino

Titie: Attorney

i hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Councii of
the State of New Hampshire at the fleeting on: (dale of meeting)

OFFiCE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

New Hampshire Children^ Trust, tnc".

SS-2022-DEHS-01-NEW'HA-blrAP3

A-S.1.2

page 5 of 5
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Exhibit C-2. Budgtt Sheet, Anieridment «3, SFY 2023

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Contractor Name: New Hampshire Chltdrons Trvst Inc.

defect Title: FacBltating Organization for FamDy .Resource Centers *000

Budget Period: SFY July 1. 2022 • June 30. 2023

...... . 1 . • •-Total Program Cosf • • t/ .'-■r •: . •• '• Funded bTDHHS contract share :■•-.
• • •• DIrecf- Indirocf-* — - - Total •• s- •  :D1rect ' v Indirect' •  "• -Tptal'- -

1. Total SaiarYh/vages •S - 276.405.00 » $ 278.485.00 S 278.465.00 $ S  276.485.00

2. Empiovee Bertefits s 68,786.09 $ S 68.786.09 i 68.786.09 $ S  68.786.09

3. Consuiiams s 824.00 $ s 624.00 s 624.00 S $  824.00

i $ s . i - i S

.Rental i 833.00 $ % 833.C0 s 633.00 s %  633.00

Repair and Matn^ance s $ s s - s $

PwchasefDepreciation $ $ s s> s $

5. Succiies'. s •- 6 s. s • $ 5

Educallorial % 2.31^00 S  r. i 2.312.00 s 2.312.00. s S  2.312.C0

Lab s - s s • s i $

$ $ s $ $■. S

Medical $ •- s s - s - $ 5 •

Office s 1.305.00 i s 1.305.00 s 1.305.00 $ S 1.306.00

6. Travel $ 635.00 $ 835.00 s 835.00 t s 635.00

7. Occupancy s 7;466.00 s i 7.466.00 s 7.466.00 s 5 7.466.00

$ - ■i . s - $ • s S •

Telephone s 1.024.00 s » s 1.024.00 S ■ 1.024.00 J s 1.024.00

Postaoe s 636.00 $ s ■836.00 $ 836.00 s  ., s 836.00

SutecricKions s . s s  . - s - s s • •

Audit ar>d Leoal s s s • $ • $ $ •

Insurartce s 145.00 s $ 145.00 $ 145.00 $ S  145.00

s .. $ s .  . s - $ s

9. Software s 1.970.00 s $ 1.970.00 s 1.970.00 $ S  1.970.00

10. MadtetinQ/Communlcations s -• $ $ s -
5 s  -

11. Staff Education and Tratrxng $ 2.000.00 $ s 2.000.00 s 2.000.00 $ S  2.000.00

12. Subcontracls/Agreemenis $ . $ s - $ $ s

Preoram Subcontracts $ 66.767.00 $ s 66.767.00 ■S. 66.767.00 s S  66.767.00

PRC Subcontracts s 532.188.00 s s 532.-188.00 s 532.186.00 J S  532.168.00

13. Other (spectfk details mandatory); s - s s s i S

s $ s $ s $

s ..$ s • s s  • s

Indirect As A Percent of Direct i  .- ...j. 5  69.69Zgi i 69.692.91 s ■ i  69.692.91 t  69.692.91

TOTAL $ 965.776.09 s  69.692.91 i 1.035.469.00 s 985.ne.09 %  69.692.91 S 1.035.469.00

' Indirect As A Percent.ol Direct

(.

.7,2%

•

7.2%

New Hampshire Chadren's Tcust. Inc.
-S$-2022-OEHS-01-NEWHA-01-a63
Exhibit C-2. Budget Sheet. Amendment 03. SFY 2023
Page 1 of 1
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'Exhibit C-4. Budget Sheet. Amendment 03. SFY 2023

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Contractor Name: New Hampshire ChUdren's Trust. IrK.

Proiect.Tttle:

Budget Period:

mtaOng Organttatlon for Family Resource Centers • General Funds SFY*23

r23:. July 1. 2022 • June 30. 2023

... sT •  ■*. - » Total Program Coat. - - ..•-..I - Funded.byDHHS.contract8hare.

• Direct' •  * -Indirect" " • - • Total* 1 •  Direct "'f •  Indirect " " - -'Total • • •

1. Total SataryAVaqes S  103.558.34 i S  103.568.34 S  103.558.34 :$,• .r S  103.558.34 '

S  25.370.41 S S  -25.370.41 S  25.370.41 $ S  25.370.41

S  136.557.00 s S  136.667.00 S  136.657.00 $ S  136.657.00

$ s s S $ s

S  1.261.00 5 i  1.261.00 $  1.261.0O S $  1.261.00

S  •• $ $ $ s $

PurchasofDepreciation s %  •: S  - S s $

•$ •5 $ J 5

S  4.266.00 S S  4.266.00 $  4.266.00 $ S  4,268.00

Lab S S s 5  -.r-

j s $  • . 5 $ $

Medical S s 5 ■:-S -- s 8

$  '2.925.00 s S  2.925.00 $  2.925.00 s S  2.925.00

S  1.713.00 •$ 5  1.713.00 S  1.713.00 $ S  1.713.00

S  12.139.00 s S  12.139.00 S  12.139.00 $ S  12.139.00

8. Current Expenses s  ♦ s $ $ 5

5  1.767.00 s $  1.767.00. S  1.767.00 s $  • 1,767.00

S  857.00 $ S  657.00 $  857.00 $ S  857.00

Subscriptions $ 5 5 $ > s 5  •"

i  - . S S S $ $

S  230.00 $ $  2X.00 $  230.00 s 3  230.00

s s s i t S

9. Software S. 3.191.00 $ S  3.191.00 $  3.191.00 s S  3.191.00

10. Madcetinq/Commurucabons $  78.648.00 s  • $  78.648.00 $  78.648.00 s S  78.648.00

11. Staff Education and Trainirta $ s $ - $ s 5

12. Subcontracts/Aoreements j s $. S S $

S  30.113.00 $ S  .30.113.00 $  30.113.00 $ S  30.113.00

FRC Subcontracts S  806.937.00 $  " S  808.937.00 $  808.937.00 $ S  808.937.00

13. Other {speciiic details mandatory^ S  • s •$ -- $ s S

/nOinct As A PefcSfH 0/IXroct $  113.367.25 i  113.367.25 s  113.367.25 $  113.367.25

TOTAL s  1.211.632.75 %  113,387.25 S  1,325.000.00 $  1.211.832.75 S  113.367.25

Indirect As A Percent of Direct 9.4%
♦ 1

New Hampshire ChBdren's Torst. inc.
SS-2022-OEKS-01-NEWHA-01-A03
E>hibit C-4. Budget Sheet, ^endment #3. SFY 2023
Page i o( 1

Contractor Initials

Data
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Exhibit C-9. Budget Sheet, Amendment *i, SPY 20Z3

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Contractor Name: New Hampshire Children'e.Trust. Inc.

Project Tide: Faciltiating Organization for Family Resource Centers - Health Obparftlet Grant SFY*23

Budget Perlpd: SFr23; July 1. 2022. June 50. 2023 .

;  . . . -t •Total Program Cost . • i- *• - - Funded by OHMS contract ehare

Unoltem '*
.. - • Direct-* Indirect • ToUl • '•* Direct % Indirect •r • • * Total

r. Total SaiafWWaoes 621.000.00 i S  .• 521.000.00 ¥ 521.000.00 S ¥ 521.000.00

$ .  130.250.00 s $  130.250.00 ¥ 130.250.00 ¥ ¥ 130.250.00

s 18.000.00 s S  18.000.00 S ie.ooaQO ¥ S ia,ooo.M

s s •? s s • ¥ $ -

Rental s 2.000.00 s $  2.000.00 ¥ 2.000.00 S S 2.000.00

Repair and Mainenance s s s S -- $ s -

Purcttase/Oeprecialion ' $ 20.000.00 $ s  20.000.00 $ 20.000.00 S ¥ 20000.00

5. Supplies: s • s 5 s -• s ¥

Educatiortal $  ■ 2.000.00 s S  2.000.00 ¥ 2.000.00 ¥.> ¥ 2.000.00

Lab s $  • $ S ¥. ¥ •

Pl>afmacv S  . '.r.. $• $ s S S

Medical 5 ■5.. - 5 . s •1 $- ¥ •••- •

Offrce $ 3.500.00 $ • 5  3.500.00 s 3.500.00 s ¥ 3.500.00

S. Tnivffil i 1.7X.OO $ S  1.700.00 s  . 1.700.00 s i 1.700.00

7. Occupancv s 28.100.00 •S S  28.100.00 i 28.100.00 s ¥ 28.100.00

6. Current Expenses s $ S- ¥ .
s ¥ -

Teleohorw 5 2.800.00 $ S  2.600.00 s - 2.800.00 ¥ S 2.800.00

s 1.950.00 t $  1.950.00 ¥ 1.950.00 ¥ S 1.950.x

Subscnptions s •• s S s •; ¥ ¥ -■

Audit and Leqai s $ s - ¥ ¥ ¥ -

Insurance i 1.600.00 i s 1.500.00 ¥ 1.600.00 ¥ • ¥ - 1.600.x

Board Exper^ses i $ s • $ - ¥ ¥ •

9. Software s 2.400.00 $ s 2.400.00 $ 2.400.00 ¥ $ 2.4X.X

10. Martcetlno/Communicaiions s $ s . • i $ ¥ -

11. Staff Education end Trair^ .s 7.500.00 s s 7.500.00 ¥ 7.500.00 ¥ ¥ 7.5X.X

12. SubcontracJifAgreements s -• s t5 ¥ -- ¥ S -

Prooram Subcontracts $ 91.045.00 $ S 91.045.00 ¥ ■  91.045.00 $ ¥ 91.04S.X

FRO Subcontracts $ 800.000.00 s $ 600.000.00 ¥ 800.000.00 ¥ $ 8X.0X.X

13. Other (soeciAc details manoaioryk s - $ s •. S S ¥ •

Additional Resources (or Resource '

Navlgators<salaries end resources to support
resource naN^ator posliions) t 44.771.00 s ¥ 44.771.00 ¥ 44.771.00 ¥ * ¥ 44.771.x

indirect As A Percent of Dimcl s $ 161.384.00 S 161.384.00 ¥ • i 161.384.00 ¥ 161.384.x

TOTAL i 1,678,616.00 i -tii,^.00 i 1,840,000.00 $ 1.678,616.00 i 161,384.00 1.840.000.W

Indirect As A Percent of Direct 9.6%

New HampsWre Chfldren's Tnist. Inc
SS-2022-OEKSr01-NEWHA-01-A03 v
Exhibit C-8. Budget Sheet. Amendment #3. SPY 2023
Page i of i
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Exhibit C>1S, Budgtt ShMt. Amendmtm 03, SPf 2023

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services.

Contr^or Ntme: Naw Hampshire Chlldrens Trvst. Inc.

Pro|act Title: FacinutJng Organlutton for Family Resource Centers • Governor Commission Furrds

Budget Period: SFY July 1. 2022 • June 30. 2023

-  ■' .-r . -  • ;• ' -Total Prt)g ram Cost .  • . - • • Funded by-OHHS contract.ehare
Line Item , - • Direct • •• -■ indlrocf ^  • Total • ■ Direct ••• • rr-- •tindlrect "" •••- r •. Total ••
1. Total Salary/Wages $ e.288.19 S s 6.288.19 S 6.288.19 $  • $  6.288.19
2. Employee Berttfits $  1.947.71 s s •1.947.71 1.947.71 s $  1.947.71
3. Ccnsultarus S  169.00 s s 169.00 $ 189.x 5 $  189.x
4. Eouipment: S $ $ . $ -- J- s

Remai $  122.00 s s 122.00 $ 122.x $ i  122.x
Repair and M^ntenance % s $ •- i - $ $  :
PurehasefOeoreciation S  r $ $ J •5

5. Supplies; * i  1- $ .$ $ •• J $
Educetionai S  334.00 s s 334.00 i ■ • 334.x S $  334.x
Lab . . s $ i- s - s s

PhormacY i $ s s $ $
Medical $ s s s •• s s
Oftice S  112.00 $ $ 112.00 •S . 112.x 5 S  112.x

6. Travel S  12.00 5 i 12.00 $ 12.x $ 9  12.x
7. Occupancy S  1.096.00 3 s 1.096.00 s 1.096.x S S  1.096.x
8. Curranl Expenses $ • • S s '• s • $ $

Teiephor>e S  150.00 s $ 150.00 s 150.x $ i  1X.X
Postage $  66.00 s s 66.00 s 66.x $ S  68.x
Subscriptions s.- r s I- s . 5 i
Audit arxt Legal s i  y s s . S S
Insurarwe :S 2t.00 s s :  21.x s 21.x $ S  21.x
Board EgKnses S s s .. % S s

9. Software .S 289.00 .5 i 289.x i 269.00 $ $  2e9.X
10. Mariteting/Commurticstions $  11.135.19 .5 $ 11.135.19 6 11.135.19 $ S  11.135.19
11. Staff Education and Training S 5 s - S - S $
12. SubccntractsfAgreemenls $  - S s •• S • $  . $

Program Subcontracts S  1.683.00 $ s 1.883.x i i.ees.x S S  ' 1.883.x
FRO Subcontracts S  65.262.00 ••S s - 65.262.x s 65.262.x $ S  65.262.x

13. Other (specific details mandatory): J s •- s . $ s
S $ $ $ $  - - s

■J $ - s ■ $ 5  . . s
indiiact As A Percent of Duect i s 9.090.91 i 9.090.91 s -• i 9.090.91 $  9.090.91

TOTAL 5 90,909.09. 9,090.91 1M.0X.X s 90.909.x t 9.0X.91 $  1M.OOO.X
Irtdlrect As A Percem of Olrect

"•

10.0%

s

iao%

;•

New Hampshire Children's Trust, inc.
SS-2022-OCHS-01-NEWKA^)1^03 ■
.E^ibil.C-tS. Budget Sheet: Amendment 03. SFY 2023
Pago 1 of 1
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Exhibit C-10. Budget Sheet. Amendment ItX SFY 2023

• New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services-

Contractor Name: New Hampshire Chlldrens TrusL Inc. ■ i

Profect Title: Fscilitatirrg O^anbeatton for Family Resgurce Center* • JuvenPe Justice

Budget Pertod: SFY July 1. 2022 • June 30. 2023 •  --T

H

•Total.Program Cost. - . .Fun<led:bv,OHHS.eontrsctshare.. . '•'* - • •

1. Total SaiaryAfVaqes S  - 5.000.00 $ S  5.000.00 S  5.000.00 i S  6.000.00

2. Employee Benefits. S  • 1.250.00 J S  1.250.00 S  1.250.00 $  • - S  1.250.00

3. Consultants s $ $  I- s $ $

4. Eqiipmeni: s $  •: 5 $ % 5

Rental s $ 'S.. s s S

Repair and Maintenance s $ $ s s S

Purchase/Depreciation $ $ S $ S

s; Supplies: $ $ s $ 5  • • $

Educational $ $ s s S S

$ $ $ % s  . 5

Phamacv $ $ s 5 -

Medical 5  1. • s $ s $ . S

Office s $ $ s $ $

6. Trwd s $ $ s S $

7. Occupancy J $ $ s $ s

8. Current Expenses s s $ $ $

Telephone - 5 $ $ $ $

Postage $ S  . 5 $ s

Subschptiorts $ . $ 5 s $ s

Audit and legal s $ i s $

insurence $ S S 5 s s

Board Ei^enses s $ $ s $

9. Software s $ 5 >$- s • 5

to. Marlcetinq/Communications $  • $ S s 5- 5  •

11. Stall Education and TrdNng s s S s s

12. Subccntncis/Agreemonts i  61.204.56 s  . • S  61.204.56 5  61.204.56 . $ - S  61.204.56

13. Other (speciKc details mandetorv): $  r . s 5 S s $

Irtdirect As A Percent ol Direct s  • S  6.745.44 5  6.745.44 s S _ 6.745.44 S  6.745.44

TOTAL i  67.454.56 $  6.745.44 %  74.200.00 S  67.454.66 S  6,745.44 S  74.200.00

Irrdirect As A Percent ol Direct 10.0% - 10.0%

New Hampshire ChBdren's Tcvsl Inc.

SS-2022-DEHS^)1-NEWHA-01-A03

Exhibit C-16. Budget Sheet. Amendment ffX SPY 2023
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Exhibit C-1T. Budget Sheet Amendment #3. SFY 2024

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Contrseter Name: New Hampshire Chlldrene Trust Inc.

Project TlSe: Factntatlng Organization for Femity Resource Centers • Juvenllo Justice

Budget Period: SPT July 1. 2023 • June bo, '2024

Total.ProQram Cost

Uno Item : ""Direct t:;. - irtdlrocf ~ — — • Total .... •Dlrecf*^""*:' ■■ Mftdirect • -  Total," ••• —

1. Total $ttarfMages Si 5.000.00 $ 5 5.000.00 5,000.00 i S  . 5.000.00

2. Empiovee Benefits . $ 1.250.00 S i 1.250.00 $  1.250.00 $ 5  1.250.00

3. Consullartts s .  ■ s s •• 5 $ S

4. Eguipmcnt: $ s s S 5 $•

Rental s $ $ $ s  -- 5

P*r«ir and Mainienance. s $ s  > $ • S

Purchase/Oepredatian s $ $ S 5

5. Sooolles: . S s s $ s S

Educalicrtal > s S  •• s S' s $

tab s -$• $ s S  *'

Pharmacy $ .$ $ $ $ s

Medical. ,$ 5 s $ 5 $

Office s S  •: s $ 5 $

6. Travel $ $ s s % 5

7. Occupancy $ $ ■ i $ S $

6. Current Expenses s S s s $ S

Telephone. s. -• s $ $• 5 s

Postage s $ $ s $

Subscnptiom s s $ s 5 $  •

Audit 8r>d Leosi s $ s s 5 •5

Insurance s  • s s 5 s

Board Expertses s s  > s $ $  •> s

9. Software $ 1.200.00 s s s 1.200.00 $ s

10. MariteilrxifCcmmunicaUons s s s $ - $• 5

11. Sttf Education and TreiranQ s . $ $ ■" s - $

12. Subcontrects/Agreements s 60.004.56 s 5 61.204.56 s 6a004.S6 5 5  61.204.56

13. Other (spedHc detaits marKtatory): s .. $ 5 • s -• S $

Indirect As A Percent of Direct - s i  . . 6.745.46 5 6.745.44 s S  -• 6.745.46 5 6.745.44

s 67,454.56 S  6.745.46 i 74,200.00 s .67,454.56 1  6.74S.46 S 74,200.00

Irtdlrcct As A Percent of Direct tO.0% tO.0%

New Hampshire Children's Trust. Inc.
SS-2022-OEHS-01-NEWHA^1-A03
Drfilbit C-t7. Budget Sheet Amendment«. SFY 2024
PageT o( t

Contractor IniUals

Date
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES i;

piyiSION OF ECONOMIC &HOUSlIVGSTABILm
LeriA.Sblbtacttt

CeeamlBieatr 119 FLEASANT STREET. CONCORD. NH 03301
603-371-9474 l-S00<8S2-334S Ext. 9474

KeneE-Htbcrt Fu: 603-37M130 TDD Acccu: l-^73S-3964 www.^hs.aLtev
DIjTtiar .

March 22. 2022

Hfs Excellency. Goverrwr Christopher T. Suhunu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord. New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Oepartment of Health arKt Human Services, Division of Economic and
Housing-Stability, to amend an existing contract with New Hampshire Children's Trust. Inc. (VC
#218449), Concord, NH. for the ongoing support of Family Resource Centers (FRCs) across the
state to receive the 'Family Resource Center of Quality' (FRC-0) designation to achieve national
-staridards and to further develop the Kinship Navigator Program, by increasing the price limitation
by $344,885 from ̂ .388.600 to $4,733,465 with.no change to the contract completion date of
June -30. 2023, effective upon Governor and Council approval. 100% Federal Funds.

.  * * * •
The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on June 30.2021. Item #41

and most recently amended v^th .Governor and Council approval on September 29, 2021, item
#20. ' '

• [Funds are available. In the fpijowing accounts for State Fiscal Years 2022 and 2023,-with
the airthpiity to adjust budget'line Items within the price limitation and encumbrances between
state nscal.years through the Budget Office. If needed and justified.

See attached fiscal details.

EXPLANATION

For the past few years, there has been a declining rate of New Hampshire families utiiizing
(he"Child Care and Oevelopmeht Fund (CCbh assistance, known as the Child Care Scholarship,
^demonstrating the. need for a campaign to Improve public awareness of the program and its
benefits.'The purpose.of this request Is^tp" modify the scope of work of the contract to include, the
creation of a campaign to promote awareness of the availability of child care assistance through.
'the.CCDF Prpgrarn. The campaign's target audience will Include parents and caregivers of young
children, child care centers (including those not currently accepting CCOF funding), ixmmunity-
leadere and prospective recipients and slakehotders. The campaign will also include benchmarks
and an evaluation to track,en anticipated five percent (5%) increase in enrollment of eljglble
children, expansion of the'number of child care providers accepting CCOF funds, and the nurnber
of child care slots pai.d, in part, with CCOF fuhds.'Given the state's current workforce challenges
and the Irfcreased cost of child care, the Depar^ent seeks to'educate the comrhunlty about the
availability of CCDF assistance. '

The purpose of this requestTs aiso to add fundihg for the Kinship Navigator program' whlch.
proVides case management end barrier resolution supports to families that are In a kinship
relationship.- The- added funding iwill allow the Contractor to- provide additional technjca!

TheD<pdftm'*At6/ll<oUH o'liU Human SefiH^'Afititon'iiloJoin'cdmmuniliei and/amilia
in prbin'dinj oppqrUmilia /or'<iUjtn$1o odiieve htvllh and independentt.

L



DocuSlgn Ertvetope ID: 7MCOO)6-0820-4edO-9E62-S762FAd25226

Hi$ Exccneney. Governor CMstopher T. Sinsfnu p
end the HonofaUe Cour^

Peje 2 of 2

a^lstance, training, and support for the ongoing program evaluation to ensure best practices as
Kinship Navigator ca.seloa'ds continue to increase statewide.

The Contractor Will continue to:

•  Support Family Resource Centers (FRC) with apf^ying for. and acquiring, the
Farnlly Resource Center of Quality (FRC-Q) designation:

•  Ensure ongolrtg trripiementation of the Kinship Navigator Program; and

•  Provide infrastnicture and su^Tort for the statewide networ1( of F.^ily Resource
i  Centers.

The Contractof will support the statewide network of fifteen (15) PRCs that will provide
kinship navigation to approximately 500 families annually.

Should the Governor and Council.not authorize this request, PRCs throughout the state
will experience diminished benefits of effective, research-based frameworks, and wit) continue to
'experience underutilization of the Child Care and Development Fund program that helps
strengthen families and increase access to resources available.in their communities to further
their well-being.

Area served: State^^de

Source of Federal Funds: Assistance Listing Number #93.575. FAIN #2101 NHCSCe

Assistance Listing Number #93:136. FAIN«NU17CE924g84

In the event.that'the pedierarFiinds become no longer available. General Funds wilj not be
requested to SL^port this program.

, Respectfully submitted.

Lon, .1 Shiblnette,
Commissioner '
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Fttcai OeuU Sheet Antendment 02

OVO^OAVUOOtO-nteOOOO health akd social services, oept of health awd human svs.
HHS: transitional ASSISTANCE. DtVlSlON OF FAMILY ASSISTANCE. KINSWP
100% Generel Funds

SutsFlscM

Yner
.CUai / Accounl CtasTlde -JOb Number .Curi^ Amount

inaeeso

fDecrcmel
R^edAmqunl

2022 102-500731 ConlxacU (or Proo Svc -45001601 $325,000 $0 S325.000

2023 102-500731 -- Conlrocte for Proo Snc 45001001 $325,000 SO S325.000

SuhTomi S6SOOOO $0 S650.000

OS«S«4S4S0010-72160000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. OEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS.

HHS: TRANSITIONAL ASSISTANCE. (^SION.OF FAMILY ASSISTANCE. KINSHIP
100% Fsdersl Funds . '

StfiteFbcef

Year
.CIdss/Accounl Cless' Tltie Job Number ' Cunent Amount

tncreese

fDecrensel
Revised Amount

2022 074-500569 Crsnls for Pub Assist cnd.Rofl 45001602 5199 600 50 5199.600

2023 074-500589 Gmnts for Piib Aasbt end ReS 45001602 S199B00 SO 5109,600

Sub Total 5399 600 SO S399.600

OSOSS^IOO-OOTO-SOAOOOOO HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. OEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS,

HHS: PUBLIC HEALTH DIVISION. COMMUNITY AND HEALTH SERVICES

Siale'Fbcel

Yeor
cms / Account .cms Title Job Numba Current Amount '

Inause

fDecranse)
R«ds^ Amouil

2022 102-500731 Contnacts for Prop Svc 900S0405 5692.000 5139.616 5631.618

2023 .  102-500731 Contracts la Proo Svc 90050405 $692,000 555.247 5747.247

Sub Total 51.384.000 5194.665 51.578.665

OS>B5r62'-92O51O-33S20OpO>, HEALTH AND SOCIAL'SERVICES. OEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS.
HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH OIV. Burssu of Druo 6 Alcohol Svcs. Covsfnof Commission Funds.'

Stato Fiscal

Year
Clns/Accounl Class Title JobNuniba . Current Amount

Incroose

fOecreasel
Revised Amount

2022 102-500731 'Ccntmcti Ibr Proa Sve . 02056502 5100.000 SO S100.000

Sub Total 5100.000 .. SO $100,000

OS-gS«90-902010-7(l470000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND
NuMAN SVS, HHS: PUBUC HEALTH DIV, COMMUNnry COLUtBORATlON '
100% Foderei Funds 'f ■

State Flscei

Year
Class f Account Class TlOe . JcbNun^ ' Current Amount .

liwroase

fDecreasel
R.evbed Amount

2022 -  102-500731 Contracts la Prog Svc 90070470 •  535.000.00 50.00 i3l666.d6
Subtotal • 'i •  535.000.00 •  $0.00 $35,000.00

OS«9»I^S01010-57710000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS OEPT OF. HHS: PUBUC HEALTH
DIVISION. BUREAU OF POLICY AND PERFORMANCE, PH COViD-'IB HEALTH DISPARITIES

State Fiscal

Yew
ClQSSf Account ClossTWc ■' Job Numba Curroni Amount

Increase.
(Deaoasol

Revised Amount

2022 102-600731 Contracts la Prog Svc - TBO S910.000 SO $910,000
2023 102-500731 Contracts la Prm Svc TBO $910,000 SO $910,000

Sub Total . S1.820.000 50 $1,620,000

OSOSS^2-4211 iO-24300000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN

Siato Fiscal
Yew

Class/Account cms Title Job Numba Current Amount
Incroose

fOecntoel
Revised Arrtburil

2022 102-500731 ■ Contracts fa Prog Svc' 42117774 - SO $37,499 537.499
2023 102-500731 Contracls fa Proo Svc 42117774 'SO S112.501 SI12.501

Sub Tom SO 5150.000 • $150,000

OVorsllTotall S4.m6ooi sw.eesi S4.733.46Si

New Hampshire Children's Trust, inc.
■SS-2022^q£H5-di;N£WMA-pi-A02
Pocc i of 1
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment#2

This Amendment to the New Hampshire Family Resource' Center .Fapilitation Organization and' Quality
Specialist contract is by and between'the Stale of New Hampshire, Departrhent of Health and Human;
Services ("State" or "Department") and New Hampshire Children's Trust. Ific; ("the Contractor';).

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and. Executive Council
on June 30, 2021 (Item W), as amended on .September 29. 2021 (Item #20), the Contractor agreed to
perform certain sen/ices based upon the terrhs and conditions specified in the Contract as-amended and
in corisideratiori.of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to .Form P-37, Generaj Provisions, Paragraph 17, and Exhibit A, Revisions; to.
Standard Contract Provisions, ;Sectioh 1., .Subsection 1.1., the Contract rhay be .amended upon writteri'
agreerheht of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS; the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price, limitation,, or mprtify
the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW tHEREFORE, in consideratiorl Of the foregoing and-the mutual covenarits and cohditions.cohtained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto.agree to amend as.follovysj'

1; Form P?37, Generaj Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read;

$4,733,465

2. Modify Exhibit;B Amehdrherit #1, Scope of Services, .Section 1;30., to read:

1.30. For the; purposes of this agreement, all references to business hours shall mean Monday
through'Friday from 8:00 a.m- to 4;C)0 p.m,, including state, federal and Contractor holidays,,

T.3.0.1'. The Contractor shall market and promote awareness statewide of the IFarhily
Resource Cehters (FRCs) and the Child Care Development Fund scholarship among
the publicand potentjal partners, the Contractor .shali;

1:30.1.1. Ensure public awareness activities are aligned and coordinated with other
■statewide family support and strerigtheriirig rietworks;

1.30.1.2. Ensure, consistent marketing arid brariding of FRCs end Family Resource
Center of Quality designated FRCs (FRCrQs);

V'3p..1:3. Target spe.cific audiences; Incjudingi .but. :npt limitOd 'fe. cOrnmUnity
'  .leaders/stakeholders, caregivers- -with young chiidreh. childcare-

.ceritef/providers, legislators;, and-furiders;

1.30.1.4. .Increase public-awareness of the Child Care DeveJppmenji.Eund .scholarship's-
existence and parameters using wfap-around mullimedia 'cpnlerit,:collateral.and
placement;'

1.P6.1..5. Establish and. increase system-level knowledge of theiChildcare scholarship to.
■increase, the probability of scholarship eccess, award and maintenance
■amongst applicant caregivers, direct sevice providers; and commMriity
J.eade.rs/stakehpld.ers-through an awareness campaign and trainings.

1;36..1..6. .develop additional Qhifdcar.e 'scholarship, awarehess, while, direcllhg irefGrr'als
and. support toward other resource services provided by' ,New Hampshire!s
family service agencies;

'1 .'30.1^7'.. .Create a,public awaren'e.ss campaign to promote the existence:arid accessibility
.of !the Ghildc'are scholarship for families with children who qualify for the
scholarship arid for childcare providers with the qualitydesignatlon.

[u,
Ne.w Ham'ps.hlre.Childfe'ri.y Inc. A-;S-1,2- Contractor Initials

■SS-2d22TDEHS-'0'l.NEWHA-0i-A02 RagolofA
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i;.30.-1,;8.^ Increase public awareness of the quality designatiori ampngst childcare centers,
and/or providers through content and/or coilateral development and targeted
rhes'saging and/or outreach forqualified caregivers and chjldcare providers with
the quallty designation as. provided by the Departmeht.

.3. Modify Exhibit;B'Amendmen|#1. Scope of Services, Section 1.9., toread:

1.9; the Contractor shall support each Family Resource Center (FRC) with their self-
assessment to determine the level of readiness for each FRC to receiye the Family
Resource Center of Quality (FRC-Q) designation in accordance with National Family
Support Network (NFSN) Standards of' Quality 'for Family Strengthening and Support
(Standards),.

1.9.1. the Contractor shall collaborate with the Harvard Kennedy S.chppl of Government
'  Performance.Lab,(GPL) to receive technical Assistance (TA) as partpf the Child and

Family Wellbeing Accelerator Initiative to strengthen FRCs.

1.9.1.1. the Contractor shall-ensure tA for the Child and Family Wellbeing Accelerator
-initiative which accorriplishes the fpilbwing:

1:9.1.1;1. "Establishes data-driven performance managernent practices for FRCs
to deyelpp'.mpre rob.ust eyidence of success.

'1.9.1..1.2. Establishes ̂strategies to more 'effectiyely engage vulnerable and high-
-risk familieis beyond, those who prpactiVely seek support.

1.9.1.2. The Contractor shall partner with the Department, on the Child and' Family
Welfbeing Accelerator Tnitiatiye by includjng the Department in collatKp.ratiye
mefetings.with GPL as .agreed upon'bythe Department and the Coritractor.

1.9.1.2.1. The Contractor shall support coPrdihated efforts with the Departmerit as
'the need arises, or as requested by the Department, to prprnpte the
alignment of family support programs. ■

4. Add ̂ hibit C-11. Amendmerit #2 Budget Sheet, which is attached hereto and incorporated by-
reference herein.

5i Add i.Exhibit C-f2 ;Amendme.n't>#2 Budget -Sheet, which" is attached' hereto -and incorporated by
reference herein. • .

'6. /Add Exhibit C,-13 Amehdment #2 Budget ;Sheet, which is attached hereto and incorporated, by"
.reference hereiri.

7. Add 'Exhibit' G-.1.4 Arriendment #2;B vyhich is attached hereto and incorporated by
.reference herein.-

— 09

(s
New Hampshire Children's trustivinc: A-S-1.2 Contractor inlitals'

:SS:2022.DEHS-01-NEVV.H>\-P1-A02 Page. 2 of 4 iDate 3/15/20^
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All terms and .conditions of the Contract and prior .amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
In.fuirfbrce and effect.-.This Amendrhent shall be effective upon Governor and Council, approval .

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

-3/15/2022

Date

— 0««uSlQn^by:

Name: Karen E. Hebert
Title: Director. Division of Economic & Housing Stabilily

3/15/2022

Date

New Hampshire Children'is Trust, Inc.

nDocuSlonM
tiff

Name:*^'^^ simmonos
Title: Executive. Director

•*

New Hampshjre ChijdrenS Trust, Inc.

SS-2622-DEHS-O1-NEVVHA^0i-A02;

A-S-i.2

;Pag©.3 of 4,



DocuSign.Envelope ID: 6D5E5701-22CC-4115-A7EA-69667BBC1424

the preceding toendrtienjt. haying been reviewed by this office,, is approved-as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENEFtAL

3/16/2022

—OeeuSloncd by:

Date

Title: Attorney .

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the. State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE;

Date Name:

Title:

New, Hariipshire Children's Taisl, .Irib; A-.S-1.2 •

:sS:2d22.DEHS-0l"-NEWHA-0i-A02 Page 4iOU
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION OF ECONOMIC & HOUSING STABILITY

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD. NH 03301
603-271-9474 l-S0(K852-334S Eit9474

Fai: 603-27M230 TDD Aceeis: MOO-73S-2964 www.dhhs.hfi^v

September 13. 2021

His Excellency, Governor.Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord. New Hampshire 03301 <

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Economic and
Housing Stability, to amend an existing contract with New Hampshire Children's Trust, Inc.
(VC#218449), Concord. NH, to support Family Resource Centers (PRCs) across the state to
receive the 'Family Resource Center of Quality" designation, to achieve national standards, and
to implement the Kir\ship Navigator Program. The Department is requesting an expansion of the
contract with New Hampshire Children's Trust to leverage its role as the facilitating organization
for New Hampshire's networ1( of FRCs, to address health disparities and influencing factors due
to COVID'19 tor priority populations, including racial and ethnic minorities and rural populations,
by increasing the price limitation by $1,655,000 from $2,533,600 to $4,366,600 with no change to
the contract completion date of June 30, 2023, effective upon Governor and Council approval.
61% Federal Funds 19% General Funds.

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on June 30, 2021, item #41.

Funds are available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Years 2022 and 2023, with
the authority to adjust budget line items within the pripe limitation and encumbrances between
state fiscal years.through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

See attached fiscal details.

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is for the Department to expand the scope of work of the
contract to increase Community Health worker staffing to meet the need for comprehensive
supports provided by FRCs and to address C0VID*19 Impacts affecting families. This expanded
scope work is will address COVID-19 health disparities among populations at high risk and
underserved. including racial and ethnic minority populations and rural communities. Through this
amendment the contractor will expand the workforce of Community Health Workers (CHW) and
embed them within the statevnde network of FRCs to directly serve individuals and families
impacted by the COVID-19 pandemic such as economic and health impacts.

CHWs will connect families to mental health, health care, substance use disorder, financial and
budgeting supports; food and nutrition programs, COVID-19 testing, vaccination/immunization,
and resource, identification. Additionally the contract will expand data quality monitoring for
additional family support programs such as the home visiting, Community Collaborations project
(data to be collected includes economic needs, social needs, race, ethnicity, language, and
access to technology and transportation). This will include enhanced communication strategies
such as printing materials in additional languages and prioritizing engagement of families
Impacted by incarceration and families with young children in order to connect them timely to the
services available through the FRCs that support positive outcomes.
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The Department will continue working with the New Hampshire Children's Trust for its
original contradt scope to:

1) continue its support to the PRCs for Quality Designation and perform individual
assessments of the PRCs applying for the Family Resource Center of Quality (FRC-Q)
designation, to identify, document deficiencies in meeting standards, help correct deficiencies,
and assist each PRC with the application process; and

2) implement the Kinship Navigator Program; and

3) continue to provide infrastructure and support for the statewide network of PRCs.
The Contractor will work with the Wellness and Primary Prevention Council (established

by the NH Legislature with a goal of creating a sustainable, quality system of Family Resource
Centers across the state) and Family Support NH to assist PRCs to achieve standards of the
National Family Support Network Quality for Family Strengthening and Support for the purpose
of acquiring an FRC-Ci designatbn. which includes:

•  Providing PRCs with information and trainings on applicable standards and
explaining how to acquire the FRC-Q designation;

•  Providing technical support to PRCs writh the implementation of standards,
development of procedures to document practice of standards, and establishment
of written plans to meet standards;

•  Providing remote or In-pereon assistance to PRCs with writing the FRC-Q
application.or other related needs; and

•  Participating in the National Family. Support Nehwork through a membership vflth
Family Support NH.

The facilitated organization will support PRCs statewide; currently there are fifteen (15)
PRCs that v«n provide kinship rwvigation to approximately 1,000 families from July 1, 2021. to
June 30. 2023.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, PRCs throughout the state
will not have the benefit of effective, research-based frameworks to help strengthen families and
access resources available in their communities to further their well-being.

Area served: Statewide

Source of Federal Funds: Assistance Listing Number #93.670, FAIN #90CA1858

Assistance Listing Number #93.391, FAIN # NH750T000031

Assistance Listing Number #93.556, FAIN# 21NHPKIN

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available. General Funds will not
be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

Qjiiyiofi
Lori A. ShibinmeX
Commissioner\J

The Deperiment of Health and Human Seruicet' Mitsion is to join comntutulies and families
in providing opportunities for ciiisens to achieve health and independence.



DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

FISCAL DETAILS SHEET

05-9S-045-4S0010*72160000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS,
HHS: TRANSITIONAL ASSISTANCE. DIVISION OF FAMILY ASSISTANCE, KINSHIP
100% General Fund*

New Hampshire Children's Trust. Inc. VendorP216449

State Fiscal

Year
Class/Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

2022 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 45001601 $524,800 •$199,800 $325,000

2023 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 45001601 SS24.800 •S199.800 $325,000

Sub Total $1,049,600 -S399.600 $650,000

0$.95*045*460010*72160000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS.
HHS: TRANSITIONAL ASSISTANCE. DIVISION OF FAMILY ASSISTANCE. KINSHIP

100% Federal Funds

State Fiscal

Year
Class/Accourtt Class Title Job Number . Current Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

2022 074*500569 Grants for Pub Assist and Reli 45001602 $0 $199,800 $199,800
2023 074-500589 Grants for Pub Assist and Pel) 45001602 SO $199,800 $199,800

Sub Total $0 $399,600 $399,600

05-095-090-9020-50400000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS.
HHS: PUBLIC HEALTH DIVISION. COMMUNITY AND HEALTH SERVICES

State Fiscal

Year
Class/Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Resrised Amount

2022 102-500731 Contracts (or Prog Svc 90050405 $692,000 $0 $692,000
2023 102-500731 . Contracts for Proo Svc 90050405 $692,000 $0 $692,000

Sub Total $1,384,000 $0 $1:384.000

05-95-92-920510-33820000- HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS,
HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV, Bureau of Drug & Alcohol Svcs, Governor CommUslon Funds
100% General Funds

state Fiscal

Year
Class/Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

2022 102-500731 Conlracis for Proo Svc 92058502 $100,000 $0 $100,000
Sub Total $100,000 $0 $100,000

05-95-090-902010-70470000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVS. HHS: PUBLIC HEALTH DIV. COMMUNITY COLLABORATION

100% Federal Funds

State Fiscal

Year
Class/Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

2022 102*500731 Contracts for Proo Svc 90070470 $0.00 $35,000.00 $35,000.00

Sub Total $0.00 $35,000.00 $35,000.00

05*095-090*901010*57710000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT
OF, HHS: PUBLIC HEALTH DIVISION, BUREAU OF POLICY AND PERFORMANCE, PH COVID-19
100% Federal Funds

Slate Fiscal

Year
Class/Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

2022 102-500731 Contracts for Proo Svc TBD SO $910,000 $910,000
2023 102*500731 Contracts for Proo Svc TBD $0 $910,000 $910,000

Sub Total $0 $1,820,000 $1,820,000

I  Overall Totali S2.S33.600l SI.SSS.OOOT $4.388.6001

Governor and Council Letter Attachment

FInanciai Detail

Page 1 of 1
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State of.New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #1

This Amendment to the New Hampshire Family Resource-Center Facilitation Organization and Quality
Specialist contract Is by and between the State of New Hampshire. Department of Health and Human
Services ("State" or "Department") and New Hampshire Children's Trust, Inc. ("the Contractor".).

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on June 30.2021. (Item #41). the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and
conditions specified in the Contract and in consideration of .certain sums specified: and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 17. the Contract may be amended
upon written agreement of the parlies and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, or modify
the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
In the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows;

1. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$4,388,600

■ 2. Modify Exhibit 8. Scope of Services by replacing in its entirety with Exhibit B Amendment #1,
Scope of Sen/ices, which is attached hereto and Incorporated by reference herein.

3. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms, Section 4, to read:

4. The Contractor shall submit an invoice and supporting documents to the Department no later
than the fifteenth (15th) working day of the following month. The Contractor shall:

4.1. Ensure the invoice is presented, in a form that is provided by the Department or is
otherwise acceptable to.the Department.

4.2. Ensure the invoice identifies and requests payment for allowable costs incurred in
the previous month.

4.3. Provide supporting documentation of allowable costs that may include, but is not
limited to, time sheets, payroll records, receipts for purchases, and proof of
expenditures, as applicable.

4.4. Ensure the invoice is completed, dated and returned to the Department with the
supporting documentation for authorized expenses, in order to initiate payment.

4. Modify Exhibit C-1, Budget Sheet, through Exhibit C-7, Budget Sheet, by replacing in its entirety
with Exhibit C-l Amendment #1,-Budget Sheet through Exhibit C-7 Amendment #1, which is
attached hereto and Incorporated by reference herein.

5. Add Exhibit C-8 Amendment #1, Budget Sheet, which Is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.

6. Add Exhibit C-9 Amendment #1. Budget Sheet, which is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.

7. Add Exhibit C-10 Amendment #1. Budget Sheet, which Is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.

-OS

6s
SS-2022-DEHS-01 -NEWHA-Ol -A01 New Hampshire Children's Trust, Inc. Contractor Initials

^  9/10/2021
A-S-1.0 PagelolS Dale ^
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All terms and conditions of the Contract not modified by this Amendment remain in full force and effect.
This Amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

9/13/2021

Date

C-OocuttpAMI by:
iClM-AW

-4

Name: Karen Hebert
Title: Division Director

9/10/2021

Date

New Hampshire Children's Trust, Inc.

—OecuSiQAM by:

(MffS
N^S'f'Cm'Fsimnionds

Title: Executive Director

SS-2022-DEHS.01 -NEWHA-01-A01 New Hampshire Children's Trusl. Inc.

A-S-1.0 Page 2 ol 3
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

by:

9/14/2021 J. (JjiiriitbfLur Auy^LJi,
Diii- ^ TOutPph^r- Mst'Sha. i

Title: Assistant Attorney General

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the Slate of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: " (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:
Title:'

SS-2022-OEHS-01-NEWHA-01-A01 New Hampshire Children's Trust. Inc.

A-S-1.0 Page 3 of 3
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
New Hampshire Family Resource Center Facilitation Organization
and Quality Specialist

EXHIBIT B Amendment #1

Scope of Services

1. statement of Work

1.1. The Contractor shall provide services in this agreement to the Family Resource
Centers (PRC) In New Hampshire.

1.2. The Contractor shall ensure services are available Statewide via phone,
teleconferencing, and in person meetings.

1.3. For the purposes of this agreement, all references to business hours shall
mean Monday through Friday from 8:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m., including state,
federal and Contractor holidays.

1.4. The -Contractor shall subcontract with the statewide network of Family
Resource Centers (FRC) to establish a workforce of Community Health
Workers (CHW) to provide direct services to priority populations impacted by
COVID-19 health disparities. .

1.5. The Contractor shall provide and support specialized training and technical
assistance as proposed by the Department to the newly developed workforce
of Community Health workers with topics including, but not limited to:

1.5.1. Role of Community Health Workers;

1.5.2. Community Health Workers and Public Health Networks;

1.5.3. Community Health Workers and community ̂coalitions; and

1.5.4. Local community and health resources.

1.6. The Contractor shall support FRC Family Support staff and Community Health
Worker's with training and technical assistance around data collection, cultural
competency, and accessing slate and local community resources. Data will be

■ collected in the Family Support Data System (FSDS). Trainings include, but are
not limited to:

1.6.1. Becoming Providers of NH Easy;

1.6.2. Bureau of Family Assistance Overview Training;

1.6.3. Cultural diversity and equity training;

1.6.4. Family Support Data System;

1.6.5. Concrete support and Retrospective Protective Factors Survey-2
(PFS-2) to determine social determinants of health needs and
protective factors skills gained;

1.6.6. Assessing food Insecurity;

1.6.7. Allow CHWs to participate on the NH CHW Coalition; and

[S
SS-2022-DEHS-01-NEWHA.01-A01 Contractor Initials

9/10/2021
New Hampshire Children's Trust. Inc. .Pa9elof14 Date



OocuSign Envelope ID: A4D5977&^OF^FFB-9202-A7D40CC1F905

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
New Hampshire Family Resource Center Facilitation Organization
and Quality Specialist

EXHIBIT B Amendment #1

1.6.8. CHW attendance at Department approved training through Area Health
Education Center( AHEC)) to meet 13 competencies for CHW
fhttDs://vww.snhahec.ora/communitv-health-workers.htmh.

1.7. The Contractor shall ensure that Family Support Workers and Community
Health workers:

1.7.1. Provide case management and connections to community services
and referrals;

1.7.2. Complete PFS-2 surveys;

1.7.3. Enter data Into the FSDS;

1.7.4. Assist \Mlh maintaining and or applying for social services within their
community;

1.7.5. Provide and distribute educational information about COVID-19

vaccinations and Department general guidance for individual
mitigation;

1.7.6. Identify and help to mitigate barriers in health care access such as
transportation, language, chlldcare, etcetera; and

1.7.7. Connect , clients with community-based agencies and supports
through closed loop and/or warm hand-off referrals for but not limited
to:

1.7.7.1. Food insecurity.

1.7.7.2. Mental health supports.

1.7.7.3. Health care referrals.

1.7.7.4. Substance use disorder supports.

1.7.7.5. Educational supports and services.

1.7.7.6. Financialllteracy.

1.7.7.7. Budgeting supports.

1.7.7.8. COVID-19 testing, vaccination and/or immunization
resources.

1.8. The Contractor shall work with the Department and Community Collaborations
project to provide distribution of outreach materials and education to the
community about the supports offered through the Family Support Staff and
Community Health Workers located at each FRC, which includes,-but is not
limited to:

1.8.1. Printing outreach and education materials in additional langua^j^such
as Spanish, Nepalese, or other languages;

is
SS-2022-DEHS-01-NEWHA-01-A01 Contractor Initials.

9/10/2021
New Hampslilre Children's Trust, inc. Page 2 of 14 Dale
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I

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
New Hampshire Family Resource Center Facilitation Organization
and Quality Specialist

EXHIBIT B Amendment #1

1.8.2. Prioritize and implement strategies that provide engagement and
education of eariy childhood providers about PRC's and the services
provided.

1.8.3. Prioritize and implement strategies that provide engagement and
education of incarcerated parent families on PRC services provided

■ through partnerships of activities with the Family Corinections Center at
the New Hampshire Department of Corrections.

1.9. The Contractor shall support each Family Resource Center (PRC) with their self-
assessment to determine the lever of readiness for each PRC to receive the
Family Resource Center of Quality (FRC-O) designation in accordance with
National Family Support Network (NFSN) Standards of Quality for Family
Strengthening and Support (Standards).

1.10. The Contractor shall perform an individual assessment of any PRC applying for
FRC-Q designation to identify and document deficiencies in meeting Standards
and to assist each FRC throughout the application process.

1.11. "the Contractor shall work with the Wellness and Primary Prevention Council
(WPPC) and Family Support NH (FSNH) to provjde support to PRCs in
implementing and meeting the Standards for the purpose of acquiring an FRC-
Q designation. The Contractor shall ensure support includes, but is not limited
to: .

1.11.1. Providing PRCs with information about the Standards
(https://wvirw.nationalfamilysupportnetwork.org/standards-of-quality):

1.11.2. Providing technical support to PRCs with the implementation of
Standards;

1.11.3. Providing technical support to PRCs with the implementation of
procedures to document practice of Standards;

1.11.4. Providing training and technical assistance to PRCs with the
development of a written plan to meet Standards;

1.11.5. Traveling to any FRC requesting an in-person consultation;

1.11.6. Assisting PRCs with completing the FRC-Q application;

1.11.7. Reviewing FRC-Q applications for accuracy;

1.11.8. Participating in the NFSN through a membership with FSNH; and

1.11.9. Providing PRCs with information and trainings on acquiring the FRC-Q
designation.

is
SS-2022-DEHS-01-NEWHA-01-A01 Contractor Initials^

•  9/10/2021
New Hampshire Children's" Trust. Inc. Page 3 of 14 Date
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
New Hampshire Family Resource Center Facilitation Organization
and Quality Specialist

EXHIBIT B Amendment #1

1.12. The Contractor shall collaborate with other FRO technical assistance assets to

assess the capacity of each PRC relative to the core and optional standards
defined by the WPPC,

1.13. The Contractor shall work with the Department and PRCs to determine culturally
appropriate process and outcome data collection and analysis.

1.14. The Contractor shall assist PRCs with increasing operational efficiencies.

. 1.15. The Contractor shall provide technical assistance for oversight as well as
implementation of a quality improvement process.

1.16. The Contractor shall utilize a Community of Practice sharing model that allows
• PRC administrators and leadership to establish and strengthen cooperation,
collaboration, and informal mentoring among PRCs.

1.17. The Contractor shall educate policymakers, communities, and community
groups on PRC best practices.

1.18. The Contractor shall ensure priority is given to PRCs providing home services
to:

1.18.1. Families for whom the Division for Children, Youth and Families (DCYF)
has issued a letter of concern;

1.18.2. Families with cases reported by DCYF as unfounded but with
reasonable concern; and

1.18.3. Recipients of Temporary Assistance to Needy Families (TANP) program
services.

1.19. The Contractor shall utilize the Family Support Data System Quick Base data
platform for the purposes of supportirig quality improvement efforts, capable of
collecting data on, k>ut not limited to. the following:

- 1.19.1. Identifying PRC locations, statewide;

1.19.2. Identifying FRC-Q locations, statewide;

1.19.3. Identifying FRC-Q designation expiration dates;

1.19:4. Documenting trainings provided to PRCs through;

1.19.4.1: Notes from the training;
I

1.19.4.2. The number of training attendees; and

1.19.4.3. Identified action items.

1.19.5. Identifying which PRCs have completed the FRC-Q self-assessment;

1.19.6. Identifying PRCs that have completed the PRC-Q designation
application;

> ■ 08 (

1.19.7. Identifying PRCs with plans in place to become an FRC-Q; I
SS-2022-DEHS-01-N6WHA-01-A01 . Conlractor Initials^-—

9/10/2021
New Hampshire Children's Trusl. Inc. Page 4 of 14 Date ^
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
New Hampshire Family Resource Center Facilitation Organization
and Quality Specialist

EXHIBIT B Amendment #1

1.19.8. Identifying individuals who have.received Standards certification;

1.19.9. Documenting FRC and FRC-Q service outcomes;

1.19.10.Documenting FRC priorities: and

1.19.11. Identifying shared measurements among FRCs for family outcomes.

1.20. The Contractor shall ensure collection of data in the Family Support Data
System and support data quality to include the following demographics;

1.20.1. Race

1.20.2. Ethnicity

1.20.3. Language

■  1.20.4. Household income

1.20.5. Marital status

1.20.6. ■ Age of parents

1.20.7. . Sexual orientation and/or gender identity

1.20.8. Town

1.20.9. County

1.20.10. Incarcerated parent"

1.20.11. Receiving benefits that include, but are not limited to:

1.20.11.1. SNAP ■

1.20.11.2. Child Care

1.20.11.3. Medicaid

1.20.11.4. Social Security

1.20.11.5. TANF

1.20.11.6. WIC

1.21. The Contractor shall provide upon request to the Department summary reports,
information, and individual participant outcomes reporting.

1.22. The Contractor shall coordinate data collection efforts for programs including
but not limited to:

1.22.1. Comprehensive Family Support Programs (CFSS).

1.22.2. NH Maternal Infant Early Childhood Home Visiting.

1.22.3. Healthy Families America Home Visiting Programs.

1.22.4. Community Collaborations to Strengthen and Preserv(
Programs.

SS-2022-DEHS-01-NEWHA-01-A01 Contractor Initials'
9/10/2021

New Hampshire Children's Trust. Inc. Page 5 of 14 Dale

Enllies
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
New Hampshire Family Resource Center Facilitation Organization
and Quality Specialist

EXHIBIT 8 Amendment #1

1.23. The Contractor shall provide Technical Assistance (TA) around data integrity
and develop reports related to the data collection.

1.24. The Contractor shall provide training to all new FRC staff who enter data, into
the Quick base platform.

1.25. The Contractor shall ensure data, integrity for the CFSS program and
Community Collaborations project and.provide the necessary reports monthly.

1.26. The Contractor shall work with the Department to plan and align other data
collection efforts for any other new programs administered through Family
Resource Centers.

1.27. The Contractor shall provide quality improvement training and resources to
FRCs and FRC-Qs, including but not limited to:

1.27.1. Collecting and disseminating FRC-Q best practices and evidence-based
program models;

1.27.2. Convening FRCs and FRC-Qs in a Community of. Practice sharing
model;

1.27.3. Promoting collaboration through shared learning opportunities and
training with FRCs and FRC-Qs across state agencies in an effort to
improve service outcomes;

1.27.4. Increasing FRC administrative and operational efficiencies; and

1.27.5. Providing technical assistance to ensure that each FRC-Q has a clear
non-profit business model.

1.28. The Contractor shall provide funding to each FRC in year two (2) of the contract,
for their administrative needs to support the work of the FRC, which includes
but is not limited to the salaries of the Executive Director and Chief Financial
officers and building repairs and maintenance.

1.28.1. The Contractor shall ensure the distribution of funds be based on a
formula with FRC-Q designation.

1.29. The Contractor shall fund and support positions for the purposes of supporting
• kinship caregivers who are caring for kin. The Contractor shall ensure:

1.29.1. Navigators are utilized within FRCs and FRC-Qs to provide support to
kinship caregivers who are caring for kin as a result of a placement.

1.29.2. Navigators connect with kinship caregivers, in-person or by other
electronic means such as FaceTlme and Zoom, for the purposes of:

1.29.2.1 . Assessing kinship caregiver needs;

1,29.2.2. Providing outreach, engagement, and community support
services and referrals; and f—

[cs
SS-2022-DEHS-01-NEWHA-01-A01 Contraclor Initials^
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New Hampshire Family Resource Center Facilitation Organization
and Ouallty Specialist

EXHIBIT B Amendment #1

1.29.2.3. Utilizing or creating peer support groups for kinship caregivers.

1.29.3. Provide training to Navigators to provide consistency across Navigators
through education and training, consistent with:

1.29.3.1. DCYF; and

1.29.3.2. TANF programs.

1.30. The Contractor shall market FRCs to raise public awareness, and raise
awareness among statewide and potential partners. The Contractor shall
ensure:

1.30.1. Public awareness activities align and are coordinated with other
statewide family support and strengthening networks; and

1.30.2. Consistent marketing and branding of FRCs and FRC-Qs

1.31. The Contractor shall utilize the Boundary Spanning Leadership framework to
promote cross-systerti collaboration between FRCs. FRC-Qs and other child-
welfare and family service agencies, businesses, philanthropic funders and
other organizations providing family support and/or economic support services..

1.32. The Contractor may identify and assist FRCs and FRC-Qs in their applications
for additional funding opportunities for FRC and FRCQ operations, programs,
or quality improvement activities.

1.33. The Contractor shall facilitate the FRC-Q designation review process, which
includes, but is not limited to:

1.33.1. Assembling FRC-Q designation review teams devised of members of
theWPPC;

1.33.2. Providing reviewing teams with necessary site review tools;

1.33.3. Coordinating FRC site reviews;
f

1.33.4. Recording, publishing, and reviewing team minutes;

1.33.5. Developing a form to gather review team meeting feedback; and

1.33.6. Communicating results to FRC applicants.

1.34. The Contractor shall attend all Wellness and Primary Preservation Council
(WPPC) meetings.

1.35. The Contractor shall attend all FSNH monthly meetings and provide progress
reports on the number of FRCs achieving FRC-Q designation.

1.36. The Contractor shall attend any National Family Support Network meetings as
identified by the Department.

.  1.37. The Contractor shall utilize project management best practices throughout the
contract term.

ts
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1.38. The' Contractor, shall demonstrate an implementation of a Community of
Practice sharing model among PRCs and FRC-Qs.

1.39. The Contractor shall document specific trainings, guidance, and supports for
PRCs and FRC-Qs providing home visiting services.

1.40. The Contractor shall maintain the Family Support Data System data collection
system in accordance with this Scope of Services.

1.41. The Contractor shall demonstrate an increase in the number of PRCs receiving
the FRC-Q designation.

1.42. The Contractor shall maintain the training process and continue to develop the
Kinship Navigation position based on evaluation of the program and staff
performance.

1.43. The Contractor shall provide evidence of a sufficient number of Navigators
through subcontract to ensure Statewide coverage.

1.44. The Contractor shall support FRC-Q with the re-designation process every three
(3) years.

1.45. The Contractor shall provide support to FRC-Q to develop a work plan to
increase best practice standards using the National standards of quality for
family strengthening and support, data outcomes, client satisfactory surveys
and other evaluation tools.

1.46. The Contractor in collaboration with the Department shall design a FSNH
satisfaction survey to ensure the "Facilitated Organization meets the needs of
the Family Resource Centers.

1.47. The Contractor shall demonstrate an increase in Navigator positions and kinship
Navigator support in each year of this Agreement.

2. Exhibits Incorporated

2.1. The Contractor shall use and disclose Protected Health Information in compliance
with the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health Information
(Privacy Rule) (45 CFR Parts 160 and 164) under the Health Insurance Portability
and Accountability Act (HIPAA) of 1996, and in accordance with the attached
Exhibit I, Business Associate Agreement, which has been executed by the parties.

2.2. The Contractor shall manage all confidential data related to this Agreement in
accordance with the terms of Exhibit K, DHHS Information Security Requirements.

2.3. The Contractor shall comply with all Exhibits D through K, which are attached
hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

3. Reporting Requirements

Monthly Reports

6S
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3.1. The Contractor shall submit monthly reports to the Department FSNH. WPPC,
within fifteen (15) days following the end of the reporting period, to ensure
adequate and efficient service delivery, which include, but are not limited to
reports.detailing the following:

3.1.1. The number of FRG-Q designation applications received;

3.1.2. The number of Vendor FRO and FRC-Q site reviews performed;

3.1.3. The number of FRCs receiving the FRC-Q designation;

3.1.4. Status updates on FRCs applying for the FRC-Q designation according
to the FRCs individual written plan;

3.1.5. A comprehensive training plan for each FRC-Q within ninety (90) days
of receipt of FRC-Q designation;

3.1.6. The number and topics of trainings provided to all FRCs and FRC-Qs;

3.1.7. The number of FRC and FRC-Q staff trained;

3.1.8. Progress made in developing shared family outcome measures;

3.1.9. The number of Navigator positions supported and/or funding; and

3.1.10. The number of trainings delivered to Navigators;

3.2. The Contractor shall submit monthly Kinship Navigator report, within fifteen (15)
days following the end of the reporting period with a final report due thirty (30)
days from contract completion date.

Quarterly Reports

3.3. The Contractor shall submit quarterly reports to the Department FSNH, WPPC,
within fifteen (15) days following the end of the reporting period, to ensure
adequate and efficient service delivery, which include, but are not limited to
reports detailing the following:

3.3.1. . The Number of CHW positions supported:

3.3.2. The Number and type of trainings provided to both the Family Support
Staff and Community Health Workers through COVID-19 Health
Disparities funding;

3.3.3. Number of CHW and FRCs enrolled as providers of NH EASY in order
to support individual connections to economic supports to minimize
COVID-19 impacts:

3.3.4. Number of improvements to data collection, quality and reporting
capacity for recipients related to COVID-19 disparities and inequities,
which include;

3.3.4.1. Workforce support for data collection and reporting te-ensure
collection of complete and representative data (ac^^race.

SS-2022-DEHS-01 -NEWHA^Jl -A01 Contfaclor Initials
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ethnicity, other popuiations of focus such as kinship and
incarceration);

3.3.4.2. impiemented strategies to educate CHW and PRC staff on the
importance of data to address disparities and inequities; and

3.3.4.3. beveioped plans for data quality assurance and improvement;

3.3.5. Number of cases by CHW and Number of encounters per CHW;

3.3.6. Number of COViD-19 encounters indicating mitigation and prevention
through referral of vaccination/vaccine support by each FRO and by
CHW, which includes coordination of activities related to administration

- of vaccines but not the actual vaccine administratipn;

3.3.7. Number of encounters to provide communication about COVID-19 risk
factors, mitigation, and prevention;

3.3.6. Number of other navigation and support services to address COVID-19
risk factors (e.g., employment, economic, child care, health care);

3.3.9. The Contractor will be required to utilize the NH Division of Public Health
Services Equity Review Toolkit prior to work plan development and/or
implementing any programming. This toolkit will provide guidance on
ensuring equity, including Race, Ethnicity and Linguistic (REAL) and
Sexual Orientation and Gender Identity (SOGI) data collection as well
as community engagement as core pieces of the work of the Department
grant-based work.

Annual Reporting

3.4. The'Contractor shall provide a comprehensive annual report by June of
each year. The annual report must summarize;

3.4.1. Participation

3.4.2. Outcomes

3.4.3. Challenges

3.4.4. Strengths

3.4.5. Identified needs for the upcoming fiscal year

3.5. The Contractor shall provide an annual satisfaction survey report to the
■  Department within thirty (30) days of calendar year.

4. Performance Measures

4.1. The Contractor shall demonstrate an increase in the number of PRCs receiving
FRC-Q designation by at least four (4). from an established baseline as of the
contract effective date. Annual baselines are as follows:

4.1.1. Three (3) in State Fiscal Year 2022.

SS-2022-OEHS-01-NEWHA-01-A01 ' ConUaclor Initials ^
9/10/2021
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4.1.2. Three (3) in State Fiscal Year 2023.

4.2. The Contractor shall provide a summary of PFS-2 surveys completed for the
CFSS program, the COVID Health Disparities and Community Collaborations
projects.

.4.2.1. Surveys will show percentages of types of concrete needs identified for
the families served by race, ethnicity and language when available.

4.2.2. Surveys will show percentage of increased protective factors using the
retrospective survey.

4.3. The Contractor shall actively and regularly collaborate with the Department to
. enhance contract management, improve results, and adjust program delivery
and policy based on successful outcomes.

4.4. The Contractor may be required to provide other key data and metrics to the
Department, in the aggregate and de-identified, including client-level
demographic, performance, and service data.

4.5. Where applicable, the Contractor shall collect and share data with the
Department, In the aggregate and de-identified, in a format specified by the
Department.

5. Additional Terms

5.1. Impacts Resulting from Court Orders or Legislative Changes

5.1.1. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future state or federal
legislation or court orders may have an impact on the Services
described herein, the State has the right to modify Service priorities
and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve
compliance therewith.

5.2. Federal Ctyil Rights Laws Compliance: Culturally and Linguistically
Appropriate Programs and Services

5.2.1. The Contractor shall submit, within ten (10) days of the contract
effective date, a detailed description of the communication access
and language assistance services to be provided to ensure
meaningful access to programs and/or services to individuals with
limited English proficiency; individuals who are deaf or have hearing
loss; individuals who are blind or have low vision; and individuals who
have speech challenges.

5.3. Credits and Copyright Ownership

5.3.1. All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other
materials prepared during or resulting from the performance of the
services of the Contract shall include the following statenr|eTTF,®"The

6s
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preparaUon of this {report/document etc.) was financed under a
Contract with the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and
Human Services, with funds provided in part by the. State of New
Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g.. the United States Department of Health and Human
Services."

5.3.2. All materials produced or purchased under the contract shall have
prior approval from the Department before printing, production,
distribution or use.

5.3.3. The Department shall retain copyright ownership for any and all
original materials produced, including, but not limited to:

5.3.3.1. Brochures.

5.3.3.2. Resource directories.

5.3.3.3. Protocols or guidelines.

5.3.3.4. Posters.

5.3.3.5. Reports.

5.3.4. The Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the
contract without prior written approval from the Department.

5.4. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations

5.4.1. In the operation of any facilities for providing services, the Contractor
shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal, state,
county and municipal authorities and with ariy direction of any Public
Officer or officers pursuant to Jaws which shall impose an order or
duty upon the contractor with respect to the operation of the facility or
the provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental
license or permit shall be required for the operation of the said facility
or the performance of the said services, the Contractor shall procure
said license or permit, and shall at all times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the
foregoing requirements, the Contractor hereby covenants and agrees
that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall comply with all
rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the
Fire Marshal and the local fire protection agency, and shall be in
conformance with local building and zoning codes, by-laws and
regulations.

5.5. Eligibility Determinations

5.5.1. If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility of individualssuch eligibility determination shall be made in accord^|n^|' with
SS-2022-DEHS-01-NEWHA-0t-A01 Contractor Initials^

9/10/2021
Newr Hampshire Children's Trust, Inc. Page 12 of 14 Date



DocuSJgn Envelope 10: A405977e-ODF>4FFB-9202-A7040CC1F905

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
New Hampshire Family Resource Center Facilitation Organization
and Quality Specialist

EXHIBIT B Amendment #1
1

applicable federal and state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines,
policies and procedures. /'

5.5.2. Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by the
Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such
times as.are prescribed by the Department.

5.5.3. In addition to the determination foi^s required by the Department, the
Contractor shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services
hereunder, which file shall include all information necessary to
support an eligibility determination and such other information as the
Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department
with all forms and documentation regarding eligibility determinations
that the Department may request or require.

5.5.4. The Contractor understands that all applicants for services
hereunder, as well as individuals declared Ineligible have a right to a
fair hearing regarding that determination. The Contractor hereby
covenants and agrees that all applicants for services shall be
permitted to fill out an application form and that each applicant or re-
applicant shall be informed of his/her right to a fair hearing in
accordance with Department regulations.

^  6. Records

6.1. The Contractor shall keep records that include, but are not limited to:

6.1.1. Books, records, documents and other electronic or physical data
evidencing and reflecting all costs and other expenses incurred by the
Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all income received
or collected by the Contractor.

6.1.2. All records must be maintained in accordance with accounting
procedures and practices, which sufficiently and properly reflect all such
costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original
evidence of costs such as purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers,
requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of in-kind contributions,
labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by
the Department.

6.1.3. Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services, which records shall Include all records of application and
eligibility (Including all forms required to determine eligibility for each

.  such recipient), records regarding the provision'of services and all
invoices submitted, to the Department to obtain- payment for such
services. o»

■  6S
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6.1.4. Medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

6.2. During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and
any of their designated representatives shall have access to all reports and
records maintained pursuant to the Contract for purposes of audit, examination,
excerpts and transcripts. Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of
the price limitation hereunder, the Contract and all the obligations of the parties
hereunder (except such obligations as, by the terms of the Contract are to be
performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or survive the
termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that if, upon

^review of the Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any
expenses claimed by the Contractor as costs hereunder the Department shall
retain.the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such expenses as are
disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

is
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION OF ECONOMIC & HOUSING STABIUTY
Lori A. Shibinelle

Commissioner 12^^ PLEASANT STREET. CONCORD, NH 03301
603.271-9474 1.800-852-3345 Ext. 9474

Christine L. SanUniello Fax:603-271-4230 TDD Access: 1.800-735.25^ 'www.dhhs.nh.gov
Director

April 16,2021

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House
Concord, Nevy Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Economic and
Housing Stability, to enter into a Sole Source, contract v^/ith New Hampshire Children's Trust
(VC#218449). Concord, NH, in the amount of $2,533,600 to support each Family Resource
Center with their self-assessment to determine their level of readiness to receive the Family
Resource Center of Quality designation in accordance with National Family Support Netvyork
Standards of Quality for Family Strengthening and Support, with the option to renew for up to four
(4) additional years, effective July 1, 2021, or upon Governor and Council approval, whichever is
later, through June 30, 2023. 71% Federal Funds, 29% General Funds.

Funds are anticipated to be available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Years 2022
and 2023 upon the availability and continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budget,
with the authority to adjust budget line items within the price limitation and encumbrances between
state fiscal years through the Budget Qffice, if needed and justified.

See attached fiscal details.
EXPLANATION

This request is Sole Source because there are no known viable alternatives to the
services provided by the vendor. The Contractor will continue to support system building and
.infrastructure development to support and assist Family Resource Centers (FRCs) statewide to
provide programs that encompass evidence informed standards of family strengthening.
Additionally, this contract will ensure primary prevention is provided through a system of qualified
centers and will continue to build upon the investment that the State has made in the Resource
Centers. The Contractor previously established evidence informed program and services to
kinship families statewide. This program is invaluable to the nearly 12,000 eligible families in the
state who are raising children of family members who have experienced and/or may be vulnerable
to child maltreatment. Through this contract, the vendor administered a data system that all FRCs
use. This data platform is now supporting FRCs with consistent, statewide r data collection and
outcomes, enabling the Department to measure the positive impact of the FRCs and the services
they provide for family strengthening and child well-being.

The purpose of this request is for the Contractor to 1) continue its support to the FRCs for
Quality Designation 2) to implement the Kinship Navigator Program and 3) to continue to provide
infrastructure and support the statewide network of FRCs. Through the FRC Quality Designation,
the NHCT will perforni individual assessments of the FRCs applying for the Family Resource
Center of Quality (FRC-Q) designation, to identify, document deficiencies in meeting standards,
support the correction of any deficiencies, and to assist each FRC throughout the application
process.

The Defiortment of ileollh and Utiinaii Senices' Miiision is to join cominiinilies and families
in providing opporliiiiilies for cUizens to achieve health and indeiH'ndence.



His Excellency, Govefr>or Christopher T. Sununu
And the Honorable Council

Page 2 of 2 .

The facilitated organziation will support PRCs statewide; currently there are fifteen (15)
PRC's to will provide kindship navigation to approximately 1,000 families from July 1. 2021, to
June 30.2023.

The Contractor vaII work with the Wellness and Primary Prevention Council and Pamily
Support NH to provide support to PRCs with implementing and meeting the National Pamily
Support Network Quality for Family Strengthening and Support standards for the purpose of
acquiring an FRC-Q designation, which includes:

•  Providing PRCs with information about the standards:
https://www.nationaifamilysupportnetwork.org/standards-of-quality;

•  Providing technical support to PRCs in the implementation of standards;

•  Providing technical support to PRCs in the implementation of procedures to
document practice of standards;

•  Providing training and technical assistance to PRCs in the development of a written
plan to meet standards;

•  Traveling to any PRC requesting an in-person consultation;

• Assisting PRCs with completing the PRC-0 application;

•  Reviewing PRC-Q applications for accuracy:

•  Participating in the National Pamily Support Network through a membership with
Pamily Support NH; and

•  Providing PRCs with information and trainings on acquiring the PRC-Q
designation.

As referenced in Exhibit A, Provisions to Standard Contract Provisions, Section 1.1., of
the attached contract, the parties have the option to extend the agreement for up four (4)
additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, agreement
of the parties and Governor and Council approval. /

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request PRCs throughout the state
will not have the benefit of research-based frameworks of family support and subsequently lack
resources to help families build on their own strengths and access to resources that are available
in their communities to further their well-being.

Area served: Statewide.

Source of Funds: #CFDA 93.136, PAIN#NU17CE924984.

#CPDA 93.556, PAIN#191NHPKIN.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available. General Funds will not
be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

■ i

rjfV
Lori A. Shibinette
Commissioner



. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

FINANCIAL DETAIL

05-95-045-450010-72160000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN

SVS, HHS; TRANSITIONAL ASSISTANCE, DIVISION OF FAMILY ASSISTANCE. KINSHIP
60% General Funds, 40% Federal Funds

New Hampshire Children's Trust. Inc. Vendor #

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Number

Current

Budget

2022 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc TBD $ . 524.800

2023 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc TBD - $  524,800

Sub Total $  1.049.600

05-095-090-9020-50400000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN

SVS, HHS: PUBLIC HEALTH DIVISION, COMMUNITY AND HEALTH SERVICES

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Number

Current

Modified

2022 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90050405 $  692.000

2023 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90050405 $  692,000

Sub Total $  1.384.000

05-95-92-920510-33820000- HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN

SVS, HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV, Bureau of Drug & Alcohol Svcs, Governor Commission
Funds

100% General Funds

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Numt)er

Current

Modified

Budget

2022 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 92058502 $  100,000

Sub Total $  100,000

Overall Total! $2.533.60^

Attachment

Financial Detail

Page 1 ol 1



DocuSign Envelope ID: 16323FCF-e2D5«445A-9B5B-87629954C011
FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 12/11/2019)

Subject;_New Hampshire Family Resource Center Facilitation Organization and Quality Specialist (SS-2022-
DEHS-Ol-NEWHA)

Notice: This agreement and all of its attachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council for approval. Any information that is private, confidential or proprietary must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT

The Slate of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. IDENTIFICATION.

l.l State Agency Name

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services .

1.2 State Agency Address

129 Pleasant Street

Concord. NH 03301-3857

1.3 Contractor Name

New Hampshire Children's Trust, inc.

1.4 Contractor Address

10 Ferry Street, Suite 307 _
Concord, NH, 03301

1.5 Contractor Phone

Number

(603)224-1279

1.6 Account Number

05-095-090-9020-

50400000

05-095-045-4500-

72160000 .

05-95-92-920510-

33820000

1.7 Completion Date

June 30, 2023

1.8 Price Limitation

$2,533,600

1.9 Contracting Ofnccr for State Agency

Nathan D. White, Director

1.10 State Agency Telephone Number

(603)271-9631

1.11 Contractor Signature
OocuSlgned by:

Da.c: 5/27/2021

1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

Cliff Simmonds

Executive Oi rector

1.13 State Agency Signature

Docu$ign«d by:

Date: 6/14/2021

1,14 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory

Christine Santaniello

Director

1.15 AppP6^15^'^^;H. Department of Administration, Division of Personnel (if applicable)
D06uSlfli>#d by*

/^L Director, On: 6/1V2021
1.16 Appro\'9^'l$^?^%Vtbrncy General (1-orm, Substance and Execution) (ifapplicable)

By: On:

1.17 Approval by the Governor and Executive Council (if applicable)

G&C Item number: G&C Meeting Date: —ns

Paue 1 ofS

Contractor Initials
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DocuSign Envelope ID: 16323FCF-E2D5-445A-9B5B-87629954C011

Page 2 of 5 (k
Comractor Initials

Date 5/27/2021



DocuSign Envelope 10; .16323FCF-E2D5-445A-9B5B-87629954C011

2. SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED. The State of New
Hampshire, acting through the agency identified in block l.l
("Stale"), engages contractor identified in block 1.3
("Contractor") to perform, and the Contractor shall perform, the
work or sale of goods, or both, identified and more particularly
described in the attached EXHIBIT B which is incorporated
herein by reference ("SeiVices").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.

3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if applicable,
this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hercunder. shall
become effective on the date the Governor and Executive
Council approve this Agreement as indicated in block 1.1.7,

unless no such approval is required, in which case the Agreement
shall become effective on the date the Agreement is signed by
the State Agency as shown in block 1.13 ("Effective Date").
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior to
the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not become
effective, the State shall have no liability to the Contractor,
including without limitation, any obligation to pay the
Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, arc
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation of
funds affected by any state or federal legislative or executive
action that reduces, eliminates or otherwise modifies , the
appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and
the Scope for Services provided.in EXHIBIT B, in whole or in
part. In no event shall the State be liable for any payments
hereunder in excess of such available appropriated funds, in the
event of a reduction or termination of appropriated funds, the
State shall has'e the right to withhold payment until such funds
become available, if ever, and shall have the right to reduce or
terminate the Services under this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such reduction or termination.
The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other
account or source to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the

event funds in that Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/

PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of payment
arc identified and more particularly described in EXHIBIT C
which is incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete

compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State shall

have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract price.
5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement those
liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA 80:7
through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in no
event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually made
hereunder. exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block 1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS

AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all applicable statutes, laws,
regulations, and orders of federal, state, county or municipal
authorities which impose any obligation or duty upon the
Contractor, including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal
employment opportunity laws. In addition, if this Agreement is
funded in any part by monies of the United States, the Contractor
shall comply with all federal executive orders, rules, regulations
and statutes, and with any rules, regulations and guidelines as the
State or the United States issue to implement these regulations."
The Contractor shall also comply with all applicable intellectual
property laws.
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall not
discriminate against employees or applicants for employment
because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex, handicap, sexual
orientation, or national origin and will take affirmative action to
prevent such discrimination.
6.3. The Contractor agrees to permit the State or United States
access to any of the Contractor's books, records and accounts for
the purpose of ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations
and orders, and the covenants, terms and conditions of this

Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all personnel
necessary to perform the Services.. The Contractor warrants that
all personnel engaged in the Services shall be qualified to
perform the Services, and shall be properly licensed and
otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable laws.
7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire, and
shall not permit any .subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State employee
or official, who is materially involved in the procurement,
administration or performance of this Agreement. This
provision shall survive termination of this Agreement.
7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or her
successor, shall be the Stale's representative. In the event of any
dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement, the
Contracting Officer's decision shall be final for the State.

Page 3 of 5
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8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder ("Event

of Default"):
8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition of
this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any.Event of Default, the State may
take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the absence of
a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30) days from the
date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is not timely cured,
terminate this Agreement, effective two (2) days after giving the
Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default

shall never be paid to the Contractor;
" 8.2.3 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and set off against any other obligations the State may
owe to the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of
any Event of Default; and/or
8.2.4 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default, treat the Agreement as breached, terminate the
Agreement and pursue any of its remedies at law or in equity, or
both.

8.3. No failure by the State to enforce any provisions hereof after
any Event of Default shall be deemed a waiver of its rights with
regard to that Event of Default, or any subsequent Event of
Default. No express failure to enforce any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and
ail of the provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of
Default on the part of the Contractor.

9. TERMINATION.

9.1 Notwithstanding paragraph 8, the State may, at its sole
discretion, terminate the Agreement for any reason, in whole or
in part, by thirty (30) days written notice to the Contractor that
the State is exercising its option to terminate the Agreement.
9.2 In the event of an early termination of this Agreement for
any reason other than the completion of the Services, the
Contractor shall, at the State's discretion. dcli\'er to the

Contracting Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days aftcr.the date
of termination, a report ("Termination Report") describing in
detail all Services perforrned, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject matter,
content, and number of copies of the Termination Report shall
be identical to those of any Final Report dc.scribed in the attached
EXHIBIT B. In addition, at the State's discretion, the Contractor

shall, within 15 days of notice of early termination, develop and

Page

submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the

Agreement.

10. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/

PRESERV.ATION.

10.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses, graphic
representations, computer programs, computer printouts, notes,
letters, memoranda, papers, and documents, all whether
finished or unfinished.

10.2 All data and any property which has been received from

the Slate or purcha.sed with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon termination
of this Agreement for any reason.
10.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91 -A or other existing law. Disclosure of data requires
prior written approval of the State.

.  11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In the

performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all respects
an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor an
employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers' compensation or
other emoluments provided by the State to its employees,

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTR/VCTS.

12.1 The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any,
intere.st in this Agreement without the prior written notice, which
shall be provided to the State at least fifteen (15) days prior to
the assignment, and a written consent of the State. For purposes
of this paragraph, a Change of Control shall constitute
assignment. "Change of Control" means (a) merger, •
consolidation, or a transaction or series of related transactions in
which a third party, together with its affiliates, becomes the
direct or indirect owner of fifty percent (50%) or more of the
voting shares or similar equity interests, or combined voting
power of the Contractor, or (b) the sale of all or substantially all
of the assets of the Contractor.

12.2 None of the Scr\'ices shall be subcontracted by the
Contractor without prior written notice and consent of the State.
The Stale is entitled to copies of all subcontracts and assignment
agreements and shall not be bound by any provisions contained
in a subcontract or an assignment agreement to which it is not a
party.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. Unless otherwise exempted by law,
the, Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless the State, its
officers and employees, from and against any and all claims,
liabilities and costs for any personal injury or property damages,
patent or copyright infringement, of other claims asserted against
the State, its officers or employees, which arise out of (or which
may be claimed to arise out oO the acts or omissipa-ef the
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DocuSign Envelope ID: 16323FCF-E2D5-445A-9B5B-87629954C011

Contractor, or subcontractors, including but not limited to the
negligence, reckless or intentional conduct. The State shall not
be liable for any costs incurred by the Contractor arising under
this paragraph 13. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the sovereign
immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby reserved to the
State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall survive the
termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURAjNCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
continuously maintain in force, and shall require any
subcontractor or assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the
following insurance:
14.1.1 commercial general liability insurance against all claims
of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts of not
less than $1,000,000 per occurrence and 52.000,000 aggregate
or e.xcess; and
14.1.2 special cause.of loss coverage form covering all property
subject to subparagraph 10.2 herein, in an amount not less than
80% of the whole replacement value of.thc property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall be
on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the State
of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of Insurance, and
issued by insurers licensed in the State of New Hampshire.
14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certi ficate(s) of
insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer identified
in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificate(s) of insurance
for all renewalfs) of insurance required under this Agreement no
later than ten (10) days prior to the expiration date of each
insurance policy. The certificate(s) of insurance and any
renewals thereof shall be attached and are incorporated herein by
reference.

15. WORKERS' COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees, certifies
and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with or exempt
from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A {"li'orkers '
Compensation").
15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the requirements
of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A. Contractor shall maintain, and
require any subcontractor or assignee to secure and maintain,
payment of Workers' Compensation in connection with
activities which the person proposes to undertake pursuant to this
Agreement. The Contractor shall furnish the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, propf of Workers'
Compensation, in the manner described in N.H. RSA chapter
281-A and any applicable renewal(s) thereof, which shall be
attached and arc incorporated herein by reference. The State
shall not be responsible for payment of any Workers'
Compensation premiums or for any other claim or benefit for
Contractor, or any subcontractor or employee of Contractor,
which might arise under applicable State of New Hamp.shire
Workers" Compensation laws in connection with the
performance of the Services under this Agreement.

16. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the time
of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United States-
Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses given in
blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

17. AMEND.MENT. This Agreement may be amended, waived
or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed by the
parties hereto and only after approval of such amendment,
waiver or discharge by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire unless no such approval is required
under the circumstances pursuant to State law, rule or policy.

18. CHOICE OF LAW AND FORUM. This Agreement shall
be governed, interpreted and construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective successors
and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement is the wording
chosen by the parties to express their mutual intent, and no rule
of construction shall be applied against or in favor of any party.
Any actions arising out of this Agreement shall be brought and
maintained in New Hampshire Superior Court which shall have
exclusive jurisdiction thereof. . '

19. CONFLICTING TERMS. In the event of a confiict

between the terms of this P-37 form (as modified in EXHIBIT
A) and/or attachments and amendment thereof, the terms of the
P-37 (as modified in EXHIBIT A) shall control.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third partie.s and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any siich benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement arc
for reference purposes only, and the words contained therein
shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in the
interpretation, construction or meaning of the provisions of this
Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional or modifying
provisions set forth in the attached EXHIBIT A arc incorporated
herein by reference.

23. SEVERABILITV. In the event any of the provisions of this
Agreement arc held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be
contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining provisions of
this .Agreement will remain in full force and effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may be
executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall be
deemed an original, constitutes the entire agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
agreements and understandings with respect to the subject matter
hereof.

Page 5 of 5
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services ^
New Hampshire Family Resource Center Facilitation Organization
and Quality Specialist

EXHIBIT A

REVISIONS TO STANDARD CONTRACT PROVISIONS

1. Revisions to Form P-37, General Provisions

1.1. Paragraph 3, Effective Date/Completion of Services, is amended by adding
subparagraph 3.3 as follows: •

3.3. The parties may extend the Agreement for up to four (4) additional years
from the Completion Date, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of
services, available funding, agreement of the parties, and approval of the
Governor and Executive Council.

1.2. Paragraph 12, Assignment/Delegation/Subcontracts, is amended by adding
subparagraph 12.3 as follows:

12.3. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual conditions as the
Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor
compliance with those conditions. The Contractor,shall have written
agreements with all subcontractors, specifying the work to be performed
and how corrective action shall be managed if the subcontractor's
performance is inadequate. The Contractor shall manage the-
subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis and take corrective
action as necessary. The Contractor shall annually provide the State with
a list of all subcontractors provided for under this Agreement and notify
the State of any inadequate subcontractor performance.
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EXHIBITS

Scope of Services

1. Statement of Work

1.1. The Contractor shall provide services in this agreerhent to the Family Resource
Centers (FRO) in New Hampshire.

1.2. The Contractor shall ensure services are available Statewide.

1.3. For the purposes of this agreement, all references to business hours shall
mean Monday through Friday from 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., including state,
federal and Contractor holidays.

1.4. The Contractor shall support each Family Resource Center (FRC) with their self-
assessment to determine the level of readiness for each FRC to receive the

Family Resource Center of Quality (FRC-Q) designation in accordance with
National Family Support Network (NFSN) Standards of Quality for Family

. Strengthening and Support (Standards).

1.5. The Contractor shall perform an individual assessment of any FRC applying for
FRC-Q designation to identify and document deficiencies in meeting standards
and to assist each FRC throughput the application process.

1.6. The Contractor shall work with the Wellness and Primary Prevention Council,
(WPPC) and Family Support NH (FSNH) to provide support to FRCs in
implementing and meeting the Standards for the purpose of acquiring an FRC-
Q designation. The Contractor shall ensure support includes, but is not limited
to:

1.6.1. Providing FRCs with information about the Standards:
https://www.nationalfamilysupportnetwork.org/standards-of-quality:

1.6.2. Providing technical support to FRCs in the implementation of Standards;

1.6.3. Providing technical support to FRCs in the. implementation of
procedures to document practice of Standards;

1.6.4. Providing training and technical assistance to FRCs in the development
of a written plan to meet Standards; '

1.6.5. Traveling to any FRC requesting an in person consultation;

1.6.6. Assisting FRCs with completing the FRC-Q application;

1.6.7. Reviewing FRC-Q applications for accuracy;

1.6.8. Participating in the NFSN through a membership with FSNH: and

1.6.9. Providing FRCs with information and trainings on acquiring the FRC-Q
designation.

6sSS-2022-DEHS-01-NEWHA-01 Contractor Initials
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1.7. The Contractor shall collaborate with other FRO technical assistance assets to
assess the capacity of each PRC relative to the core and optional standards
defined by the WPPC.

1.8. The Contractor shall work with the Department and PRCs to determine culturally ,
appropriate process and outcome ,data collection and analysis.

1.9. The Contractor shall assist PRCs in increasing operational efficiencies.

1.10. The Contractor shall provide technical assistance for oversight as well as
implementation of a quality improvement process.

1.11. The Contractor shall utilize a Community of Practice sharing model that allows
PRC administrators and leadership to establish and strengthen cooperation. .
collaboration, and informal mentoring among PRCs.

1.12. The Contractor shall educate policymakers, communities, and community
groups on PRC best practices.

1.13. The Contractor shall ensure priority is given to PRCs providing home services
to:

1.13.1. Families for whom the Division of Children, Youth and Families {DCYP)
has issued a letter of concern;

1.13.2. Families with cases reported by DCYP as unfounded but with
reasonable concern; and

1.13.3. Recipients of Temporary Assistance to Needy Families (TANF) program
services.

1.14. The Contractor shall utilize the Family Support Data System Quick Base data
platform for the purposes of supporting quality improvement efforts, capable of,
collecting data on, but not limited to, the following:

'1.14.1. Identifying PRC locations, statewide;

1.14.2. Identifying PRC-Q locations, statewide:

1.14.3. Identifying FRC-Q designation expiration dates;

1.14.4. Documenting trainings provided to PRCs through;

1.14.4.1. Notes from the training:

1.14.4.2. The number of training attendees: and

1.14.4.3. Identified action items;

1.14.5. Identifying which PRCs have completed the FRC-Q self-assessment;

1.14.6. Identifying PRCs that, have completed the PRC-Q designation
application;

1.14.7. Identifying PRCs with plans in place to become an PRC-Q;

SS-2022-DEHS-01-NEWHA-01 Contracfor Initials.
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1.14.8. Identifying individuals who have received Standards certification;

1.14.9. Documenting FRC and FRC-Q service outcomes;

1.14.10. Documenting FRC priorities; and

1.14.11. Identifying shared measurements among FRCs forfamily outcomes.

1.15. The Contractor shall provide upon request to the Department with aggregate
data, information, and outcomes.

1.16. The Contractor shall coordinate data collection efforts programs including but
not limited to;

1.16.1. Comprehensive Family Support Programs (CFSS).

1.16.2. NH Maternal Infant Early Childhood Home Visiting.'

1.16.3. "Healthy Families America Home Visiting Programs.

1.16.4. Community Collaboration to Strengthen and Preserve Families
Programs.

s.

1.-17. The contractor shall provide Technical Assistance (TA) around data integrity
and develop reports related to the data collection.

1.18. The contractor shall provide training to all new FRC staff who enter data into the
Quick base platform

1.19. The contractor shall ensure data integrity for the CFSS program and provide the
. necessary reports monthly. •

1.20. The contractor shall work with the Department to plan and align other data
. collection efforts for any other new programs administered through Family
Resource Centers

1.21. The Contractor shall provide quality improvement training and resources to
FRCs and FRC-Qs, including but not limited to:

1.21.1. Collecting and disseminating FRC-Q best practices and evidenced
based program models;

1.21.2. Convening FRCs and FRC-Qs in a Community of Practice sharing
model;

1.21.3. Promoting collaboration through shared learning opportunities and
training with FRCs and FRC-Qs across state agencies in an effort to
improve service outcomes;

1.21.4. Increasing FRC administrative and operational efficiencies; and

1.21.5. Providing technical assistance to ensure that each FRC-Q has a dear
non-profit business model.

^os
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1.22. The contractor shall provide funding to FRC in year two of the contract, for their
administrative needs to support the work of the FRC, including but not limited
to:

1.22.1. Executive Director Salary

1.22.2. CFO salary

1.22.3. building repairs and maintenance

1.22.4. Distribution of funds shall be biased on a formula with FRC-Q
designation

1.23. The Contractor shall fund and support positions for the purposes of supporting
kinship caregivers who are caring for kin. The Contractor shall ensure:

1.23.1. Navigators are utilized within FRCs and FRC-Qs to provide support to
kinship caregivers who are caring for kin as a result of a placement.

1.23.2. Navigators connect with kinship caregivers, in person'or by other
electronic means such as Facetime and Zoom, for the purposes of:

1.23.2.1. Assessing kinship caregiver needs;

1.23.2.2. Providing outreach, engagement, and community support
services and referrals; and

1.23.2.3. Utilizing or creating peer support groups for kinship caregivers.

1.23.3. Provide training to Navigators to provide consistency across Navigators
through education and training, consistent with:

1.23.3.1. DCYF; and

1.23.3.2. TANF programs.

1.24. The Contractor shall market FRCs in order to raise public awareness, and raise
awareness among statewide and potential partners; The Contractor shall
ensure:

1.24.1. Public awareness activities align and are coordinated with other
statewide family support and strengthening networks; and

1.24.2. Consistent marketing and branding of FRCs and FRC-Qs.

1.25. The Contractor shall utilize the Boundary Spanning Leadership framevyork to
promote cross-system collaboration between FRCs. FRC-Qs and other child-
welfare and family service agencies, businesses, philanthropic funders and
other organizations providirig family support and/or economic support services.

1.26. The Contractor may identify and assist FRCs and FRC-Qs in their applications
for additional funding opportunities for FRC and FRCQ operations, programs,
or quality improvement activities.

SS-2022-DEHS-01 -NEWHA-01 CorUractor Initials .
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1.27. The Contractor shall facilitate the FRC-Q designation review process, including
but not limited to:

1.27.1. Assembling FRC-Q designation review teams devised of members of
the WPPC;

1.27.2. Providing reviewing teams with necessary site review tools;

1.27.3. Coordinating FRC site reviews;

1.27.4. Recording, publishing, and reviewing team minutes;

/1.27.5. Developing a form to gather review team meeting feedback; and

1.27.6. Communicating results to FRC applicants.

1.28. The Contractor shall attend all Wellness and Primary Preservation Council
(WPPC) meetings. ^

.  1.29. The Contractor shall attend all Family Support New Hampshire (FSNH) monthly
meetings and provide progress reports on the number of FRCs achieving FRC-
Q designation.

1.30. The Contractor shall attend any National Family Support Network meetings
DHHS identifies as required.

1.31. The, Contractor shall utilize project management best practices throughout the
contract term.

1.32. The Contractor shall demonstrate an implementation of a Community of
Practice sharing model among FRCs and FRC-Qs.

1.33. The Contractor shall document specific trainings, guidance, and supports for
FRCs and FRC-Qs providing home visiting services.

1.34. The Contractor shall maintain the Family Support Data System data collection
system in accordance with this Scope of Services.

1.35. The Contractor shall demonstrate an increase in the number of FRCs receiving
the FRC-Q designation.

1.36. The Contractor shall maintain the training process and continue to develop the
Kinship Navigation position based on evaluation of the program and staff
performance.

1.37. The Contractor shall provide evidence of sufficient number of Navigators
through subcontract.

1.38. Contractor shall support FRC-Q with the re-designation process every three (3)
years..

1.39. Contractor shall provide support to FRC-Q to develop a work plan to increase
best practice standards using the National standards of quality for family

SS-2022-DEHS-01-NEWHA-01 Contractor Initials .
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strengthening and support, data outcomes, ciient satisfactory surveys and other
evaluation tools. "

1.40. The Contractor in collaboration with the Department shall design a Family
Support NH (FSNH) satisfaction survey to ensure that the Facilitated

. Organization meets the needs of the Family Resource Centers.

1.41. The Contractor shall demonstrate an increase in Navigator positions and kinship
Navigator support in each year of the contract term..

2. Exhibits Incorporated

2.1. The Contractor shall use and disclose Protected Health Information in compliance
with the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health Information
{Privacy Rule) (45 CFR Parts 160 and 164) under the Health Insurance Portability
and Accountability Act (HIPAA) of 1996, and in accordance with the attached
Exhibit I. Business Associate Agreement, which has been executed by the parties.

"2.2. The Contractor shall manage all confidential data related to this Agreement in
accordance with the terms of Exhibit K, DHHS Information Security Requirements.

2,3. The Contractor shall comply with all Exhibits D through K, which are attached
hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

3. Reporting Requirements

3.1. The Contractor shall submit monthly reports to the Department FSNH, WPPC,
within fifteen (15) days following the end of the reporting period, to ensure
adequate and efficient service delivery, which include, but are not limited to
reports detailing the following:

3.1.1. The number of FRC-Q designation applications received;

3.1.2. The number of Vendor FRC and FRC-Q site reviews performed;

3.1.3. The number of FRCs receiving the FRC-0 designation;

3.1.4. Status updates on FRCs applying for the FRC-Q designation according
to the FRCs individual written plan;

3.1.5. A comprehensive training plan for each FRC-Q within ninety (90) days
of receipt of FRC-Q designation;

3.1.6. The number and topics of trainings provided to all FRCs and FRC-Qs;

3.1.7. The number.of FRC and FRC-Q staff trained;

" , 3.1.8. Progress made in developing shared family outcome measures;

3.1.9. The number of Navigator positions supported and/or funding; and

3.1.10. The number of trainings delivered to Navigators.

SS-2022-DEHS-01-NEWHA-01 ' Contraclor Initials
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3.2. The Contractor shall provide a comprehensive annual report by June 30*^ of
each year.

3.3. The Contractor shall submit quarterly project progress reports, within fifteen (15)
days following the end of the reporting period, with a final report due thirty (30)
days from contract completion date.

3.4. The Contractor shall submit monthly Kinship Navigator report, within ififteen (15)
days following the end of the reporting period with a final report due thirty (30)
days from contract completion date.

3.5. The Contractor shall provide an annual satisfaction survey report to the
Department within thirty (30). days of calendar year. ,

3.6. The Contractor shall demonstrate an increase in the number of PRCs receiving
FRC-Q designation by at least four (4), from an established baseline as of the
contract effective date. Annual baselines are as follows:

3.6.1. Three (3) in 2022;

3.6.2. Three (3) in 2023

4.. Performance Measures

4.1. The Contractor shall actively and regularly collaborate with the Department to
enhance contract management, improve results, and adjust program delivery
and policy based on successful outcomes.

4.2. The Contractor may be required to provide other key data and rhetrics to the
Department, in the aggregate and de-identified, including client-level
demographic, performance, and service data.

4.3. Where applicable, the Contractor shall collect and share data with the
Department, in the aggregate and de-identified, in a format specified by the
Department.

5. Additional Terms

5.1. Impacts Resulting from Court Orders or Legislative Changes

5.1.1. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future state or federal
legislation or court orders may have an impact on the Services
described herein, the State has the right to modify Service priorities
and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve
compliance therewith.

5.2. Federal Civil Rights Laws Compliance: Culturally and Linguistically
Appropriate Programs and Services

5.2.1. The Contractor shall submit, within ten (10) days of the contract
effective date, a detailed description of the communication access
and language assistance services to be provided '.to en^re

SS.2022-DEHS.01-NEWHA-01 Contractor Initials I
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meaningful access to programs and/or services to individuals with
limited English proficiency; individuals who are deaf or have hearing
loss; individuals who are blind or have low vision; and individuals who
have speech challenges.

5.3. Credits and Copyright Ownership

5.3.1. All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other
materials prepared during or resulting from the performance of the
services of the Contract shall include the following statement, "The
preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a
Contract with the State of New Hampshire, Department of.Health and
Huinan Services, with funds provided in part by the State of New
Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human
Services."

5.3.2. All materials produced or purchased under the contract shall have
prior approval from the Department before printing, production,
distribution or use.

5.3.3. The Department shall retain copyright ownership for any and all
original materials produced, including, but not limited to:

5.3.3.1. Brochures.

5.3.3.2. Resource directories.

5.3.3.3. Protocols or guidelines.

5.3.3.4. Posters.

■  5.3.3.5. Reports.

5.3.4. The Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the
contract without prior written approval from the Department.

5.4. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations

5.4.1. In the operation of any facilities for providing services, the Contractor
. shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal, state,
county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public
Officer or officers pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or
duty upon the contractor with respect to the operation of the facility or
the provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental
license or permit shall be required for the operation of the said facility
or the performance of the said services, the Contractor shall procure
said license or permit, and shall at all times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the
foregoing requirements, the Contractor hereby covenants and ̂ aes

SS-2022-DEHS-01-NEWHA-01 Contractor Initials .

5/27/2021
New Hampshire Children's Trust. Inc. Page 8 of 10 Date



DocuSign Envelope 10:16323FCF-E2D5-445A-9B58-87629954C011

New, Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
New Hampshire Family Resource Center Facilitation Organization
and Quality Specialist

EXHIBIT B

that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall comply with all
rules, orders, regulations„and requirements of the State Office of the
Fire Marshal andHhe local fire protection agency, and shall be in
conformance with local building and zoning codes, by-laws and
regulations.

5.5. Eligibility Determinations

5.5.1. If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility of individuals
such eligibility determination shall be made in accordance with
applicable federal and state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines,
policies and procedures.

5.5.2. Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by the
Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such
times as are prescribed by the Department.

5.5.3. In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the
Contractor shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services
hereunder, which file shall include all information necessary to
support an eligibility determination and such other information as the
Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department
with all forms and documentation regarding eligibility determinations
that the Department may request or require.

5.5.4. The Contractor understands that all applicants for services
hereunder, as well as individuals declared ineligible have a right to a
fair hearing regarding that determination. The Contractor hereby
covenants and agrees that all applicants for services shall be
permitted to fill out an application form and that each applicant or re-
applicant shall be informed of his/her right to a fair hearing in
accordance with Department regulations.

6. Records

6.1. The Contractor shall keep records that include, but are not limited to:

6.1.1. Books, records, documents and other electronic or physical data
evidencing and reflecting ail costs and other expenses incurred by the
Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all income received
or collected by the Contractor.

6.1.2. All records must be maintained in accordance with accounting
procedures and practices, which sufficiently and properly reflect all such
costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original
evidence of costs such as purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers,
requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of in-kind contribi^(^ps.

6s
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labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by
the Department.

6.1.3. Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services, which records shall include all records of application and
eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each
such recipient), records regarding the provision'of services and all
invoices submitted to the Department to obtain payment for such
services.

6.1.4. Medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

6.2. During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and
any of their designated representatives shall have access to all reports and,

.  records maintained pursuant to the Contract for purposes of audit, examination,
excerpts and transcripts. Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of
the price limitation hereunder, the Contract and all the obligations of the parties
hereunder (except such obligations as, by the terms of the Contract are to be
performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or survive the
termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that if, upon .
review of the Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any
expenses claimed by the Contractor as costs hereunder the Department shall
retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such expenses as are
disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

SS-2022-DEHS-01-NEWHA-01 Contractor Initials, '
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Payment Terms

1. This Agreement is funded by:

1.1. 52% New Hampshire Overdose Data to Action Program (NH 0D2A), as
awarded on January 2021, by the Centers For Disease Control And
Prevention, CFDA 93.136, FAIN#NU17CE924984:

1.2. 16% Kinship Navigator Programs as awarded on October 2020, by the
Administration for Children and Families, CFDA 93.556,
FA,IN#20011NHPKIN & 2101NHPKIN

1.3. 32% General Funds

2. For the purposes of this Agreement:

2.1. The Department has identified the Contractor as a sub-recipient, in
accordance with 2 CFR 200.330.

2.2. The Department has identified this Contract as NON-R&D, in
accordance with 2 CFR §200.87.

2.3. The de minimis Indirect Cost Rate of 10% applies in accordance with 2
CFR §200.414.

■ 3. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures
incurred in the fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with
the approved line item, as specified in Exhibits C-1, Budget through Exhibit C-
8,.Budget Sheets.

4. The Contractor shall submit an invoice in a form satisfactory to the Department
by the fifteenth (15th) working day of the following month, which identifies and
requests reimbursement for authorized expenses incurred in the prior month.
The Contractor shall ensure the invoice is completed, dated and returned to the
Department in order to initiate payment.

5. The Contractor shall provide backup documentation for all reimbursement
requests.

.  6. In lieu of hard copies, all invoices may be assigned an electronic signature and
emailed to BFAinvoices@dhhs.nh.gov, or invoices may be mailed to:

'  Financial Manager
Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street

Concord,-NH 03301

7. The Department shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days
of receipt of each invoice, subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice and

New Hampshire Children's Trust. Inc. Exhibit C . Contractor initials, '
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if sufficient funds are available, subject to Paragraph 4 of the General
Provisions Form Number P-37 of this Agreement.

8. The final invoice shall be due to the Department no later than forty (40) days
after the contract completion date specified in Form P-37, General Provisions
Block 1.7 Completion Date.

9. The Contractor must provide the services in Exhibit B, Scope of Services, in
compliance with funding requirements.

10. The Contractor agrees that funding under this Agreement may be withheld, in
whole or in part in the event of non-compliance with the terms and conditions
of Exhibit B, Scope of Services.

11. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that
funding under this agreement may be withheld, in whole or in'part, in the event
of non-compliance with any Federal or State law, rule or regulation applicable
to the services provided, or if the said services or products have not been
satisfactorily completed in accordance with the terms and conditions of this
agreement.

12. Notwithstanding Paragraph 17 of the General Provisions Form P-37, changes
limited to adjusting amounts within the price limitation and adjusting
encumbrances between State Fiscal Years and budget class lines through the
Budget Office may be made by written agreement of both parties, without
obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council, if needed and
justified.

13. Audits

13.1. The Contractor is required to submit an annual audit to the Department
if any of the following conditions exist:

13.1.1. Condition A - The Contractor expended $750,000 or more in
federal funds received as a subrecipient pursuant to 2 CFR Part
200, during the most recently completed fiscal year.

13.1.2. Condition B - The Contractor is subject to audit pursuant to the
requirements of'NH RSA 7:28, lll-b, pertaining to charitable
organizations receiving support of $1,000,000 or more.

13.1.3. Condition C - The Contractor is a public company and required
by Security and Exchange Commission (SEC) regulations to
submit an annual financial audit.

13.2. If Condition A exists, the Contractor shall submit an annual single audit
performed by an independent Certified Public Accountant (CPA) to the

6S
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Department within 120 days after the close of the Contractor's fiscal
year, conducted In accordance with the requirements of 2 CFR Part

13.3. 200, Subpart F of the Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal awards.

13.4. If Condition B or Condition C exists, the Contractor shall submit an

annual financial audit performed by an independent CPA within 120
days after the close of the Contractor's fiscal year.

13.5. In addition to. and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the
Contract, it is understood and agreed by the Contractor that the
Contractor shall be held liable for any state or federal audit exceptions
and shall return to the Department all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken, or which have been
disallowed because of such an exception.

6s
New Hampshire Children's Trust, Inc. Exhibit C Cohiracior initials.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit D

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.). and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections
"1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690. Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31.
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part II of the May 25, 1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691), and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub
contractors), prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that Is a State
may elect to make one certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should
send it to:

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street,

. Concord. NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free'workplace by:
1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,

dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee's
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition:

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and
1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations

occurring in the workplace:
1.3. Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be

given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);
1.4. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of

employment under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2. Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

1.5. Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Fede^aJ^agency

6s
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit D

has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identification number(s) of each affected grant;

1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under'
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and Including

termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or

1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health,
law, enforcement, or other appropriate agency:

1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs 1.1, 1.2, 1.3, 1.4, 1.5, and 1.6.

2. The grantee may insert In the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

■ Check □ if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

Vendor Name:

DoeoSianed by:

(jiff5/27/2021

Date Name°^^'^'^^''S''n''"onds
Title. Executive Director

6S
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit E

CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying; and
31 U.S.C. 1352. and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs {indicate applicable program covered):
'Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
'Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
'Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
'Medicaid Program under Title XIX
"Community Services Block Grant under Title VI
'Child Care Development.Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and.belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, in accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-l.)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans,.and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

Vendor Name:

-OocuSign«d by:

5/27/2021 (Jjff
Date KfaM'-e^rnTrsimmonds

. Executive Director

6S
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION

AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debaiment,
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification;

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the
certification set out below.

2. The inability of a person to provide.the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial
of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be
considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and, Human Services' (DHHS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in
this transaction.

3. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government, DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns
that Its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

5. The terms 'covered transaction," "debarred," "suspended," "ineligible," "lower tier covered
transaction," "participant," "person," "primary covered transaction," "principal/ "proposal," and
"voluntarily excluded," as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached definitions.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (coritract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the
clause titled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion -
Lower Tier Covered Transactions." provided by DHHS, without modification, in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

8. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may, but is not required to, check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records
in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and

6s
Exhibit F - Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension Contractor Initials^
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information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, detiarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in

. addition to other remedies available to the Federal government, DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of Its knowledge and belief, that it and Its
principals;
11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed fordebarment. declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;
11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had

a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

11.3. are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (l)(b)
of this certification; and •

11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS

13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lovyer tier participant, as
defined in 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it arid its principals:
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such

prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will
include this clause entitled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions," without modification in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

Contractor Name:

(jjff
■OocuS^ntd by:

5/27/2021

Date

Executive Director

6S
Exhibit F - Certiricstion Regarding Debarment, Suspension Contractor Initials
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Exhibit G

CERTIFICATION OF COP/IPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO
FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND

WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS
'  ̂ ^ ^

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

Contractor will comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscrimination requirements, which may include:

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or in
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;'

- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 UiS.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes.Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

- the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity);

- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and.the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or activity;

- the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131 -34), which prohibits -
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment. State and local
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and.transportation;

- the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681, 1683, 1685-86), which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

- the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07). which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
employment discrimination;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice, Regulations - Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for.faith-based and community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

-28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization *
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2, 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the grant.. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or
debarment.

sExhibit G
Conlractof Initials.
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Exhibit G

In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
dl^riminatlon after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification;

-I. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions
• indicated above.

Contractor Name:

Doeu5lfln«d by;

5/27/2021 Clifp
Date ^ Wme?t"fiTF"si ramonds

Title. Executive Director

•DS

Exhibit G 6S
Contractor Ir^itials^
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 18, if the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children's services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
S1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification;

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply
with all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

Contractor Name:

--OocuSigntd by;

(Mff5/27/2021

Date ramonds

Executive Director

Exhibit H - Certification Regarding Contractor Initials
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Exhibit i

HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY AND ACCOUNTABILITY ACT

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act. Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, "Business
Associate" shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that
receive, use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and "Covered
Entity" shall mean the State of New Hampshire. Department of Health and Human Services.

(1) Definitions.

a. "Breach" shail have the same meaning as the term 'Breach" in section 164.402 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. "Business Associate" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45. Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. "Covered Entitv" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. "Desionated Record Set" shall have the same meaning as the term "designated record set"
in 45 CFR Section 164.501!

I

e. "Data Aaareoation" shall have the same meaning as the term "data aggregation" in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

f. "Health Care Operations" shall have the same meaning as the term "health care operations"
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

\

g. "HITECH Act" means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act, TitleXIII, Subtitle D. Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.

h. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160, 162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

I. "Individual" shall have the same meaning as the term "individual" in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(g).

j. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

k. "Protected Health Information" shall have the same meaning as the term "protected health
information" in 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the information created or receiv^by
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity. 6s

3/2014 ExhibiM Cornraclor Inilials^
Health Insurance Portability Act
Business Associate Agreement 5/27/2021
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I. "Required bv Law" shall have the same meaning as the term "required by law" in 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

m. "Secretary" shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or
,  his/her designee.

n. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, SubpartC, and amendments thereto.

0. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means protected health Information that is not

secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

p. Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160, 162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the

HITECH

Act.

(2) Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

a. Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health

Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement.- Further, Business Associate, including but not limited to all
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:
I. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
II. As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
III. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered

Entity.

c. To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party. Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was
disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy, Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure andto seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the'8us|T^s

3/2014 Exhibit I Contractor Initials
Health Insurance Portability Act
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Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

e.. ̂  If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses-or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

(3) Obliaatlons and Activities of Business Associate,

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health information and/or any security incident that may have an impact on the
protected health Information of the Covered Entity.

b. The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be
limited to;

0  The nature and extent of the protected health information involved, including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification;

0  The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the
disclosure was made;

0 Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed
0  The e)rtent to which the risk to the protected health information has been

mitigated.

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

c. The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy, Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

d. Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

e. '• • Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (I). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor's business ̂ gpiate
agreements with Contractor's Intended business associates, who will be receivi ̂ 9^^'

3/2014 Exhibit I Contractor Initials^ ■
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pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information.

f. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure

. of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

g. Within ten (10) business days of "receiving a written request from Covered Entity.
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

h. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained In a Designated Record
Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and Incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its •
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

i. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to
such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting.of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

j. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.526.

k. In the event any individual requests access to. amendment of. or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have.the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

I. Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to thpseps
purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible, for so long as Business

3/2014 Exhibit I Contractor Initials'^
Health Insurance Porlabillty Act • '
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Associate maintains such PHI. if Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHi, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed. :

(4) Obligations of Covered Entity

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or iimitation(s) In its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's
use or disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of
PHI.

(5) Termination for Cause

in addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit i. The Covered Entity may either immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity, for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity

■ determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible, Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

(6) Miscellaneous

a. Definitions and Reoulatorv References. Ail terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,
shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit i, to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended.

b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HiPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

c. Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has.no ownership rights
with respect to the PHi provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be r^
to permit Covered Entity to comply vyith HiPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule.

3/2014 Exhibit 1 Conlractor Initials
Health Insurance Porlabiliiy Act
Business Associate Agreement 5/27/2021
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SeareQation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit I or the application thereof to any
person(s) or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit I are declared severable.

Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) I, the
defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P-37). shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

Department of Health and Human Services NEW HAMPSHIRE CHILDREN'S TRUST

^0assQif.lbe Contractor

Signature of Authorized Representative Signature of Authorized Representative

Christine Santaniello cliff Simmonds

Name of Authorized Representative
Director

Name of Authorized Representative

Executive Director

Title of Authorized Representative Title of Authorized Representative

6/14/2021 5/27/2021

Date Date
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CERTIRCATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILrTY AND TRANSPARENCY
ACT fFFATAI COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1, 2010, to report on
data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to'or over
$25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.
In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 {Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:
1. Name of entity
2. Amount of award

3.. Funding agency
4. NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
5. Program source
6. Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7. Location of the entity
8. Principle place of performance
9. Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS#)
10. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:

10.1. f^ore than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal govemment, and those
' revenues are greater than $25M annually and

10.2. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment is made.

The Contractor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252,
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees
to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certification:
The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH
Department of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial Accountability and Transparency Act.

Contractor Name:

/"^^DocuSiflntd by:

5/27/2021 (Jjff
Date

Executive Director

•DS
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FORM A

As the Contractor Identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, I certify-that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

104201111
1. The DUNS number for vour entity is:

2. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percenter more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements: and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts; subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants. and/or
cooperative agreements?

NO YES

If the answer to #2 above is NO. stop here

If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 78o{d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986?

NO YES

If the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here

If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

CU'OHHS/n07l3
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

A. Definitions

The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning in this document;

1. "Breach" means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
•unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term"referring to
situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other than
authorized purpose have access or potential access to personally identifiable
Information, whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health
Information," Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section
164.402 of Title, 45, Code of Federal Regulations.

2. "Computer Security Incident" shall have the same meaning "Computer Security
Incident" in section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61, Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U.S. Department
of Commerce.

3. "Confidential Information" or "Confidential Data" means all confidential information
' disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and personal information including without limitation, Substance
Abuse Treatment Records, Case Records, Protected Health Information and
Personally Identifiable Information.

Confidential Information also includes any and all information owned or managed by
. the State of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and
Human Sen/ices (DHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted
services - of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition is governed by
state or federal law or regulation. This information includes, but is not limited to
Protected Health Information (PHI), Personal Information (PI), Personal Financial
Information (PFI), Federal Tax Information (FTI), Social Security Numbers (SSN),
Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential information.

4. "End User" means any person ,or entity (e.g., contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives
DHHS data,or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. "Incident" means an act that potentially violates an explicit or implied security policy,
which includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial of sen/ice, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or software characteristics without the owner's knowledge, instruction, or
consent. Incidents include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electronic

-DS
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

mail, ail of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use, disclosure, modification or destruction.

7. "Open Wireless Network" means any network or segment of a network that Is
not designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of Information
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and
approved, by means of the State, to transmit) will be considered an open
network and not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI, PFI,
PHI or confidential DHHS data.

8. "Personal Information" (or "PI") means information which can be used to distinguish
'  or trace an individual's identity, such as their narne, social security number, personal .

information as defined in New Hampshire-RSA 359-C;19, biometric records, etc.,
alone, or when combined with other personal or identifying information which is linked
or linkable to a specific individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden
name, etc.

9. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by. the United
States Department of Health and Human Services.

10. "Protected Health Information" (or "PHI") has the same meaning as provided in the
definition of "Protected Health Information" in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §
160.103.

11. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments
thereto.

12. "Urisecured Protected Health Information" means Protected Health Information that is
not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is accredited by
the American National Standards Institute.

I. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential Information.

1. The Contractor must not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Information
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further, Contractor,
including but not limited to all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Information In response to a
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request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, in response to a.
subpoena, etc., without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure.

3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional
restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by, such
additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI in violation of such additional

restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
any other purposes that are not indicated in this Contract.

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives
of DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirm compliance v/ith the terms of this
Contract.

II. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption. If End User is transmitting DHHS data containing
Confidential Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable In cyber security and that said
application's encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internet.

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS
data.

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data If
email is enervated and being sent to and being received by email addresses of
persons authorized to receive such information.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User is employing the Web to transmit Confidential
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
hosting services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit
Confidential Data.

,6. Ground Mail Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via certified ground
mail within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. If End User is employing portable devices -to transmit
Confidential Data said devices must be encrypted and password-protected.

8. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open

OS
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wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network.

9. Remote User Communication. If End User is employing remote communication to
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be
Installed on the End User's mobile device(s) or laptop from which information will be
transmitted or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP), also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If
End User is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data, End User will

- structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of
information. SFTP folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will
be coded for 24-hour auto-deletion cycle (i.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24 •
hours).

11. Wireless Devices.. If End User is transmitting. Confidential Data via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information-.

III. RETENTION AND DISPOSmON OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative in whatever form it may exist, unless, otherwise required by la\v or permitted
under this Contract. To this end, the parties must;

A. Retention

1. The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected in
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United

States. This physical location requirement shall also apply in the implementation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and Includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in
place to detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems
and/or Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
in a secure location and identified in section IV. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must be in a
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, anti-
hacker, anti-spam, anti-spyware, and anti-malware utilities. The environment, as a

... OS
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whole, must have aggressive intrusion-detection and firewall protection.

6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with the State's
Chief Information Officer in the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting
infrastructure.

V  "

B. Disposition . - -

. 1.. If the Contractor will maintain any Confidential Information on its systems (or its
sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will
obtain written certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations. When no longer in use, electronic media containing State of
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
in accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
sanitization, or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example,
degaussing) as described in NISI Special Publication 800-88. Rev 1, Guidelines
for Media Sanitization, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U. S.
Department of Commerce. The- Contractor will document and certify In writing at
time of the data destruction, and will provide written certification to the Department
upon request. The written certification will include all details necessary to
demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable,
regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly
evaluated by the State and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding.

3. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as follows:

1. The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to protect Department
confidential information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery
of contracted services.

2. The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department
confidential information throughout the information lifecycle, where applicable, (from
creation, transformation, use, storage and secure destruction) regardless of the

: media used to store the data (i.e.. tape, disk, paper, etc.).
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3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential information
where applicable.

4.. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to
detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems and/or
Department confidential Information for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor Will provide regular security awareness and education for its End
' Users in support of protecting Department confidential Information.

6. If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement •
supporting the services for State of New Harhpshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an Internal process or processes that defines specific security
expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum
match those for the Contractor, including breach notification requirements.

7. The Contractor will work with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable
-  State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies
and procedures, systems access forms, arid computer use agreements as part of
obtaining and maintaining access to any Department system(s). Agreements will be
completed and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to
system access being authorized.

8. If the "Department determines the Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103, the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department and is responsible, for maintaining compliance with the
agreement.

9. The Contractor will work with the Department at its request to complete a System,
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Department and
Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be completed when the
scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless
prior express written consent is obtained from the Information Security Office
leadership member within the Department,

11. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall
make efforts to investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to
prevent future breach and minimize any damage or loss cesuiting from the breach.
The State shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from
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the breach, including but not limited to: credit monitoring services, mailing costs and
costs associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to
the breach.

12. Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Confidential Information, and must in all other respects
maintain the privacy and security of PI and PHI at a level and scope that is not less
than the level and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, including,
but not limited to, provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a). DHHS
Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b), HtPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that govern protections for individually identifiable health
information and as applicable under State law.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to
prevent unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of security that is not less than the level and scope of security requirements
established by the State of New Hampshire. Department of Information Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at https://www.nh.gov/doit/vendor/index.htm
for the Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement information relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and incident
response process. The Contractor will notify the State's Privacy Officer and the
State's Security Officer of any security breach immediately, at the email addresses
provided in Section VI. This includes a confidential Information breach, computer
security Incident, or suspected breach which affects or includes any State of New
Hampshire systems that connect to the State of New Hampshire network.

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this
Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to
perform their official duties In connection with purposes identified in this Contract.

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users:

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced in Section IV A. above,
implemented to protect Confidential Information that is furnished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this Information at all times.

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI, PI. or
PFI are encrypted and password-protected..

d. send 'emails containing Confidential Information only if encrypted and being
sent to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to
receive, such information.
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e. limit disclosure of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted by law.

f. Confidential Information received under this Contract and individually
identifiable data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored in an area that is
physicaliy and technoiogically secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duty hours as well as non-duty hours (e.g., door locks, card keys,
biometric identifiers, etc.).

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, including any
. derivative files containing personally Identifiable information, and in all cases.
such data-must be encrypted at all times when in transit, at rest, or when
stored on portable media as required in section IV above.

h. in all other instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used and
disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as • determined by a risk-based
assessment of the circumstances involved.

L  understand that their user credentials (user name and-password) must not be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential Information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through
a third party application.

Contractor is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users: DHHS
reserves the right to conduct onsite inspections to monitor compliance with this
Contract, including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein, HIPAA,'
and other applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data
is disposed of In accordance with this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the State's Privacy Officer and Security Officer of any
Security Incidents and Breaches immediately, at the email addresses provided in
Section VI.

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI in
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach Notiftcation
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306., In addition to, and
notwithstanding. Contractor's compliance with ail applicable obligations and procedures.
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will;

1. Identify Incidents:
\

2. Determine if personally identifiable information is invoked in Incidents;

"3. Report suspected or confirmed incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37;

4. Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Inciderits
and determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and
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5. Determine whether Breach notification is required, and, if so, identify appropriate
Breach notification methods,' timing, source, and contents from among different
options, and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as. any mitigation
measures. ' v. .

Incidents and/or Breaches that implicate PI must be addressed and reported, as
applicable, in accordance with NH RSA 359-C;20.

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT
r

A. DHHS Privacy.Officer:

DHHSPrivacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov

B. DHHS Security Officer:

DHHSInformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov
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